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DLG AWARDS
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Namibia Breweries
Limited was
awarded three
gold and two
silver medals
from the Deutsche
Landwirtschafts
Gesellschaft (DLG).
NBL participated
for the 16th
consecutive year.
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Windhoek Lager and Windhoek Draught have each won 14 gold medals at the
DLG1 awards since 2006.

1

The international DLG Quality Evaluation rates beer brands brewed according to the Reinheitsgebot
(“Purity Law”) of 1516 against quality specifications for taste, analytical and biological standards.
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LEADING INTO THE
FUTURE
With a strong foundation and part of
a formidable Namibian Group, NBL’s vision
is now focused on the next 100 years.
We are future-oriented, driven by an
emphasis on people, sustainability,
innovation and efficiency while
remaining true to our Namibian roots.
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ABOUT THIS
REPORT

W

elcome to our integrated report for the financial year that ended
30 June 2021. Namibia Breweries Limited’s (NBL or the Company)
report tracks how we live our purpose: Creating a Future, Enhancing Life.
It tells our story as part of the Ohlthaver & List Group (O&L Group or the
Group) and explains how we contribute to a better world through the
United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

We focus our reporting on Namibia as our primary country
of operation where we sell 76% of our volumes while
also addressing our beyond borders strategy. We present
information relevant to shareholders and investors, but
also include material of interest to our broader stakeholder
community. We report information based on the principle
of materiality, considering the environmental, social,
governance (ESG) and economic factors that affect our
ability to create and preserve value over the short, medium
and long term.

Ohlthaver & List Beverage Company
(Pty) Ltd

The following frameworks and reporting requirements
informed the content for this report:
z Corporate Governance Code for Namibia (NamCode)
z Namibia Companies Act, 2004 (No. 28 of 2004)
(Namibia Companies Act)
z Namibian Stock Exchange (NSX) Listing Requirements
z International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
z International Integrated Reporting Council’s Integrated
Reporting <IR> Framework (<IR> Framework),
January 2021

Heineken International B.V.

NBL Investment Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited

50.01%

Shareholders/
providers of
financial capital

49.99%
Consumers
Public shareholders

Employees

59.37%
40.63%

Communities

FINANCIAL REPORTING BOUNDARY
Suppliers
Namibia Breweries Limited

25.0%

Customers/
strategic partners
Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

STAKEHOLDER UNIVERSE

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Governments
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The Namibia Government did not resort to alcohol bans in
the financial year. COVID-19 regulations and restrictions
however continued to impact our trading environment by
limiting trading hours as well as on-trade.

As per the NamCode requirements, NBL follows a combined
assurance model based on three lines of defence. These
include internal controls and systems, supported by external
verification. Deloitte & Touche audited the consolidated
and separate Annual Financial Statements (pages 80 to 178).
Their unqualified audit opinion is available on page 88.
Further external verification included a South African
Bureau of Standards (SABS) audit and certification
against the requirements of SANS 10330:2007 as well as
ISO 9001:2015. Ernst & Young (EY) also conducted several
internal audits. The governance report starting on page 59
details EY’s internal controls and specific focus areas
during 2021.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

In our previous report, we alerted readers to the impact of
the coronavirus, COVID-19, on the comparability of data.
This was because our trading partners in different countries
had to deal with a range of regulations to limit the spread
of the pandemic. These included several alcohol bans and
trade restrictions, most significantly in South Africa but also
in our other export countries.

ASSURANCE AND APPROVAL

Managing
director’s report

NBL forms part of the O&L Group, which indirectly holds
an effective 29.69% stake in NBL. This report as well as
the financial and non-financial data, is limited to NBL
and its subsidiaries and associate. Full details of these
entities are set out in Annexure C of the Annual Financial
Statements. There were no changes to the shareholding
structures or reporting approach since last year.

These generally use forward-looking words or phrases
such as ‘believe’, ‘aim’, ‘expect’, ‘anticipate’, ‘intend’,
‘foresee’, ‘forecast’, ‘likely’, ‘should’, ‘planned’, ‘may’,
‘estimated’ and ‘potential’, or similar words and phrases.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties, because they relate to events and depend
on circumstances that may or may not occur in future.
NBL cautions that forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance.

Our context
and strategy

REPORTING BOUNDARY AND
COMPARABILITY

This integrated report contains statements about NBL that
are or may be forward-looking. Examples of forwardlooking statements include statements about a future
financial position or future profits, cash flows, strategy,
estimates of capital expenditures, acquisition strategy or
future capital expenditure levels, and other economic
factors such as interest and exchange rates.

Our
profile

To connect with us or request a copy of this report,
contact our Company Secretaries, Ohlthaver & List Centre
(Proprietary) Limited, on telephone: +264 61 207 5111 or
email: Lasarus.Jonker@ol.na. We also publish our
integrated annual report, interim results, and
our Annual Financial Statements on our website
at https://nambrew.com/investor-hub/archive/.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Chairperson’s
statement

We are on a continuous journey to improve our reporting.
This year we focused on specific improvements concerning
NBL’s strategy and risk reporting, and expanded our
disclosure in terms of the SDGs as promised in last
year’s report.

Due to the uneven nature of results under these trading
conditions, we include comparative 2019 data where relevant.

About
this report

While we do not report on the six capitals as described
by the <IR> Framework, we follow a stakeholder-oriented
approach to materiality that considers them all. We act as
stewards of all six capitals by living our purpose.

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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The reporting team worked with internal content owners and the Senior Leadership Team to structure, collect and approve
content for this report. The final report was approved by the Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, whose members
collectively assessed and confirmed their satisfaction with the report’s integrity and completeness. The Board acknowledges
that the report reflects continued improvement towards compliance with the <IR> Framework. The report was approved on
10 November 2021.

About this Report

Non-executive Directors

Sven Thieme

Günther Hanke

Hans-Bruno Gerdes

Peter Grüttemeyer

Steven Siemer

Hendrik van der Westhuizen

Laura McLeod-Katjirua

Roland Pirmez

Pascal Sabrié

Afra Schimming-Chase

Vetumbuavi Junius Mungunda

Executive Directors
Marco Wenk

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Waldemar von Lieres
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

N$2 649 million

N$613 million

180.7 cents

2020: N$2 646 million

2020: N$453 million

2020: 126.5 cents

(2019: N$3 098 million)

(2019: N$652 million)

(2019: 450.8 cents)

Flat

+35.2%

+42.8%

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

DIVIDEND DECLARED PER
SHARE

RETURN ON ASSETS

Our
profile

OPERATING PROFIT

Chairperson’s
statement

NET REVENUE

924.2 cents
(2019: 946.7 cents)

8.68%

56 cents per
share INTERIM
DIVIDEND DECLARED

27.9%
2020: 21.5%

(2019: 32.0%)

Managing
director’s report

No final dividend due to the
conditions arising from the
Potential HSA Transaction.
2020: 53 cents (final),
53 cents (interim)

-4.88%
2020: -16.6%

(2019: 13.8%)

TOTAL VOLUMES EXPORTED
EXCL SOUTH AFRICA

LOCAL PROCUREMENT
SPEND

2020: 4.2%

2020: 36.0%

-16.0%
(2019: 2.6%)

35.0%

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

(2019: 50 cents (final ordinary),
50 cents (interim),
121.05 (special))

TOTAL VOLUMES SOLD

Our context
and strategy

2020: 850.2 cents

(2019: 35.0%)
Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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CHAIRPERSON’S
STATEMENT
“Looking back over the landscape of the
past financial year, we recognise the many
marks left by the COVID-19 pandemic.
There is also more new growth than
expected, and we face the next year
with renewed optimism. ”
Sven Thieme

NBL Chairperson

Trading under the African continental free trade agreement
started on 1 January 2021, making Namibia part of the largest
free trade area in the world. This widens access to export
markets and allows Namibia to become a hub for foreign direct
and domestic investments. As stated by the Namibian Finance
Minister, Honourable Iipumbu Shiimi, this is “an opportunity
that could transform the Namibian economy, strengthen public
finances, create jobs, reduce inequalities and eliminate
extreme poverty”.
Although the Namibian economy suffered a deep
contraction of 7.3% in 2020, there is confidence that
growth projections in the region will spur and support
recovery. The local economy is projected to post an average
growth of 3.1% over the medium term1.

RESHAPING OUR FUTURE
It has been 100 years since NBL was founded by
Hermann Ohlthaver & Carl List who formed our parent
company, the Ohlthaver & List Group. With a clear purpose
throughout this long history, we are confident in not only
what, and who we are here for today, but most importantly
why we are here: to fulfil our purpose, Creating a Future,
Enhancing Life.

1

The rapid and effective response of our employees
to the changes brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic
is a testament to the enduring values of NBL and its people,
who are committed to serve our customers and country
every day.
COVID-19 reshaped our business, communities, country and
world. It has been a defining period for NBL and will be
remembered for many challenges and quick planning as we
navigated our way through events such as alcohol bans, trade
closures and restrictions in both domestic and regional export
markets, including South Africa. Overall volumes decreased
by 4.88%, compared to a decrease of 16.6% in 2020. Net
Revenue was flat on the previous year despite lower volumes
with operating profit returning to pre-COVID-19 levels.
NBL experienced disrupted demand and limited supply
opportunities from Namibia, and shared the pain of heavily
impacted tourism and hospitality industries. Trade in
the informal market, as well as on-consumption, was
hampered. Read more about our response and performance
in the Managing Director’s report from page 34.

FY2021/22 Budget Statement - Minister of Finance, Ipumbu Shiimi, 17 March 2021 HYPERLINK "http://www.mof.gov.na" www.mof.gov.na

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Following the launch and roll-out of the O&L 2025
Breakthrough Strategy in 2020, we are on an exciting
journey to further strengthen our culture. This is important
to the success and overall health of our company,
employees and stakeholders, and has huge potential in
unlocking the best version of each of us.

Governance
report

OUR BREAKTHROUGH STRATEGY AND
LEADERSHIP INVESTMENT

Leadership is a responsibility that we do not take lightly.
We continue to invest in leadership through the GAP
International diagnostics. These measure team dynamics to
impact execution and results. The Organisational Alignment
diagnostics in turn evaluates the ability of leadership to
drive organisational change. NBL’s Senior Leadership team,
as part of the O&L Group Executive, also participated in a
Leveraging Genius Advanced Conference. Leadership is key
to building a resilient culture, characterised by
breakthrough behaviours and the ability to overcome the
challenges of the past year for a sustainable future for all.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

I have to commend our leadership and employees who
worked through these extraordinary circumstances, displaying
courage, agility and resilience to deliver on our Purpose and
2025 Vision, while ensuring the health, safety and well-being
of each other, supporting the resilience of our consumers,
customers and stakeholders, as well as safeguarding the
continuity of our business and financial flexibility.

A collective culture brings breakthrough results that support
our purpose. One of the greatest advantages of a strong
culture is that it has the power to transform each of us into
advocates that contribute, promote and live our culture
internally and externally. This can transform NBL into one
big team that is rallied behind our purpose, vision and
values. The value of doing so is incalculable as it causes
organisational alignment, promotes employee engagement
and cultivates a Great Place To Work® for everybody.

Managing
director’s report

Despite these continuing challenges, our Purpose and 2025
Vision to be a catalyst for positive change, creating new
realities, fulfilling dreams, remain at the heart of everything
we do. Our strategic priorities provide the roadmap to
achieve our vision and we are committed to delivering
breakthrough outcomes and long-term sustainable value for
our shareholders, people, customers, consumers,
community, suppliers and the environment.

Notice of annual
general meeting
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INVESTING IN OUR EMPLOYEES

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our employees are our greatest asset. We are committed to
invest in and protect our people during these unprecedented
times and beyond.

Our social agenda supports our purpose, focusing on
education, health and skills development. We are
committed to positively impact and give back to Namibian
communities. Due to the significant increase in the number
of COVID-19 positive cases in Namibia, NBL and the
O&L Group, in collaboration with the Namibia Chamber
of Commerce and Industry, secured an urgent supply of
medical oxygen to help save the lives of many Namibians.

Our performance inspiration model, implemented since
2019, moved away from traditional performance
management that focuses on key performance indicators.
Our focus is now on taking the business to the next level by
delivering breakthrough results. The “connect to inspire
breakthrough” model links our purpose, vision and strategic
objectives to divisional goals, and then to individual goals.

Chairperson’s Statement

NBL’s performance in a difficult year is testimony to the
success of a model that relies on continuous discussions,
communication and feedback between people, managers
and employees. It creates a world of identifying goals,
taking stands, performance coaching and taking ownership
of growing ourselves.
Our employees’ health and safety remain one of our top
priorities. We continued initiatives such as adopting a
work-from-home policy for our non-frontline employees,
providing sanitising stations, face masks and relevant
personal protective equipment, and applying strict control
measures before allowing employees and other third parties
access to any of our sites. We are pleased to have
collaborated with the O&L COVID-19 Group Response
Team under the leadership and guidance of the O&L Group
Wellness Department and NBL’s support function. We
established and adhered to clear business directives and
guidelines that support the Government and World Health
Organization’s health and safety regulations.

INNOVATION AND RECOGNITION
As the world experiences a time of tumultuous change, NBL
is committed to remaining at the cutting edge of innovation
that speaks to the progressive aspirations of its market. Our
agile leadership and collaborative approach enable us to
take the lead in shaping the future for our business, industry
and country. The launch of Horizon, a non-alcoholic
flavoured beer, is a reflection of this passion, appealing to
a broad spectrum of palates and drinking occasions.
Our beer brands continued to demonstrate their strength
and resilience and won several international awards.
Furthermore, Windhoek Draught and Tafel Lager both
retained their top market positions in Namibia – the former
taking the lead this year.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Our country also experienced a shortage of equipment,
medication, and hospital beds. NBL is committed to serving
our nation especially during a time like this and thus,
together with other members of the Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (NCCI), sponsored a 1 500 square-meter field
hospital tent providing access to additional healthcare.
Sadly, Namibia was also plagued by many fatal road
accidents during the past year. As an advocate of
responsible alcohol consumption, and in support of the
Sustainable Development Goals, NBL’s continued support
for those on the frontline of keeping our roads safe.
We amplified our support with the launch of its “When I
drink, I don’t drive” campaign. This aims to promote safer
and accident-free roads by being responsible in our
decisions and/or actions. Please see page 57 for more detail
on our sponsorships.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS
As a key stakeholder in the economy, NBL supports
Government in its initiatives to stimulate economic and
social development through the Harambee National
Prosperity Plan II and Vision 2030. NBL prides itself in
having consistently displayed good corporate citizenship
in the ethical and transparent manner in which we conduct
business and drive the responsible consumption agenda.
We continue to engage with Government on key issues
such as water security, to ensure alignment on how to
overcome Namibia’s challenges.
Our purpose, vision and values define how we behave
towards and do business with our stakeholders.
We recognise our shared interest in creating an
environment where we can all flourish, help each other
to remove barriers and overcome challenges, and be
fair and responsible in how we allocate resources.

9

The potential Heineken transaction, should it proceed, is
subject to several conditions, one of which relates to NBL
not making any distributions, including a dividend
declaration to its shareholders in respect of the financial
year ended 30 June 2021. In light of this, the Board has
taken a decision not to declare a final dividend for the
financial year ended 30 June 2021.
In the event that discussions regarding the potential transaction
are terminated, the Board intends to declare a final dividend
in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
Governance
report

Sven Thieme

Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report

As a Board, we are confident that our decisions in 2021
will serve us well into the future as we continue to take
bold stands. These include growing volumes beyond
Namibian borders by focusing on and investing in markets
that we understand. Furthermore, we are reshaping our
portfolio and focusing on profitable, growing brands and
innovation, and on finding non-liquid growth opportunities
in our value chain. Benchmarking our production facilities
and costs, and investing in digital while building even
deeper relationships with our customers, are all part of our
breakthrough innovations to amplify Namibia’s pride, NBL.

The Group paid an interim dividend during May 2021
amounting to 56c per share. This represents a 5.7% increase
compared to the prior year interim dividend.

Managing
director’s report

Subsequent to year end, Heineken N.V. made an offer to
acquire NBL’s 25% shareholding in Heineken South Africa
(RF) Proprietary Limited. Discussions are ongoing and
shareholders are therefore advised to continue to monitor
the various announcements that have been and will be
published in this regard.

2021 DIVIDEND
Our context
and strategy

NBL stands firm as a resilient business and industry leader,
no matter the headwinds we may face in the coming years.
We have a challenging task ahead to meet our Vision 2025
objectives while doing everything possible to support
the economic revival of our country. We also understand
the risks we face and are clear about our opportunities.
Read more about our strategic risks from page 73.

Our
profile

LEADING INTO THE FUTURE

Chairperson’s
statement

As Namibia and the world find themselves in the Fourth
Industrial Revolution, our business continues to transform
and adapt to the unprecedented advances in technology.
The global pandemic forced us to think and execute in
a fast, efficient and breakthrough manner. We are,
however, cognisant that values and ethics are at the heart
of our individual and collective behaviours, including
the operational and business environment. Thus, we are
committed to ensuring that innovation and technology
continue to put people first, propelling us toward
sustainable and inclusive development. Read more about
NBL’s digital transformation initiatives and activities in
the Managing Director’s report from page 34.

I am confident that together with our formidable team
we will overcome the COVID-19 pandemic and any
foreseeable challenges, as is evident in our 100-year legacy.
I commend and appreciate the NBL team under the
leadership of Managing Director, Marco Wenk for their
resilience, exemplary leadership and commitment to our
purpose, vision and overall success. My gratitude is further
extended to our loyal NBL ambassadors: our valued
employees, customers, and consumers who trust and
believe in us. They inspire us to push on for the greater
good of our people and country. Lastly, to our shareholders,
the NBL Board of Directors, the O&L Group as well as
business and financing partners who continue to support
us – thank you for walking this journey with us.

About
this report

EMBRACING THE FOURTH INDUSTRIAL
REVOLUTION

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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OUR
PROFILE
NBL forms part of the O&L Group of companies,
the largest privately-held group in Namibia.
The Group contributes about 4% to gross
domestic product (GDP). With business interests
in food production, fishing, beverages, farming,
retail trade, information technology, commercial
property management, leasing and property
development, renewable power generation,
marine engineering and the leisure and
hospitality industry. The O&L Group is proud to
have NBL as a major player in the O&L stable.

NAMIBIA
BREWERIES
LIMITED
NAMIBIA
BREWERIES
LIMITED
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NBL PROFILE

NBL leads in the Namibian beer market with brands such as
Windhoek and Tafel and has a significant share of the region’s
premium beer category. Beer is our dominant portfolio
category, comprising 95.2% of total volumes this year.

Our extensive distribution ensures that our products
are widely available throughout the Southern African
Development Community (SADC) and exported to a total
of 17 countries outside Namibia and South Africa. Our
partnership with Heineken South Africa is an important
anchor for production and distribution in South Africa,
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report

Beer – Namibia

2020
Risk and
opportunities report

2021 volume contribution
per category

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

We are committed to promoting the responsible use of alcohol.
NBL’s responsible drinking initiatives create awareness about
the responsible enjoyment of alcohol, and the potential
consequences for society that can result from the harmful
use thereof.

2021

Managing
director’s report

The portfolio caters for a wide range of consumer segments,
spread across the price ladder. We continuously enhance our
offerings based on market research and consumer feedback.

Volume contribution per category

Our context
and strategy

Our portfolio features a range of other beverages including:
z carbonated soft drinks, water and fruit juice (softs) for
sale to all consumers
z low and non-alcoholic beverages aimed at adult consumers
z alcoholic products, including ciders, for sale to adults only

Botswana, Lesotho and Eswatini. Through this partnership
and our combined portfolio of brands, we maximise supply
synergies and route-to-market efficiencies.

Our
profile

Our Windhoek brewery is one of only a few large-scale
commercial breweries in Africa that brew according to the
German Reinheitsgebot (“Purity Law”) of 1516, which prescribes
that malted barley, hops and water are the only ingredients used
in brewing. Our commitment to the Reinheitsgebot guarantees
quality beer brewed from safe, natural ingredients.

Chairperson’s
statement

W

ith a proud Namibian beer brewing legacy of more than 100 years, NBL
is the country’s market leader in beverage manufacturing and one of the
last few independently owned commercial-scale breweries in southern Africa.
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Namibia is our home and core volume market.
While we are diversifying our portfolio, beer
remains at the heart of our business.

Annual financial
statements
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OUR BEVERAGE
BRANDS

O

ur portfolio is diverse, combining long-time favourites and fresh
new experiences. This means that consumers can switch between
brands while staying loyal to the quality products they associate with
NBL. We target our marketing and promotions responsibly, and adhere to
the Self-Regulating Alcohol Industry Forum’s (SAIF) Code of Commercial
Communication and Conduct.

MAINSTREAM SEGMENT

Our Profile

The mainstream segment is the core of our portfolio. It provides choice through a range of quality
offerings that complement various occasions and are suited to repertoire consumption.

Windhoek Draught is a
refreshing easy-drinking
beer, perfect for
socialising.

Tafel Lite is refreshing
with a crisp taste. It has
27% less glycaemic
carbohydrates per
100-ml compared to
Tafel Lager.

Tafel Lager is known as
Namibia’s finest for its smooth,
superior taste. It is described
as an ideal balance between
refreshment, flavour and
bitterness.

Strongbow is the
world’s favourite cider.
Made from real apples
and is refreshing by
nature.

Visit our website at www.nambrew.com to learn more about each brand’s positioning, formats and sizes, and the
projects, people and causes they sponsor.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

13

We craft premium offerings from imported quality ingredients to meet a growing consumer need
for brands that signify status and individuality.

About
this report

PREMIUM BEER

Chairperson’s
statement
Our context
and strategy

Heineken is loved and
enjoyed in nearly 200
countries worldwide.
The iconic green bottle and
red star is known around the
globe and represents a
world-class experience.

Our
profile

Windhoek Lager, NBL’s
flagship export brand,
is renowned for its
distinctive, hoppy flavour
and crisp aftertaste.

Managing
director’s report

The Hansa Draught
beer, Namibia’s
original on tap offering
provides consumers
with the freshest beer
available and is perfect
for socialising.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The Camelthorn range of
speciality beers is carefully
crafted by our brew masters,
thereby creating crafted beer
experiences that can be
enjoyed by anyone.

Governance
report

VALUE SEGMENT

Risk and
opportunities report

This category offers quality beer at affordable prices for consumers seeking value brands that do
not compromise on quality.

Remuneration
report
Notice of annual
general meeting
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King Lager is a smooth, golden beer with 5% alcohol by volume that is brewed
to the same high standards that consumers trust from beers made by NBL.

14
LOW AND NON-ALCOHOLIC BEER
This category offers a lighter alternative to consumers who seek the refreshment and the taste of beer,
however, have chosen to consume alcohol in moderation or have chosen abstinence. It caters for those
who make deliberate lifestyle and health choices.

Our Profile

Windhoek Light is a true light
beer, low in kilojoules and alcohol,
brewed with extra Hallertau hops
for a full-bodied flavour.

Tafel Radler is a refreshing
fusion of Tafel Lager and a
zesty thirst-quenching citrus
juice, either lemon or
grapefruit. The ideal balance
between refreshment and
natural flavours.

Windhoek Non-alcoholic
offers the same consistent
quality and taste as a
full-strength Windhoek beer,
however, without the alcohol.

Horizon is an expertly
brewed non-alcoholic beer
balanced with the flavours of
either lemon, apple or berries.
Crisp refreshment without the
alcohol, brewed for any
occasion.

SOFTS/WATER PORTFOLIO
We diversify our products into categories that appeal to consumers who abstain from alcohol consumption,
either as a lifestyle choice or on select occasions, and also for consumers younger than the legal drinking
age of 18. This range actively supports our responsible drinking agenda.

AquaSplash is a
range of healthy,
Namibian mineral
water, available as still,
sparkling and flavoured
sparkling bottled water.

Fruitree is a nectar juice range with a wide
selection of flavours that are satisfying,
nutritious and full of character. It is trusted to
consistently provide a great tasting, quality
beverage that contains no preservatives.

McKane is a range of quality beverages produced in Namibia. With
a choice of five variants, as a mixer, McKane perfectly complements
any spirit, alcoholic or non-alcoholic infusion. The range includes
flavours like Lemonade and Grapefruit, that can also be enjoyed as
a thirst-quenching soft drink for any occasion.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Chairperson’s
statement

Our brands are recognised for quality against beers from
around the world and have a long track record of awards.

About
this report

AWARDS FOR NBL BRANDS

DLG AWARDS 2021

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report

Read more about our
DLG award track
record on the inside
front cover.

Our
profile

The DLG test is one of the most demanding Reinheitsgebot beer tests
worldwide. Beers from 131 breweries, including participation from
Germany, Switzerland, Austria and Belgium. Beers are subjected to
extensive quality checks over three months, including a blind sensory
tasting. The testing is done by experts who assess the beers based on
scientific requirements in individual test procedures.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Gold

Silver
Governance
report

AFRICA BEER CUP 2021

Swakopmund Brewing Company: Urbock

Silver

Camelthorn Urbock

Remuneration
report

Gold

Risk and
opportunities report

The African Beer Cup is an annual competition seeking out the best
beers on the African continent. Small and large breweries operating
in any African country participate with beers double-judged by a
hand-picked panel of qualified beer judges and industry experts.

Annual financial
statements

Bronze Swakopmund Brewing Company: Helles

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

Read more about the
Swakopmund Brewing
Company on page 18.
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OUR GEOGRAPHIC FOOTPRINT
KEY FACTS

16

18

796

99.5%

6

82.27

BRANDS IN OUR PORTFOLIO
OF WHICH NBL PRODUCES 13

PERMANENT EMPLOYEES

DEPOTS IN NAMIBIA

4.7
LITRES AVERAGE WATER
USED PER LITRE OF
BEVERAGE PRODUCED

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

EXPORT DESTINATIONS,
INCLUDING SOUTH AFRICA

EMPLOYEES ARE NAMIBIAN

TONS OF SURPLUS CO2 SOLD

17

About
this report

Our
profile
Managing
director’s report

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Other
African
countries

2.01%

Tanzania

0.76%

Zambia

Risk and
opportunities report

Remuneration
report

NAMIBIA

75.75%

20.54%

Notice of annual
general meeting
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Annual financial
statements

SOUTH AFRICA

Governance
report

0.78%

Our context
and strategy

Rest of
the world

Chairperson’s
statement

0.16%

SUMMARY OF VOLUME
SHARE PER MARKET/REGION
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OUR VALUE
CHAIN AT A
GLANCE
We are working with start-ups and new suppliers to
increase local supply capacity.

INPUTS
z Raw material imported from Europe: malted barley and hops
z Imported packaging material from South Africa and Angola:
glass, cans and crown corks
z Local packaging material: plastic shrink wrapping, plastic
and paper labels, corrugated packaging, trays and crates
z Local natural resources: water from the City of Windhoek
and boreholes
z Electricity: NamPower, stand-by generators
z Renewable energy: biomass boiler and solar panels

We find ways to minimise the water we use to make
sure that there is more available for communities
and animals
We use renewable energy generated by the biomass
boiler and solar panels to improve our energy mix
We buy raw material and packaging from a range of
suppliers who provide jobs and livelihoods in their
communities
Our packaging material includes a significant portion of
returnable bottles which are recycled to reduce waste

Our Profile

z Heavy fuel oil and diesel fuel for generators

Beer brewing is water and
energy-intensive. By using natural
ingredients and state-of-the-art
technology, we make sure we brew
as sustainably as possible.
We produce alcoholic and
non-alcoholic beverages to
ensure consumers have
alternative choices available,
thereby preventing harm
caused by alcohol
We provide employment
and career opportunities
for women and men at our
production plants where
we drive efficiency through
technology and innovation
We capture and reuse the
CO2 generated during the
brewing process and sell
surplus CO2 to customers

PACKAGING
We have five packaging lines at our Windhoek site for
different sizes of glass bottles, cans and kegs. Under
normal conditions, we run four shifts per day 24/7.
We have ISO 9001:2015 (quality system), SANS
10330:2007 (food safety management) and HACCP
(food safety management) certifications and
South African Bureau of Standards support/audits
in place. This ensures that we operate according
to world-class standards.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

BEVERAGES AND BREWING
z Our brewery in Windhoek has a total technical brewing capacity
of three million hectolitres
z We supplement our brewing capacity through our production
agreement with Heineken SA who owns the Sedibeng Brewery
in Johannesburg
z The Swakopmund Brewing Company is a microbrewery in
Swakopmund that also serves as a pilot plant for crafting and
testing new beer recipes
z We brew most of our beers according to the German
Reinheitsgebot of 1516
z We produce soft drinks, low and non-alcoholic beverages at our
Windhoek plant. AquaSplash is sourced and bottled in
Okahandja and Outjo
z Cider, juice and Heineken beer is imported in bulk from South
Africa and packaged in Windhoek

We continue to replace old and
inefficient equipment to increase the
capacity of our packaging lines while
reducing electricity use.
We provide employment and career
opportunities for women and men in our
packaging and warehouse facilities
We optimise our processes to reduce the
use of natural resources and minimise
waste

19

Our customers include formal and informal wholesale and retail
trade outlets, for example, supermarkets, liquor stores, shebeens,
pubs and other hospitality outlets. We have a digital sales and
operational planning system that facilitates order taking and
inventory management between NBL and customers.

We adhere to the SAIF
Code of Commercial
Communication and
Conduct to promote the
responsible use of
alcohol

RECYCLING

Our value chain supports local enterprises

We encourage
consumers and
communities
to reduce
waste and to
recycle

Read more about our contribution to
the SDGs in the section from page 43.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

In our communities, we encourage reuse through recycling
and cleaning projects. NBL is a founding member of the
Recycle Namibia Forum.

We find ways to
reuse water within
our operations

Annual financial
statements

Through packaging redesign, we use less paper and continuously
explore ways to reduce the use of cartons and plastic. 63% of
production is packaged in returnable containers. Our returnable
containers have a return ratio of 99.6%.

With breakthrough thinking, we
find innovative ways to repurpose
and recycle waste.

Remuneration
report

NBL plays an active role in finding industry solutions to create
a circular economy. Our water reclamation plant reduces the
water used in our brewing and packaging plants and a recently
installed water treatment plant improves the quality and
reduces the cost per litre of water from our boreholes. We
also use equipment to extract more beer from spent yeast, thus
leading to even further water savings.

Risk and
opportunities report

We offer brands in
returnable bottles to
reduce waste

Governance
report

The end consumer for our beer products are adults with a broad
demographic profile spanning all income groups. NBL is committed
to driving safe and responsible drinking behaviour and invests in a
range of initiatives to equip consumers with the necessary
information to make informed decisions. NBL is a founding member
of SAIF and our Managing Director acts as Chairperson.

We support our
customers through trade
promotions and
marketing to grow their
businesses

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

RETAIL AND
CONSUMPTION

Managing
director’s report

NBL has been committed to support
local road safety campaigns and
promote responsible behaviour
among road users since 2006.

We protect labour rights and
promote safe and secure working
environments
Our context
and strategy

We export to 18 countries, including South Africa,
predominantly by road transport. Imperial Managed Solutions
(Proprietary) Limited is our primary transport outsourced partner.
The secondary distribution between depots and customers is
managed by NBL’s fleet of trucks and employees.

Our transport provider is using
specialised trucks for improved
and faster handling and to
decrease losses.

Our
profile

NBL delivers products to six depots and
five agencies in Namibia.

Chairperson’s
statement

WAREHOUSING
AND DISTRIBUTION

About
this report

O

ur breakthrough culture drives us to be innovative across all the elements
of our value chain. We are further inspired by the contribution we can
make towards the SDGs to solve common challenges and preserve our resources.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS
W

e create and share value as we work with our stakeholders. When
we collaborate, co-create and solve mutual challenges, we create
breakthrough opportunities for all.
Our stakeholders are the individuals or groups who can be
affected by or affect NBL’s business activities, outputs or
outcomes, or who can materially influence NBL’s ability to
create and preserve value over time.
Our purpose and strategic outcomes set out on page 29
were formulated with our stakeholders in mind. Our values,
also on page 29, define how we behave towards
stakeholders and how we do business with them.

SHAREHOLDERS AND PROVIDERS OF
CAPITAL

z To ensure that stakeholder engagement is practised in a
proactive, strategic and responsible manner, in line with
our values

We have 1 443 shareholders who invest in NBL to grow the
value of their shares. Our shareholders and funders require
historical and forward-looking information to make an
informed assessment about allocating their capital and
maintaining acceptable levels of risk. To retain them as
long-term partners who support the business, we
communicate a balanced overview of our performance and
implementation of our strategy. We also pay regular
dividends which increased by an average of 7% over the
last five years. They further expect us to grow the business
responsibly and to manage risks effectively while meeting
legislative and compliance requirements.

z To communicate our contribution to society while
leveraging key reputation drivers

CONSUMERS

We take every opportunity to integrate stakeholder
engagement into operations and planning. Our policy
on Stakeholder Engagement includes the following aims:
z To create a receptive, informed and business-friendly
political, social and regulatory environment within
which we can best achieve our strategic and
commercial objectives

Our Profile

We consider the impact on our stakeholder groups and the
interdependencies we create throughout our value chain in
everything we do. Our major stakeholder groups are:

z To remove barriers to trade and overcome challenges
z To ensure the consistency and continuity of corporate
social investment activities across the Group
z To provide a framework for the allocation of resources
We want to:
z Enhance the lives and well-being of the societies where
we operate
z Enhance business sustainability by contributing to
broader socio-economic upliftment and the betterment
of the societies where we operate
z Enhance business sustainability by improving and
maintaining stakeholder loyalty and support
z Ensure NBL remains a truly committed and caring
corporate citizen

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Our consumers are from all income levels across a range of
geographic locations. We engage with them through
experiences that connect them to our purpose and offer
them quality brands that anticipate their needs and exceed
their expectations. Evolving consumer demands lead us to
provide them with superior beverage brands that are
relevant, sustainable, widely available and aspirational.

EMPLOYEES
Our 796 employees are essential for our success. Our
leadership team applies the Leading Genius methodology
to support them to participate in a breakthrough thinking
work environment. Leading Genius is grounded in our
unique way of thinking. We believe that everyone has

21

Remuneration
report

We support Government in its initiatives to stimulate
economic and social development. We contribute to
Government’s Harambee National Prosperity Plan II
and Vision 2030. We continue to engage with
Government on key issues such as water security to
ensure alignment on Namibia’s challenges. NBL displays
good corporate citizenship in the ethical and transparent
manner we conduct business and drive the responsible
consumption agenda.

Risk and
opportunities report

We are committed to the strategic procurement of goods
and services by building partnerships with key suppliers,
promoting local purchasing as well as growing small and
medium enterprises. We ensure fair and standard
procurement processes that improve supply chain
performance in terms of cost, quality, delivery, flexibility
and innovation. In selecting suppliers, we also consider
sustainability, health and safety aspects. We do not contract

GOVERNMENT

Governance
report

SUPPLIERS

Through collaboration, we develop synergies, expertise,
growth opportunities and build trustworthy relationships.
We have earned trust by rewarding customers through
events and promotions, and through continued
sponsorships and investments into their communities.
A large portion of our customers serve the informal market
and benefit from our support to improve their businesses
and grow volumes. If they do well, we do well. We also
work with them to reduce the harmful effects of alcohol
abuse through educational campaigns.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

In celebration of NBL’s 100 years’ milestone, we led a
comprehensive community charitable initiative providing
upliftment in all regions of Namibia as a token of goodwill
and gratitude.

We create value for our customers through our direct
interaction with them, and via our strategic partnership
with Heineken SA. We believe in dialogue so that we
understand their business objectives, their pain points and
their broader ambitions in life so that we can craft mutually
beneficial solutions.

Managing
director’s report

Being responsive to community interests is key to living our
purpose. In bringing to life our collective purpose of
Creating a Future, Enhancing Life in the communities in
which we operate, we are committed to enhance the lives
of our Namibian communities by making a positive impact
and contribution towards education, skills development,
natural resource protection and community health and
safety. These stakeholders are important partners in
providing NBL with reputational and societal legitimacy as
they assist in identifying and highlighting challenges to be
addressed and finding solutions.

Our customers range from formal and informal wholesale
to retail trade outlets in the markets in which we operate.
Some of these relationships go back years, sometimes
even generations.

Our context
and strategy

COMMUNITIES

CUSTOMERS/STRATEGIC PARTNERS
Our
profile

NBL offers career development, training and transformation
opportunities, as well as remuneration and rewards. We
support our employees to bring their individual and our
collective purpose to life.

To develop small and local suppliers, we offer
preferential payment terms and provide technical
and administrative support.

Chairperson’s
statement

We have an exceptional talent pool in the O&L Group,
with strong succession capabilities. NBL offers an
employment experience that attracts and retains optimal
talent for our operational needs. We combine our
employees’ diverse skills and competencies to ensure
our business is sustainable.

on price alone, but consider supplier reputation and ethics,
availability and on-time delivery of goods or services,
availability for and access to after-sales services,
competence and ability to supply the goods or service
to specification.

About
this report

Genius, and they need only to access and recognise
their potential. By tapping into and maximising this
resource, people can solve complex challenges and
realise their ambitions.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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SEVEN REASONS TO
INVEST IN NBL
N

BL is the only entity in the privately-held O&L Group that is listed on the
NSX. We listed in 1996 and have since been distributing regular dividends
to shareholders. The value of annual ordinary dividends and net asset value
per share increased by an average of 7% and 9% respectively over the past
five years.

PURPOSE, LONGEVITY AND TRACK RECORD
NBL has a proud legacy of more than 100 years of quality beer brewing in Namibia. We continue
building on this foundation through purposeful leadership in our work and our communities. We base
our decisions on our purpose, Creating a Future, Enhancing Life, and contribute to ambitious financial
and non-financial targets towards 2025. Read more in the strategy section on page 24.

Our Profile

A LEADING PORTFOLIO OF BRANDS
NBL owns the two top beer brands in the mainstream segment in Namibia: Windhoek Draught and
Tafel Lager. Windhoek Lager was Namibia’s first premium beer and still remains as NBL’s most premium
and aspirational brand. Heineken is Namibia’s preferred imported premium brand and King Lager holds
the No 1 position in the value segment. We regularly launch new offerings, particularly in the low and
non-alcohol segments, with Horizon the latest addition to the portfolio. Our brands consistently win
international awards for quality. Read more about our portfolio and awards in the Managing Director’s
report from page 34.

PROFITABILITY FOCUS
Although our purpose guides us to think
about more than profit, NBL has been astute
over the past years in managing costs when
volumes fluctuate. We are quick to
recalibrate expenses to protect profitability
when market conditions and demand curves
change. This protects the sustainability of our
business. Read more about our financial
results in the Managing Director’s report
from page 34.

Operating profit vs volumes
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2017

2018
Chairperson’s
statement

2019

2020
Our
profile

Our strong relationships with customers and suppliers
have been invaluable during market and supply chain
disruptions, as was evident during COVID-19. Heineken
SA’s contribution to profit before tax was significantly
impacted by COVID-19. Our agreements in terms of
production, marketing and sales remain sound and
well-managed despite alcohol bans and trade
restrictions in South Africa. Our partnership with
Heineken SA remains one of NBL’s long-term growth
opportunities. Read more about stakeholder
relationships in the section from page 20.

Equity income/loss from associate (N$ million)
About
this report

LONG-STANDING RELATIONSHIPS
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Our context
and strategy

EMBEDDED ENVIRONMENTAL FOCUS

Managing
director’s report

In a country with a scarce resource profile, NBL has always been prudent and innovative in its use of
natural inputs. Our biomass boiler has been providing alternative energy since 2016, boreholes offer
alternative water supply during drought conditions, whereas wastewater management and beer
extraction capabilities from excess yeast further optimise the natural resources we consume. NBL is
one among a handful of CO2 self-sufficient breweries in the southern hemisphere. Read more about
our contribution to the environment in the section on the SDGs from page 43.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

PEOPLE WITH PURPOSE

operation (N$ million)
2017

2018
Remuneration
report

The O&L Group’s Vision 2025 metrics drive us to
make a step-change in growth. This will create value
for stakeholders in the long term, and require that we
make focused investments in assets and relationships
that will bring scale and efficiency, and enable us to
find new opportunities.

Retain earnings reinvested to maintain and develop

Risk and
opportunities report

INVESTING FOR FUTURE GROWTH

Governance
report

At NBL we have a work environment where trust and affinity are at high levels, which means we can
have tough discussions that lead to breakthrough results and empowerment of our employees. Our Great
Place to Work® Trust Index score of 75% confirm that employees see NBL as a great workplace where
we care about one another, where we celebrate achievements, and where we can count on one another.
We have inspiring and effective leadership and emphasise that people come first. Read more about our
employees in the section on the SDGs from page 43.

2019
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Read more about NBL’s prospects and
plans for growth in the Managing
Director’s report from page 34.
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OUR
CONTEXT
AND
STRATEGY
“Natural and sustainable ingredients are
not only creative options but could be
an insurance policy in an era of extreme
weather. As more people work remotely,
beer and cider can serve as catalysts
for out-of-home socialisation. Ongoing
demand for alcohol-free products will
require alcohol companies to diversify
their portfolios.”
Mintel: The Future of Beer: 2020

NAMIBIA
BREWERIES
LIMITED
NAMIBIA
BREWERIES
LIMITED
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About
this report

OUR OPERATING
CONTEXT

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Source: The African Development Bank – https://www.afdb.org/en/
countries/southern-africa/namibia/namibia-economic-outlook

Managing
director’s report

As a result of the pandemic, NBL navigated distressing
events such as alcohol bans, on-trade restrictions, restaurant
and tavern closures, and a heavily impacted tourism and
hospitality industry. Alcohol bans and trade restrictions in
South Africa disrupted demand within the country while
limiting supply opportunities from Namibia. Read more
about our response and performance in the Managing
Director’s report from page 34.

Our context
and strategy

The Bank of Namibia has maintained an accommodative
policy stance to support the domestic economy. It reduced
the interest rate by a cumulative 275 basis points to 3.75%
in 2020. Inflation remained subdued during the 2016 to
2020 period, reflecting a steady decline in housing prices
and transport costs. Inflation is expected to rise in 2021
and 2022, with anticipated increases in prices of housing,
utilities, and food and non-alcoholic beverages, coupled
with an expected depreciation of the Namibia Dollar.

The COVID-19 pandemic also caused an overall increase in
unemployment, inequality and poverty. The private sector,
including NBL, supported the public sector with significant
donations to alleviate shortages in terms of facilities and
equipment thus bolstering overall health services.

Our
profile

While GDP is expected to grow in 2021 and 2022, risks to
recovery include the continued impact of COVID-19 and
persistently low international prices for some of Namibia’s
export commodities. The relaxation of travel restrictions
and the COVID-19 vaccine-rollout is expected to positively
contribute to tourism, as confidence and access are boosted.

Chairperson’s
statement

T

he COVID-19 pandemic hit Namibia’s economy hard with a resulting
contraction of 7.9% in 2020 and declines in tourism, retail trade and
investments. This follows on poor economic performances in previous years,
with contractions in 2019 and 2018, largely due to struggling construction
and mining sectors, persistent drought, and weakening demand for Namibian
exports.

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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BEVERAGE AND
CONSUMER TRENDS
W

Our Context and Strategy

e track and interpret global and local consumer trends using market
intelligence and global research. These insights drive portfolio innovation
and ensure that we remain abreast of evolving consumer needs.
Trends relevant to our portfolio

Our response

GLOBAL ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION
CONTINUES TO FALL

NBL continues to innovate into low and non-alcoholic offerings for
consumers as they gravitate towards lower alcohol consumption or
abstinence. We continue to diversify our beverage portfolio through
low and non-alcoholic versions of our popular beers as well as
softs, fruit juice and water. This year we expanded our non-alcoholic
portfolio with the launch of Horizon, a range of non-alcoholic

According to the World Health Organization (WHO),
there has been an increase in alcohol consumption since
2000 and a plateau from 2010 to 2015, followed by a
recent decline. Research firm IWSR estimates that global
alcohol consumption was down 8% in 20201. This can
be partly attributed to government bans on alcohol to
prevent COVID-19 transmission and reduce the burden on
hospitals.

flavoured beers with less than 0.5% alcohol.

Related strategic focus areas:

While alcohol consumption declines, the shift to the low
and non-alcoholic category is steadily gaining momentum,
although at a slower pace, driven by consumers adopting a
healthier lifestyle while still enjoying the adult taste profiles
associated with drinking alcohol.

THE RISE OF THE CONSCIOUS CONSUMER
Consumers are increasingly aware of the impact of their
consumption habits on the environment or society. As
a result, they are demanding greater empathy from the
brands they consume. They expect transparency and
ethical behaviour from brands, and the sentiment is
intensified by social media commentary. If a brand does
not meet their expectations, they will move to one that
does. This is a global phenomenon that will impact
African brands.

Engaging people, engaging experiences
Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

Being purpose-driven, we have always considered social, ethical
and environmental aspects in our operations and built our brands
on shared value propositions. We expect momentum in consumer
and shareholder activism regarding ESG issues including climate,
plastic waste and sustainable farming practices. To this end, we
continue to reduce our carbon footprint, water use and waste, and
focus on recycling.
Our corporate social investments and sponsorships support
projects that improve society and support conservation and skills
development. We are staunch supporters of the Self-Regulating
Alcohol Industry Forum (SAIF) and ensure we market products
responsibly. This means, for example, not promoting our nonalcoholic offering of alcoholic mother-brands to underage consumers.
All NBL brands encourage responsible behaviour across both
traditional and digital media through the #TakesANation campaign.
All brands will integrate responsible consumption messages into their
campaigns going forward, thereby reaching a broader consumer base
than through corporate communication alone.

Related strategic focus areas:
Engaging people, engaging experiences
Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

1

https://www.thedrinksbusiness.com/2020/11/global-alcohol-consumption-to-fall-8-this-year/

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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PREMIUMISATION

Consumers are under pressure due to COVID-19 and are therefore
even more price-conscious. Despite this, we continue to respond
to the premiumisation trend by offering products and brands that
appeal to an aspirational consumer. This includes craft and limitededition brews. Windhoek Lager is still considered to be NBL’s most
premium brand. Heineken is Namibia’s preferred imported premium
brand and provides consumers with global sponsorship opportunities
like bringing the UEFA (Union of European Football Associations)
Champions League to Namibia through local viewing experiences.

In recent years, the food and beverage industry has
seen a consumer demand trend in the direction of more
“premium” products. Characterised by an increased focus
on flavour, high-quality ingredients and more appealing
packaging, premiumisation has had a big impact on the
type of products consumers want. In Namibia, consumers
seek out aspirational beverage brands.

Chairperson’s
statement

Our response

About
this report

Trends relevant to our portfolio

Related strategic focus areas:
Our
profile

Engaging people, engaging experiences
Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

NBL has a reputation for continued innovation and new product
launches that cater for consumers looking to try new tastes.
Innovation includes new flavours, seasonal brews, new packaging
and engaging marketing campaigns. We consult with our consumers
to develop new products. This includes responding to a desire for
healthier products by reducing sugar content. We continuously
balance consumer demand for variety with the demand for trusted,
unchanging favourites.

Related strategic focus areas:

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Portfolio changes follow consumer demand. We launched Horizon
in the non-alcoholic category. We decided to discontinue the
Camelthorn brand in Namibia, as consumer acceptance of
the craft beer category fell short of our expectations. However,
Camelthorn Urbock, is still available locally as it remains a popular
seasonal brew in Namibia.

Managing
director’s report

Consumers seek new and innovative beverages and
continue to expand their taste repertoires. These include
nostalgic beverages that bring back favourite memories
as well as novel beverages that include new, exciting
ingredients. Hard seltzer options, for example, are starting
to compete with light beer offerings. The former features
a broad range of flavours and lower calories. The craft
beer industry, which has been a driver for variety, started
reinventing itself as the world slowly emerges from the
pandemic. This follows major shifts in consumption
occasions, buying platforms, restrictions in terms of
experiences and price sensitivity.

Our context
and strategy

THE DEMAND FOR VARIETY CONTINUES

Engaging people, engaging experiences

We continue to drive cost control to offer consumers better value and
to remain competitive. Value segment brands such as King Lager offer
consumers a quality clear beer at an attractive price point. Several
brands were repackaged to help us reduce the cost of goods, without
compromising on quality, legal requirements and visual identity. We
also remained responsive in how we reward consumers, focusing on
their daily needs. This included vouchers for food and airtime rather
than traditional items such as T-shirts and caps. We also know that
availability and affordability will remain a winning factor for NBL.

Related strategic focus areas:

Remuneration
report

Engaging people, engaging experiences
Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

Notice of annual
general meeting
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Our research shows that 75% of consumers surveyed
declared that their income has been negatively
affected by Namibia’s economic slowdown. As
disposable incomes shrink, they seek greater value
and discount options among the brands they trust.
This means that the value segment continues to
expand at a rapid rate with price pressure from our
competitors. Our research indicates that budgetconscious consumers have cut back on impulse
spending. They are now hyper-conscious of expenses
and only making purchases “worth the cost”.

Risk and
opportunities report

CONSUMERS SEEK VALUE OFFERINGS

Governance
report

Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey
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Trends relevant to our portfolio

Our response

AT-HOME CONSUMPTION INCREASES

NBL’s marketing activities are aimed at unlocking this new at-home
opportunity, while supporting trade customers to boost their bottom
line, despite restricted trading hours. Our McKane brand responded to
at-home consumption by creating at-home mixology kits and recipes.
Some of our beer brands offered larger cans, which are economically
better suited to home consumption.

The COVID-19 lockdown restrictions and fear of
contracting the virus have seen at-home consumption
increase. This is unfortunately harming small businesses
including bars and restaurants serving alcohol and have
resulted in the closure of some outlets. Our research
indicates that on-site consumption customers moved from
holding larger ranges to minimal stock holding: focusing
on brands that sell more quickly and experience higher
consumer demand.

Related strategic focus areas:
Engaging people, engaging experiences
Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

E-COMMERCE EXPECTED TO GROW
COVID-19 accelerated e-commerce across all consumer
categories, including alcohol sales. As on-site consumption
drops and at-home consumption increases, direct to
consumer offerings like subscription boxes and alcohol
delivery services are opening up new revenue streams for
brands, as consumers buy their alcohol online.

We have invested significantly in digital transformation, including
e-commerce capabilities. Our digital journey has and will further
improve our customer and consumer engagement, sales efficiencies
and ultimately drive overall future volume growth.

Related strategic focus areas:
Engaging people, engaging experiences

Our Context and Strategy

Owning the future, creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

A never-ending sense of curiosity helps us to understand our
consumers better. We get to know about the things that excite, inspire
and entertain them, while also discovering what concerns them so
that our brands can contribute in a positive and meaningful way to
their lives.
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A PURPOSE-LED
STRATEGY FOR THE FUTURE

Chairperson’s
statement

Creating a Future, Enhancing Life

PURPOSE

HOW WE
LEAD

Live the values | Lead growth | Take bold stands | Cause alignment
Be authentic | Inspire innovation | Deliver extraordinary results

LEADERSHIP

WHAT WE
DELIVER

Owning the future,
creating new realities,
enjoying the journey

Everyone matters
Everyone’s contribution
matters

All stakeholders purposefully
engaged

Lasting relationships,
sustaining the future

Everyone enjoys
the benefits of
leading their life

Everyone appreciated,
recognised and valued

Everyone operating in
Genius, having fun,
bringing out the best
versions of themselves

Creating new-to-world
outcomes

Unleashing the unlimited
potential in everyone

Delivering beyond
expectations

A culture of continuous
innovation, anything
is possible

VALUES
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e use the O&L Group 2025 Breakthrough Strategy and vision metrics to drive
behaviour, decisions and impact.

Annual financial
statements

Let’s Talk | Let’s Do It | Hooked on Results | We Grow People | We All Serve
Naturally Today for Tomorrow | We do the Right Things Right

Remuneration
report

Free to serve, owning
the whole

STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES

Risk and
opportunities report

Always learning, learning
from everyone, open to
new possibilities

Governance
report

Engaging people,
engaging experiences

STRATEGIC
AREAS OF
FOCUS

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Everyone leading,
everyone making a
positive impact

WHAT
WE DO

OUR
FOUNDATION

2025 VISION

Leading Genius | Global Top 25 GPTW
10 000 Employment Opportunities Secured | N$4 Billion EBIT

Managing
director’s report

WHAT WE
FOCUS ON

A CATALYST FOR POSITIVE CHANGE,
DELIVERING NEW REALITIES, FULFILLING DREAMS

Our context
and strategy

WHY WE
EXIST

Our
profile

2025 BREAKTHROUGH STRATEGY
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OUR PROGRESS FOR 2021 IN TERMS OF ACHIEVING THE GROUP’S 2025
VISION METRICS:
Leading Genius
We expanded Leading Genius through our Senior Leadership Team that focused on:
z Unlocking the full potential in each team member by empowering them to be the best version of themselves
z Supporting middle management to entrench leadership competencies and ensure communication channels are
building trust
z Improving the overall employment experience through engagement and innovation
We measure Leading Genius through a GAP International performance diagnostic tool. This is a data-driven approach
to measure and address the team dynamics that directly impact execution and results. It measures five key factors that
determine the capacity of individuals, teams, and organisations to execute strategy and produce extraordinary business
results over time.

Our Context and Strategy

Factors of breakthrough performance
Affinity: measures the strength and quality of relationships. Impacts
speed and ease of execution.

May 2021
September 2020
Senior Leadership Senior Leadership
Team average
Team average
score
score
(Out of 10)
(Out of 10)
9.1

9.5

10.0

10.0

Risk: measures the freedom to challenge the status quo,
communicate unorthodox ideas, and take bold actions. Impacts
creativity and innovation.

8.9

9.9

Ownership: measures the degree to which individuals hold
themselves personally accountable for the performance of their
leader, team, or organisation. Impacts reliability and consistency of
breakthrough results.

9.6

9.7

Interdependence: measures the willingness to seek and integrate
diverse points of view. Impacts superior quality of results.

9.1

9.6

Purpose: measures the power of connection between an individual
and the largest expression of the organisation’s reason for being.
Impacts spirit, engagement, and resilience.

Global Top 25 Great Place to Work®
NBL’s overall individual Great Place to Work® Trust Index score for 2021 was 75%. This is an overall improvement of
3% from our 72% score in 2020, with an excellent 96% participation rate. The O&L Group’s overall Great Place to
Work® Trust Index survey score for 2021 was 67%.

Read more about our results in the SDG section from page 43.
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10 000 Employment Opportunities Secured
We create employment for:
2020

796

827

Part-time employees

122

93

Contract positions

356

375

13

9

Project positions

Chairperson’s
statement

2021
Full-time employees

We create indirect jobs by:

z Building skills pipelines by contributing to educational community projects such as online learning

Our
profile

z Increasing our local supplier spend

Our context
and strategy

Read more about our contribution to Namibia’s economy under SDG 8 from page 52.

We achieved an EBIT of N$613 million this year through solid progress with the following initiatives:

z Loss efficiency and optimisation
z Brand innovation to evolve the portfolio through experiences and a more balanced offering
z Customer online ordering to entrench relationships
z Implementation of the sales and operational planning system to forecast demand for optimal procurement,
production and distribution

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

z Packaging line and stock-keeping unit optimisation

Managing
director’s report

N$4 Billion EBIT

z Optimising our distribution model and route-to-market
Governance
report

z Growing market share in Namibia

Risk and
opportunities report

Read more about these initiatives in the Managing Director’s report from page 34.

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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We track progress with the implementation of the
Group’s Breakthrough Strategy and NBL’s specific related
priorities through a list of defined imperatives and a
vision dashboard. The Senior Leadership Team reviews
this monthly.
Divisions assess progress and identify the key
capabilities, resources and relationships that they need
to reach their targets. In the past year these included:
z Developing employee skills and competence
according to new business needs, especially new
technology
z Using the ‘connect to inspire’ employee engagement
process to enable higher competence, performance
and fun at work
z Using different talent management programmes as
hubs for talent pools in the Group
z Supporting SMEs with skills transfer in basic
administration and finance

The strategic priorities that we
will explore going forward are:

1

PURPOSEFUL LEADERSHIP
THROUGH OUR PEOPLE AND
VALUES

2

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION
THROUGH PEOPLE SYSTEMS
AND PROCESSES

3

PRODUCTION EFFICIENCIES
THROUGH COST
OPTIMISATION AND SCALE
BENEFITS

4

GEOGRAPHIC EXPANSION
THROUGH FOCUS MARKET
INVESTMENTS

5

PORTFOLIO
EXPANSION THROUGH
CUSTOMER-CENTRIC
INNOVATION

6

VALUE CHAIN EXPANSION
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS
AND INTEGRATION

7

RESPONSIBLE CITIZENSHIP
THROUGH INCLUSIVE
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Our Context and Strategy

z Intense, but selective information sharing and data
collection initiatives with other stakeholders
z Increasing local supplier spend to mitigate supply
chain disruption and exchange rate risk
The 2025 Breakthrough Strategy enables all employees
to be the best version of themselves while pursuing the
Group’s vision and living their purpose.
A focus on core leadership behaviours guide how NBL’s
leaders act and communicate the strategy to employees.
The strategy is further cascaded through team meetings,
Human Capital interventions using WhatsApp groups,
TikTok videos that emphasise the importance of
psychological safety and teamwork in the digital age and
video messages from leaders. In the Great Place to
Work® survey, individual employees expressed their
appreciation about having the opportunity to co-create
their team’s strategy through conversations with their
line manager.
We started using a new performance management tool
in July 2020. The ‘connect to inspire’ tool provides
employees with an opportunity to own and drive their
growth through purposeful performance discussions with
their line managers.
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HOW WE SEE OUR FUTURE:

Chairperson’s
statement

OUR VISION STORY

After interviewing several people either working for or
associated with NBL, there is overall consensus as to why
they believe NBL was a leader when it comes to workplace
excellence and financial performance. NBL embraced and
has given deliberate attention to five key enablers:

Managing
director’s report

1. visionary leadership

Our context
and strategy

N

2. purpose-driven culture
3. innovative route-to-market
4. consumer-centricity

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

BL has just been
recognised as one
of the best workplaces in
the world. The Company
took its place among the
global Top 10 Greatest
Places to Work.

The news coincides with the release of Namibia Breweries
Limited (NBL) 2025 financial results: the Company delivered
exceptional earnings before interest and tax (EBIT), confirming
the correlation between creating a world-class employment
experience and outstanding bottom-line performance.

Our
profile

As part of the O&L Group’s strategy
development process, the NBL team
defined their own future success story.
This is an excerpt from a 2025 media
article that we envision for NBL, and
describes us as follows:

5. brand activism

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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MANAGING
DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
“Current market conditions demand that we
compete for every litre we sell. Fortunately, NBL
has a strong brand offering which enables us to
defend market share in all segments.”
Marco Wenk

Managing Director

HIGHLIGHTS

CHALLENGES

z Operating profit is close to 2019 levels at N$613
million despite lower volumes

z Namibia’s economic difficulties were exacerbated by
COVID-19

z Windhoek Draught and Tafel Lager retained the top
beer positions in Namibia – the former taking the lead
this year

z South African volumes and Heineken SA suffered from
multiple alcohol bans and curfews

z We demonstrated innovation through the launch of
Horizon and remain committed to the low and nonalcoholic category
z Digital transformation was stepped up significantly
z Great Place to Work® results improved since last year
despite a difficult year for employees
z Our beer brands demonstrated their strength by
obtaining both international as well as local awards

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

z Export markets experienced distribution and economic
challenges
z We made necessary remuneration decisions and
voluntary early retirement offers
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Our culture and breakthrough mindset carried us through
About
this report

a year where NBL employees demonstrated that nothing is
impossible. Even the most unexpected challenges brought
and future. Our loyal consumers continued to buy their
favourite brands, even though they were likely to have

Chairperson’s
statement

new ways to transform and improve the business, our lives

bought these from a different outlet and consumed their
Our
profile

beverage in a different setting than before.

Our context
and strategy
Notice of annual
general meeting
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Read more about our efforts to support those in need in
the section on the SDGs from page 43.

Remuneration
report

Fortunately, to date, there were no COVID-19 fatalities
among NBL employees, although many were impacted due
to family members or friends falling ill or being severely
affected by the virus. NBL recognises and provides
emotional support through several initiatives and
engagements.

Risk and
opportunities report

We are highly appreciative of Government being open to
engaging with the private sector and our industry to find
solutions that can prevent the social cost and impact
associated with alcohol harm. Government is cognisant of
the importance of the alcohol sector in terms of
employment, contribution to taxes and social support
provided to communities.

NBL continued serving Namibia and its people by helping
those in need. One example is our pledge of N$2 million to
secure a 1 500 m2 field hospital structure to provide 70
additional beds for Namibians in urgent need of
hospitalisation due to COVID-19. In addition, NBL took the
lead within the NCCI Private Sector Initiative to coordinate
and manage all facilities and equipment requirements to
support the Ministry of Health and Social Services during
the third wave of the pandemic.

Governance
report

As many governments used alcohol bans as one of the
measures to contain the virus, the pandemic raised the
urgency of alcohol policy reviews and trustworthy research.
We have been engaging with the Namibian Government
directly as a leading industry player as well as through our
industry representative body SAIF. The industry took the
initiative to voluntarily reduce advertising, on-site
promotional activity as well as aggressive trade deals during
lockdown to support Government’s efforts to limit
gatherings, encourage social distancing and reduce any
irresponsible consumption behaviour.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

COVID-19 conditions continued in Namibia, South Africa
and export markets. Trading conditions were characterised
by muted economic activity, trade restrictions, curfews,
disrupted supply chains, lockdown conditions, and a third
wave in Namibia towards the end of the financial year.
Although there were no alcohol bans in Namibia this year,
trade limitations included, for example curfews starting in
January 2021 and more stringent restrictions in place during
the second half of the financial year.

NBL launched the #TakesANation campaign in May 2020
to demonstrate our commitment to responsible
consumption. The campaign was aimed at encouraging
continued responsible behaviour when consuming
alcoholic beverages of any kind. It is a reminder to “Shop
Responsibly; Drink Responsibly; Socialise Responsibly;
Entertain Responsibly; and Enjoy Responsibly”. We gave
further momentum to the #TakesANation campaign in
December 2020 with the theme “When I drink, I never
drive”. This is a direct call to action for the nation to make
responsible choices that circumvent instances that could
result in drinking and driving.

Managing
director’s report

DEMONSTRATING LEADERSHIP IN
DIFFICULT TIMES
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BRAND PERFORMANCE
Windhoek Draught and Tafel Lager competed for the top
position in the Namibian beer market this year, with
Windhoek Draught taking the lead. This followed years of
successful investment behind the brand.

Managing Director’s Report

Tafel Lager however remains a strong mainstream segment
contender for the status of most loved brand in Namibia.
Tafel Lager launched a new campaign, Namibian Like You,
across various touchpoints in September 2020 and
introduced Responsible Like You on television in
December 2020. The campaign supported Tafel’s long-term
dominant position as it continued to sponsor the national
soccer team, The Tafel Lager Brave Warriors.
COVID-19 induced swings in demand were most evident in
the performance of Tafel Radler. The flavoured, low alcohol
brand was launched in October 2018 and enjoyed initial
demand that far exceeded expectations. During the height of
the lockdown, it was one of the few brands still formally on
sale, which created a temporary over-consumption curve. This
was followed by a sharp decline in the second half of 2020.
Consumers seemed to have rebelled against the low and
non-alcoholic category once the alcohol ban was lifted in
Namibia. This meant a slow recovery for Tafel Radler,
Windhoek Non-alcoholic and Windhoek Light to
pre-lock down volumes.
To counter potential negative associations with this
category, NBL launched a campaign to re-establish the
compelling reasons to choose these low and non-alcohol
brands. This category remains a focus for NBL. We will
continue to invest to have offerings available for consumers
as they gravitate to making responsible consumption
choices on certain occasions as well as choosing to
consume alcohol in moderation for health reasons.
King Lager is showing phenomenal regional growth,
tapping into consumers’ need for a quality value beer at an
affordable price point. The brand holds the No 1 position in
the value segment.
Both McKane and Heineken held their ground in a
challenging year and exceeded volume targets.
Strongbow, which is imported from Heineken SA,
unfortunately suffered from months of unavailability due to
the extended alcohol bans in South Africa. Advertising was
consequently put on hold, however, with the stock situation
stabilised, we are working towards regenerating the brand to
drive sales and re-establish a growth trajectory going forward.
Bottled water experienced a very challenging year. With
diminishing disposable income, consumers resorted to tap
water, household water filters and bulk water filled in their
own containers at retailers. The lack of international tourists
further impacted sales negatively. As house brands and
other commercial brands offer very deep discounts,
NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

targeting locals and driving volumes, AquaSplash has seen
an overall decline. The category remains under pressure
with price being a key driver of choice.
NBL launched the new Horizon non-alcoholic beer after
lockdown was lifted. Trading and promotional activity
restrictions are, however, still enforced in Namibia.
Consequently the launch focused on awareness and
sampling without any face-to-face interaction. NBL produced
5 000 sampling packs that were distributed through Dial A
Meal and off-trade stores nationally. Marketing support
included an exclusive drive-in movie experience, gift packs
and extensive social media campaigns.
Horizon contains less than 0.5% alcohol and is available in
three flavours: lemon, apple and berries. Although current
consumer preference is more towards alcoholic products,
we are pleased with the overall performance of the Horizon
brand, in particular the Lemon variant.
Brand and portfolio optimisation initiatives this year
included:
z NBL launched a strong repackaging drive. Packaging for
Windhoek Draught, Tafel Lager, Tafel Lite and
King Lager were all refreshed, resulting in significant
cost savings with no compromise on quality, legal
requirements and visual identity.
z King Lager was re-engineered, resulting in a 0.5%
reduction in alcohol content (ABV) to align the liquid’s
profile to consumers’ pallets.
z The rigorous stock-keeping unit (SKU) optimisation
exercise announced in NBL’s 2020 integrated report was
launched. Several SKUs that impacted negatively on
packaging line efficiencies and profitability were
discontinued due to low sales volumes.
z Camelthorn was discontinued in Namibia while
Camelthorn Urbock was retained as a seasonal
favourite.
z McKane Cranberry was discontinued due to declining
sales. While the remaining variants picked up the
volumes lost, we will continue to innovate through
additional flavours as consumers seek choice in the
mixer segment.
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Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report

Heineken SA Exports Company markets and distributes NBL
brands in Botswana, Lesotho and Eswatini. Through this
partnership and the combined portfolio of brands, we
maximise supply synergies and route-to-market efficiencies.
We invest directly to achieve growth in focus markets and
work with distributors in trading markets. In the first half of
the year, we concluded a distribution agreement in Texas,
USA, where NBL’s brands are gaining traction in
supermarket chains. In May 2021, we appointed a
distributor in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (DRC).
The latter market holds great potential for the Windhoek
brand, alongside our McKane range of premium mixers. In
Africa, the Windhoek brand is seen as aspirational, with a
strong premium positioning.

Governance
report
Annual financial
statements

Heineken SA continues to produce and package beers in
returnable bottles and cans at the Sedibeng Brewery in
South Africa for Windhoek and Tafel, whereas NBL now
produces most of the non-returnable NBL products for the
South African market in Windhoek. Heineken SA also
moved all Amstel and Heineken volumes to South Africa
due to low Namibian volumes. This resulted in licensed
sales of the Amstel brand in Namibia being discontinued.
Due to the low volumes and fewer SKU’s, overall bottling
line efficiencies improved.

Zambia lost momentum after a strong start in the first half of
the year. We signed a contract with a new distributor in
August 2021. The transition contributed to a drop of 16% in
overall export volumes against 2020, and a 7% decrease
compared to 2019. Zambia remains a focus country and
will be one of the major volume contributors going forward.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

From a production perspective, we have made several
changes to our agreement with Heineken SA in the past
18 months.

NBL differentiates its export markets as either focus or
trading markets. Focus markets include Tanzania, Zambia
and Kenya as these countries demonstrate high growth
potential. Tanzania remains our biggest export market.

Managing
director’s report

Given the uncertainty at the time, Heineken SA was initially
more conservative in their planning following the first
alcohol ban in South Africa, which unfortunately resulted in
some lost volumes in the demand spike that followed. A
much more aggressive growth stance was, however,
implemented in the second half of the year. As a result of all
these factors, royalty income from Heineken SA increased
by 5%, while the equity loss from associate decreased from
a loss of N$76 million last year to a loss of N$73 million
this year.

EXPORT MARKETS’ PERFORMANCE

Our context
and strategy

As a result, Heineken SA was not able to order the full
annual contracted volume for the South African market
resulting in a shortfall. The shortfall was captured in a
variation agreement which made provision for half of the
shortfall to be paid to NBL in cash while the remaining half
would be deferred and added to the production volumes to
be sent to Heineken SA by 30 April 2022. The agreement
also makes provision for dealing with similar shortfalls
in future.

Beverage categories other than beer in our portfolio were
under pressure. Ciders unfortunately experienced out of
stock situations while McKane suffered from low on-site
consumption demand and export disruptions. AquaSplash
and Fruitree volumes were down 36% and 9% respectively
although Fruitree recovered strongly towards the end of the
year and exceeded 2019 volumes during these months.

Our
profile

Namibian beer volumes constituted 75% of NBL’s total beer
volumes this year, despite difficult trading conditions and
disrupted supply chains. South African volumes, on the
other hand, were severely constrained due to alcohol bans
and trade restrictions, falling by 36% against 2020 and 51%
against 2019.

Chairperson’s
statement

Beer volumes in Namibia almost matched those achieved in
2019, which at that time showed healthy growth for the first
time in two years. 2021 volumes increased by 13% against
2020 and decreased by 2% compared to 2019. Last year,
overall volumes dipped by 16.6% compared to 2019 due
to severely impacted trade as a result of the pandemic
across most markets.

After the end of the financial year, at the end of July 2021,
the South African alcohol industry was hit by devastating
riots. Inventory valued at millions of South African Rands
was stolen, damaged or destroyed at warehouses and retail
premises across KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng. This included
Heineken’s Pinetown warehouse where office equipment,
crates, bottles and stock was looted. The looting
exacerbated supply chain disruptions created by COVID-19
and could prolong current production and logistical
challenges into the next financial year.

About
this report

STREAMLINED FOR SUCCESS
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NBL’s relationship with Heineken SA remains strong. On
the ground, weekly production and planning meetings
continue with common goals to improve efficiencies and
grow volumes.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
30 June 2021
N$’000

30 June 2020
N$’000

30 June 2019
N$’000

2 648 576

2 645 832

3 097 583

(2 035 950)

(2 192 589)

(2 445 672)

Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income
Net revenue
Operating expenses

Operating profit

612 626

453 243

651 911

Finance costs

(46 854)

(50 545)

(42 455)

25 581

17 592

26 607

Equity (loss)/profit from associate

(73 456)

(76 703)

450 542

Profit before income tax

517 897

343 587

Finance income

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent

(144 738)

(82 260)

1 086 605
(155 486)

373 159

261 327

931 119

4 825

2 220

708

377 984

263 547

931 827

Property, plant and equipment

937 280

985 323

995 967

Investment in associate

710 160

778 663

855 366

82 387

61 167

33 051

3 846

–

–

Current assets

1 423 723

1 082 732

1 221 135

Total assets

3 157 396

2 907 885

3 105 519

Issued capital

1 024

1 024

1 024

Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders

Managing Director’s Report

Consolidated statement of financial position

Other non-current assets
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-distributable reserves

66

(548)

(103)

Retained income

1 907 673

1 755 419

1 954 353

Ordinary shareholders' equity

1 908 763

1 755 895

1 955 274

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (non-current)

489 920

501 608

183 508

Other non-current liabilities

200 686

211 375

206 865

Current liabilities

558 027

439 007

759 872

3 157 396

2 907 885

3 105 519

Total equity and liabilities

NBL’s operating profit of N$613 million exceeded expectations, achieving a 35% increase to the prior year, despite overall
lower volumes and almost matching our 2019 results.
Net revenue remained consistent with the prior year despite lower volumes, and was bolstered by the first inflation-related
price increase on returnable packs in 24 months, implemented in June 2020.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Margins were protected by several actions:

Although stock write-offs were higher than in previous years
due to fluctuating demand, these remained low and
well-managed, given the circumstances.

Notice of annual
general meeting
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The investment in a sales and operational planning system
started delivering significant returns. Data analysis, trends
and insights enabled better risk and opportunity evaluation
across all operations.

Remuneration
report

The integration of the transport scheduling system with SAP
is set to deliver further efficiencies going forward.

Risk and
opportunities report

Capital expenditure amounted to N$137.7 million and was
lower than 2020 due to several projects being delayed as a
result of COVID-19. Returnable bottles were the main
capital investment item. Minor replacements and
improvements were dealt with locally due to international
contractors being unable to travel. As a result, much higher
capital investment is planned for the next financial year.
Delayed repairs and maintenance will be prioritised as well
as the planned installation of a new blender, and expansion
of the packaging facilities and warehouse.

Outsourced transport partner, Imperial, introduced
specialised trucks that enable faster handling while limiting
losses. We negotiated lower transport rates, revisited our
overall warehouse management, outsourced agreements
and relocated central town deliveries back to our main site.
NBL achieved a direct drop ratio of 58% compared to 54%
in 2020 while introducing a new routing and scheduling
system to better manage these.

Governance
report

We maintained strong cash flows during the year. Net cash
flow from operating activities increased to N$542 million
from N$24 million last year. This was mainly due to the
absence of lockdown restrictions and cost saving initiatives,
while a strong focus was placed on managing our working
capital. Net cash outflow from investing activities of
N$98 million was lower than the outflow of N$143 million
in 2020.

The logistics team delivered significant cost savings while
keeping NBL brands moving. Distribution effectiveness is
key for NBL to get stock to customers at the right time,
place and in the correct quantities.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Debtor days remained in a healthy range despite COVID-19
conditions. At year end, our debtor days ratio was at 27
days (2020: 31 days).

The production teams worked fewer and alternative shifts
between July and September 2020 in line with lower
demand and COVID-19 restrictions. Efficiency disruptions
were well managed, despite new suppliers working
according to different specifications. Critical maintenance
had to be postponed while delays in major projects
continued, including the installation of a new blender. From
September, operations normalised, and returned to 24/7
cycles.

Managing
director’s report

We had a significant benefit from lower interest rates on top
of last year’s renegotiated debt facilities. In 2020 we
refinanced N$580 million with a maturation date in June
2025. Additional debt facilities were also negotiated.
Liquidity remains well-managed, with NBL’s net debt-toequity ratio standing at 35.2% (2020: 20%).

Engagement with European suppliers intensified through
new online platforms . There was also a strong drive for
localisation. The latter entails better understanding the
needs of local suppliers and sharing more information to
enable them to participate in NBL’s growth.

Our context
and strategy

z With limited trading in the first half of the year, we
invested more prudently in discounts, marketing and
promotions.

Challenges included shortages varying from glass and
shipping containers to malt. Supply chains worldwide were
disrupted due to pandemic restrictions, resulting in
unpredictable availability. The NBL procurement team
endured and innovated to keep production lines running,
ultimately ensuring satisfied customers and consumers. We
onboarded a new glass supplier from Angola while
adjusting buffer stock requirements.

Our
profile

z Exchange rate hedges were favourable in the early part
of the year following lower production and import
commodity requirements after the exchange rate spike
at the end of the previous year. On the other hand, the
volatility of the exchange rate in the latter part of the
year impacted export profitability.

This year will stand out for quick and effective mitigating
decisions.
Chairperson’s
statement

z Utility costs were tightly controlled via alternative
energy and water sources.

About
this report

z Labour costs were contained. From July to September
we reduced shifts in line with lower demand, especially
from South Africa, while not paying any overtime or
salary/wage increases. NBL did not pay a 13th cheque
in December 2020.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND
IMPROVEMENTS
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Changes in the brewery include improved procedures to
optimise ambient conditions, as this keeps utilities cost
down. We are maximising the benefits of the biomass boiler
in supplying alternative energy, while using one brew street
only. This process design change also assists with the
continuous consumption of thermal energy, which in turn
supports CO2 generation and capturing.

DELIVERING NEW REALITIES,
FULFILLING DREAMS

Managing Director’s Report

For NBL to be sustainable, all our stakeholders have to
thrive. We adopted the Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs) to help focus our contributions on the bigger
challenges that the Namibian society and environment face.
We believe in collaboration and collective action, working
with stakeholders through a range of projects, initiatives
and partnerships to achieve these goals.
This year we used funds allocated to NBL’s centenary
celebration in October 2020 as well as N$1.6 million
towards the Dr Hage Geingob Cup 2020 to provide
COVID-19 support and relief to communities, charities, old
age homes and schools, and to raise awareness about
responsible consumption.

Making a positive impact for our
employees
Our employees remain our greatest asset. Through various
engagements and surveys, we provide them with a voice
that measures our ability to remain a trusted employer and
an overall great place to work for. Given the difficult year,
we are extremely pleased with our Great Place to Work®
(GPTW) results, which improved by 3% despite many
challenges. The GPTW survey, which measures the overall
trust that our employees have in the business and
management, was done fully online this year.
We made great strides in upskilling and technical training
initiatives. Read more about these in the SDG section from
page 43.
Our leadership team reached out to employees in new ways,
using digital forums and channels throughout Namibia.
We took employee well-being seriously, from COVID-19
measures for workplace safety to safe transport, testing,
providing supplements and special arrangements for
vulnerable people. We also took care of smaller things that
employees appreciate, such as birthday wishes and
reminders. Absenteeism was lower than in the previous year.
Foregoing salary increases and bonus payments was a
difficult decision. Only critical positions were filled while
no overtime was paid. Voluntary and early retirement was
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offered to employees 55 years and older, with 19 employees
taking up the offer. All temporary contracts were
unfortunately terminated.
These short-term measures supported NBL’s performance
through the year.
Wage negotiations were postponed last year due to
COVID-19. Our previous substantive agreement was valid
until 30 June 2020, with a new agreement becoming
effective 1 July 2021. Although membership of the Namibia
Food and Allied Workers Union (NAFAU) is declining, we
continue to value the relationship. NBL and NAFAU
concluded wage negotiations for the next two years, with
the final agreement valid until 30 June 2023.

Engaging customers in new ways
Although the NBL sales teams remained in the field
throughout the relevant stages of lockdown, they adapted
by changing the way they interacted with customers yet still
continuing to connect and support throughout. For
example, they made arrangements to collect returnable
bottles from homes and bought empties as a way to inject
cash into communities while maintaining the level of
bottles that can be recycled. These were previously
collected from outlets.
Customers could negotiate extended payment terms. Some
smaller traders were not able to persevere through the
pandemic, resulting in consolidation in our customer base.
Previously customers were predominantly profiled
according to their order volumes. Due to restrictions, we
segmented customers on the storage space they had
available, to ensure stock availability on a longer-term basis.
We continued our cash van initiative, where NBL provides
redistributors in outlying areas with vehicles, including fuel
and maintenance. This helps to grow their business as they
build distribution networks, move products and ultimately
grow volumes. We also started an initiative where we
provide redistributors with containers and consignment
stock to assist with availability in outlying areas. If our
customers do well, we do well, and ultimately live our
Purpose: Creating a Future, Enhancing Life.

Our relationship with Government
NBL has been actively engaging Government, through SAIF
and directly, on several aspects concerning the industry and
the overall narrative on alcohol. NBL is playing an active
role in leading responsible consumption and responding
where areas of need emerged. We support the general
well-being of the nation and as such have embarked on
several campaigns that drive behavioural changes in
consumers. These include our #TakesaNation and new
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UNLEASHING DIGITAL POTENTIAL

Digital transformation has already proven its value in the
past year. Better data availability, analysis and insights
assisted us during a very volatile planning and forecasting
period to manage risks and identify opportunities. Controls
were improved and synergy between the different teams
exploited. Ultimately, access to more and better quality
data facilitates information sharing and enables us to
increase the quality of decisions.
Many customers required offline capability as connectivity
in outlying areas can be challenging, which unfortunately
hampered the overall uptake of our sales tool. This
challenge was however mitigated and we developed a
solution to address the issue.

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report

z Elaborate on the need for NBL to undergo this
fundamental transformation

z Use a customer and stakeholder-centric approach to
align NBL on the way forward as we pursue our
Breakthrough Strategy goals for 2025

Our
profile

Digital transformation at NBL was taken to the next level
this year with the introduction of a Digital Transformation
Department. The department’s responsibility is to integrate
and steer all digital innovation and adoption initiatives at
NBL. One of the first highlights was an inter-company
digital transformation workshop, called the Hop-On
Conference 1.0 Commercial Transformation. In addition to
encouraging agility in the business, the workshop’s
objectives were to:

z Provide an overview of global trends regarding digital
transformation in fast-moving consumer goods

Chairperson’s
statement

Through the O&L Group, we continued supporting Team
Namibia, the Section 21 company that promotes the use of
local products and services. The Group led the Buy Local,
Grow Namibia campaign to drive the recovery of the
economy during the pandemic.

z Introduce all departments to the depth of digital
transformation occurring within NBL’s commercial
operations

About
this report

EduDrink campaign. We believe that with knowledge,
consumers are empowered to make responsible
consumption choices.

D

z Connect to inspire: this online performance management tool goes beyond the
conventional assessment to measure individual employees against how well we
aspire each to perform.

Governance
report

igital transformation started in our brewery more than 30 years ago
when we gradually moved from manual brewing to the full adoption of
remote brewing by 2009. We can now start the brewing process with a click.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

NBL IS EMBRACING THE FOURTH
INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION

Risk and
opportunities report

z Marketing intelligence: we use an artificial intelligence-powered tool to uncover
deep marketing insights that connect data to identify risk and quantify the impact of
changes in consumer spend.
z NBL storefront: via this new self-service online portal, our customers can now order,
get information and submit claims on their mobile devices.

Remuneration
report

z Field sales app: we are now able to support our teams in the field via a mobile app
that assists with customer segmentation, territory and route assignments, activity
planning and visit scheduling.
z NBL website: new capabilities include applying for vacancies, sponsorships or
scheduling brewery tours.

Annual financial
statements

Combined, these digital tools achieve operational efficiency, ensure meaningful
interaction, instant internal alignment and improved cost efficiencies. We will continue
to invest in digital transformation to position NBL for the future.

Notice of annual
general meeting
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LEADING INTO THE FUTURE

HEINEKEN OFFER TO NBL

To lead a step-change in growth, NBL has to take bold
stands. We are continuously gearing the business to:

Subsequent to year end, Heineken N.V. made an offer to
acquire NBL’s 25% shareholding in Heineken South Africa
(RF) Proprietary Limited (‘the Potential HSA Transaction’).

z Grow volumes beyond Namibian borders by focusing
on markets that we understand
z Reshape our portfolio, focusing on profitable, growing
brands while innovating into new liquids based on
consumer preferences and demand
z Find non-liquid growth opportunities in the value chain
z Optimise and build digital capabilities
z Benchmark and adjust the overall costs to ensure overall
bottom-line growth

Managing Director’s Report

z Balance our responsibilities between maximising
volumes and ensuring responsible behaviour and
consumption
We are also investing in systems and technologies to
optimise processes, facilitate working from home through
cloud-based services, and the selection of best in class
partnerships and resources.
We understand the risks we face and are clear about our
opportunities. Read more about our strategic risks in the
report from page 73.

Discussions are still ongoing and several aspects still need
to be considered.
For more information pertaining to the Potential HSA
Transaction, please refer to the Stock Exchange News
Service (NENS) of the Namibian Stock Exchange (NSX).

APPRECIATION
The COVID-19 pandemic may well remain a concern and
significant risk for our country, our business and our people
in the foreseeable future. I commend each and every NBL
team member for the way they have adapted during the past
18 months. They have been exemplary in their leadership
and commitment to success. I also want to extend my
heartfelt thanks to all our customers and consumers who
remained loyal ambassadors for NBL this year. We also
would like to express our sincere appreciation to the O&L
Group, Heineken SA, as well as all our business and
financing partners who continue to support us.

NBL is doing everything possible to support economic
revival and helping Namibia to recover from the dire
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
We are preparing for anticipated challenges such as
significant commodity price increases and changes in the
ways we contract with suppliers. Procurement is focused on
becoming even more agile and responsive, with a strong
focus on sustainable sourcing and continuing to build
resilient supply chain networks with our business partners.
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) issues are
driving our decision-making and will do so even more in
the future. This includes accelerating environmental
management plans and actions.
We are confident that our decisions in 2021 will serve us
well in 2022, for example entering new export markets,
investing in digital transformation and building even deeper
relationships with employees, customers and consumers.
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“By giving back to our stakeholders and sharing
value, we contribute in a material way to the
United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals.
It also supports our purpose, Creating a Future,
Enhancing Life to ensure that NBL can be here
for the next 100 years.”

Our context
and strategy

CONTRIBUTING
TO THE
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
GOALS

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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IDENTIFYING OUR
PRIORITY SDGS

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

T

he SDGs are a universal call to action to end poverty, protect the planet,
and ensure that by 2030 all people enjoy peace and prosperity.

1

In 2020, the O&L Group, of which NBL is a subsidiary, launched a process to align the 2025 Breakthrough Strategy
with the 2025 sustainability programme. This included extensive engagement with all operating companies, including
NBL, to ensure that our efforts will support the strategy while creating sustainable outcomes.

2

As part of this process, the O&L Group selected priority SDGs by considering its desired strategic outcomes and
four major capitals: financial, human, natural and social.

3

We similarly committed to aligning our outcomes to the SDGs. In partnership with the O&L Group, we join an
international community of governments and businesses focused on impact, all aligned with our purpose of
Creating a Future, Enhancing Life.

4

While the 17 SDGs are interconnected and interdependent, NBL prioritised goals that are catalysts for positive
change. We started this journey in 2020, with our material matters as foundation input.

Our material matters were determined in 2018 through a formal process that focused on our value
creation drivers. We framed our material matters as how we are “giving back” to our stakeholders
as NBL’s resilience depends on its stakeholders. Accordingly, our reporting structure has shifted
from reporting against our material matters to reporting according to our chosen SDGs.

5

We first elected to establish our baseline by determining which goals matter most to us based on NBL’s profile.
Our team used the SDG Action Manager’s assessment tool developed by B Lab and the UN Global Compact to
determine what would be best suited for us. Following the outcome of the first assessment, we reviewed the top
goals identified for NBL and decided on a priority set as a starting point.

6

As an outcome of this process, we identified five SDGs that we believe will enable us to realise our purpose,
guided by specific targets.

The O&L Group’s Sustainability Programme Steering
Committee approved the priority SDGs followed by final
alignment and approval from the NBL Senior
Leadership Team.

Read more about our value chain and the relevance of the SDGs per element on page 18.
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We believe that a strong sustainability programme builds credibility,
improves relationships and enhances brand awareness. To ensure a
measurable contribution, we identified underlying targets for each
of our priority SDGs. These targets are aligned to key performance
indicators along our value chain.

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report
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SDG 3: ENSURE HEALTHY LIVES AND
PROMOTE WELL-BEING FOR ALL

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

WHY
THIS GOAL
MATTERS
Ensuring healthy lives
and promoting the well-being
of everyone is essential to
sustainable development as
healthy people provide the
foundation for robust
and resilient economies.
The COVID-19 pandemic
highlighted the importance of
minimising factors that
contribute to ill health.
As a leading beverage
manufacturer, NBL has
a responsibility to minimise
harmful alcohol consumption
and to look after the physical
and mental well-being of our
employees. This was a particular
focus during COVID-19,
with the health and safety of
our employees being an
absolute priority.

SDG 3 targets

Measuring progress in 2021

3.4 By 2030, reduce by one
third premature mortality from
non-communicable diseases
through prevention and
treatment and promote mental
health and well-being

z 92 employee wellness training days
hosted in 2021

3.5 Strengthen the prevention
and treatment of substance
abuse, including narcotic drug
abuse and harmful use of
alcohol

z 6 low or no-alcohol brands and soft
drinks in our portfolio

3.6 By 2030, halve the number
of global deaths and injuries
from road traffic accidents

z The #TakesANation campaign in 2021
reached over 3.3 million social media
users and garnered more than 28 million
post engagements

z Unfortunately, due to COVID-19, our
DRINKIQ™ Training Programme was
suspended. However, we are developing
a new EduDrink programme to be
launched in November 2021

PROGRAMMES, PARTNERSHIPS AND INITIATIVES
SUPPORTING OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SDG 3
COVID-19 is now a new occupational health hazard
We look after the physical, mental and financial well-being of our employees.
This was a particular focus during COVID-19: the health and safety of our
employees was an absolute priority. NBL acknowledges COVID-19 as a new
occupational health hazard and will incorporate this in our relevant policies.
We created a national, cross-functional virtual forum that met quarterly to share
concerns with the Senior Leadership Team. They ensured employees received
motivational messages, with coordination done via champions in each department.
This helped us to effectively address issues such as the kind of support people
needed when working from home.
We continued to offer free occupational and primary healthcare services at the
Windhoek on-site clinic. We deployed an effective COVID-19 contact tracing
system and arranged access to a 24 hour COVID-19 external testing facility, while
employees received immune boosters due to COVID-19.
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To promote safer and accident-free roads in Namibia, NBL
sponsored our Namibian Police with 500 cases of
AquaSplash water to the value of N$78 000 in support of
officers patrolling roadblocks during the festive season.

O&L Group Corporate Relations ensures that an
independent evaluation against the code is done on all
NBL marketing and sales campaigns, advertising and
promotional material.

Risk and
opportunities report

NBL drives the responsible drinking agenda in Namibia and
has demonstrated this through our strong track record of
implementing responsible drinking initiatives and drawing
attention to road safety during peak holiday periods. The

Governance
report

We have always taken a strong stance in promoting
responsible behaviour that extends beyond drinking
occasions, rallying consumers around responsible
behaviour whether shopping, socialising, entertaining
or simply just enjoying their favourite beverage.

We adopted the principles of the aware.org regulations and
applied these regulations to update our marketing code
regarding the low and non-alcoholic category. We
recognise that even non-alcoholic products such as
Windhoek Non-alcoholic should not be marketed to
underage consumers, because they inherently market their
mother brand and could thus be a gateway product.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Promoting responsible drinking and driving

Managing
director’s report

SAIF’s membership is based on voluntary compliance with
the Code of Commercial Communication and Conduct that
prescribes world-class standards in self-regulation to
prevent the negative consequences of alcohol abuse.
During the lockdown, it was an instrumental forum to
engage with Government. It allowed us to responsibly
co-create the way forward in lifting the ban on alcohol
sales to support small businesses, without being
irresponsible around public health.

Our context
and strategy

We also support financial wellness by promoting a savings
culture at work. Through an engagement with NamPost,
Namibia’s national postal operator, we established a
savings scheme whereby employees can save monthly
and earn interest. The proceeds are paid out (with the
option to continue saving) in January each year to ensure
that our employees have sufficient funds to cater for
expenses such as school fees, school clothes or any other
related expenditure.

Our
profile

Our lost-time injury frequency rate was 0.19 (2020: 0.28),
which is well within our Group target of 0.75. We refreshed
communication and awareness, and highlighted the
importance of safety.

As a good corporate citizen, we endeavour to reduce the
harm and social cost associated with alcohol abuse. We
market alcoholic beverages in a manner that encourages
responsible consumption and we aim to reduce alcoholrelated harm. We do this in collaboration with Government,
the community and non-governmental institutions in
Namibia. This includes our involvement as a founding
member of SAIF of which our Managing Director is the
current chairperson. SAIF comprises of all major alcohol
producers and distributors in Namibia.

Employee induction and continued training programmes
emphasise the risks of working in an environment that is
characterised by moving machinery, the handling of
chemicals, forklift and truck operations, as well as
ventilation and lighting demands.

Chairperson’s
statement

Health, safety and wellness programmes make for a
healthy workforce and increased productivity. Absenteeism
increased to 1.95% (2020: 1.53%), partly due to the
pandemic. We conducted regular health and safety
inspections and had no fatalities on site (2020: 0).

#TakesANation campaign is an example of our leadership
in this regard.

About
this report

Employee wellness remains a priority

Supporting our stakeholders

CONSUMERS

COMMUNITIES

EMPLOYEES

Remuneration
report

Through the programmes, partnerships
and initiatives discussed under SDG 3,
we support our consumers, communities
and our employees.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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SDG 6: ENSURE AVAILABILITY AND

SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT OF WATER
AND SANITATION FOR ALL

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

WHY
THIS GOAL
MATTERS
Access to water, sanitation and
hygiene is a human right. Water
is essential, not only to health,
but also to poverty reduction
and to supporting agriculture
and ecosystems, among many
other things. The sustainable
management of water
is particularly relevant for
Namibia, a water-scarce
country often affected by
severe droughts.
As the biggest industrial
consumer of water in
Windhoek, we must therefore
minimise our consumption
and the impact we have on
water quality.

SDG 6 targets

Measuring progress in 2021

6.3 By 2030, improve water
quality by reducing pollution,
eliminating dumping and
minimising release of
hazardous chemicals and
materials, halving the
proportion of untreated
wastewater and substantially
increasing recycling and safe
reuse globally

z Effluent volume as a % of incoming
water reduced by 10%

6.4 By 2030, substantially
increase water-use efficiency
across all sectors and ensure
sustainable withdrawals and
supply of freshwater to address
water scarcity and substantially
reduce the number of people
suffering from water scarcity

z We achieved a 38% reduction in
freshwater (municipal) consumption

z No penalties or fines were incurred as a
result of exceeding effluent quality
parameters
z Building of the water reclamation plant

z Borehole water now represents 62% of
our overall water consumption against
our 2025 target of using 50% of water
from alternative water sources

PROGRAMMES, PARTNERSHIPS AND INITIATIVES
SUPPORTING OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SDG 6
Managing effluent and wastewater
Water is vital to our operations: it is the primary ingredient in our products and is
used in almost all our manufacturing processes.
We source municipal water from the City of Windhoek and five boreholes on our
Windhoek site. We use the water treatment plant to improve the quality of the
borehole water we abstract. It uses software that ensures optimal operation and
further reduces plant downtime.
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As a result of reduced production due to the pandemic,
water-use efficiency deteriorated from 4.12-hl/hl in 2020 to
4.68-hl/hl in 2021. NBL continues to explore opportunities
to improve efficiencies. In 2021 we managed to:

For the next financial year, NBL plans to drive consumption
awareness among internal users and increase interdependency between packaging and utilities. We also plan
to apply closed circuit reverse osmosis (CCRO) and B-free
technology to reclaim more water and increase the
efficiency of all reverse osmosis plants on site to a
maximum of 91%.

z Improve borehole treatment efficiency from 67.7% to
80% with continuous operational changes that required
minimal financial investment

z Improve brew water production efficiency from 90.5%
to 93.9%

Chairperson’s
statement

z Fully automate the existing reverse osmosis plants,
increasing efficiency from 85% to 88%

About
this report

We continue to reclaim and pre-clean effluent, which is
then treated by the City of Windhoek according to a
contractual agreement by which the City of Windhoek
benefits from the bacteria in our effluent.

Our
profile

Supporting our stakeholders
SHAREHOLDERS/PROVIDERS OF

CUSTOMERS/

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

STRATEGIC PARTNERS
COMMUNITIES

GOVERNMENTS

EMPLOYEES

SUPPLIERS

THE ENVIRONMENT

Managing
director’s report

CONSUMERS

Our context
and strategy

Through the programmes,
partnerships and initiatives
discussed under SDG 6, we
support all our stakeholders
as they equally rely on
natural resources and
therefore benefit from our
efforts to preserve them.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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SDG 7: ENSURE ACCESS TO

AFFORDABLE, RELIABLE, SUSTAINABLE AND
MODERN ENERGY FOR ALL

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

WHY
THIS GOAL
MATTERS
Burning finite carbon and fossil
fuels is not only unsustainable,
but it also produces large
amounts of greenhouse gases
that cause climate change
and impact people’s health and
well-being. Transitioning to an
affordable, reliable, and
sustainable energy system is
therefore critical to support
stable economies and protect
people and the planet.
NBL can contribute to clean
energy by substituting fossil
fuel-based electricity with
renewables, and by improving
energy efficiency.

SDG 7 targets

Measuring progress in 2021

7.2 By 2030, increase
substantially the share of
renewable energy in the global
energy mix

z Our target to 2025 is to ensure that
50% of our total energy usage comes
from alternative energy sources –
currently, 54.8% of our total energy
is from alternative energy sources
(47.3% in 2020)
z We achieved a 4.5% year-on-year
reduction in non-renewable electricity
usage (kWh per hl of product)
z 1 511-MWh of solar power generated
(2020: 1 471-MWh)

PROGRAMMES, PARTNERSHIPS AND INITIATIVES
SUPPORTING OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SDG 7
We use alternative energy sources
The NBL biomass boiler achieved record-high annual utilisation this year. The boiler,
a first in Namibia, remains the country’s largest wood boiler. It replaced the use of
approximately 2.5 million litres of heavy fuel oil per annum since it was taken into
production in 2016.
The boiler uses wood chips sourced from pervasive invader bush, thereby clearing
land for use and improving the carrying capacity of farms. For the year, invader bush
thinning was completed for approximately 712 hectares.
The rooftop solar plant met 8.7% (2020: 7.9%) of our electricity demand in the past
year. Overall, the solar plant has provided us with approximately 1.511 million-kWh
of green energy for the year, thereby saving 1 511 tons of CO2 emissions.
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Optimising electricity use

Total electricity consumption (kWh)
About
this report

NBL employs electricity-intensive processes, such as
refrigeration, with electricity use directly linked to volumes
produced. We continue to optimise use through the
following:

2021
2020
2019
2018

z Increased awareness among internal users

2017

z Process optimisation of our water treatment, CO2
recovery and compressed air plants
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Chairperson’s
statement

z Increased metering and consumption monitoring

z Upgrading to more efficient lighting systems
Our
profile

Supporting our stakeholders
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Managing
director’s report

CONSUMERS

Our context
and strategy

Through the programmes,
partnerships and initiatives
discussed under SDG 7, we
support all our stakeholders
as they equally rely on
natural resources and
therefore benefit from our
efforts to preserve them.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
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Risk and
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Remuneration
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statements
Notice of annual
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SDG 8: PROMOTE SUSTAINED,

INCLUSIVE AND SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC
GROWTH, FULL AND PRODUCTIVE
EMPLOYMENT AND DECENT WORK FOR ALL

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

WHY
THIS GOAL
MATTERS
Sustained and inclusive
economic growth can drive
progress, create decent jobs for
all and improve living
standards. The economic impact
and financial volatility triggered
by COVID-19 severely
undermined growth and
prosperity around the world,
particularly impacting
employment and job creation
opportunities.
NBL’s biggest opportunity to
contribute to the SDGs is in
economically uplifting
Namibians. We are applying
breakthrough thinking to ensure
we retain jobs, upskill our
people and invest to reinvent
NBL for a post-COVID-19
world. We are directed by the
O&L Group’s 2025 Vision
metrics which include two
targets that relate to this SDG:
10 000 Employment
Opportunities Secured (direct
and indirect)
Global Top 25 GPTW

SDG 8 targets

Measuring progress in 2021

8.3 Promote developmentoriented policies that support
productive activities, decent
job creation, entrepreneurship,
creativity and innovation, and
encourage the formalisation
and growth of micro-, smalland medium-sized enterprises,
including through access to
financial services

z 35.0% (2020: 36.0%) of products and
services purchased locally

8.5 By 2030, achieve full and
productive employment and
decent work for all women and
men, including for young
people and persons with
disabilities, and equal pay for
work of equal value

z NBL maintained employment for 796
employees during the year, supporting
our contribution of securing 10 000 jobs

8.8 Protect labour rights and
promote safe and secure
working environments for all
workers, including migrant
workers, in particular women
migrants, and those in
precarious employment

z Zero work-related fatalities during
the year (2020: 0)

z 21% female employees (2020: 20%)
z 0.50% employees with disabilities
(2020: 0.50%)
z 0.05% training spend allocated
to employees with disabilities
(2020: 0.02%)

PROGRAMMES, PARTNERSHIPS AND INITIATIVES
SUPPORTING OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SDG 8
Value chain initiatives supporting growth
NBL provides direct employment and, through its business activities, helps create
and retain jobs at suppliers and customers. We regard suppliers as business partners
that drive and support the mutual success of our business. When selecting suppliers,
we aim to ensure a diversified sourcing footprint and integrate suppliers vertically
where needed. This improves effective supply chain risk management for all parties.
Where relevant, we assist small suppliers with skills and support, for example in
basic admin, finance and contracting. Joint improvement activities deliver shared
value in the form of improved quality, better performance and sustainable pricing.
In the NBL procurement policy, we set out our preference for local suppliers, service
providers and contractors and include preferential trading terms for SMEs. As part of
our selection criteria, we consider previously disadvantaged Namibians as defined in
the Affirmative Action (Employment) Act, 1998 (No. 29 of 1998).
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Our workplace culture and workforce profile

The O&L Group has started transitioning to the Patterson
grading system as business requirements have outgrown
the in-house system.

We want to create a workplace and culture of trust that
attracts and retains the best talent. Our employment offering
includes benefits such as housing allowances, free company
transport, subsidised meals and discounts related to other
Group Company products, such as Pick n Pay discount
cards. Read more about our remuneration approach in the
governance report from page 59.

We introduced a new recognition platform: Thank you
Thursdays. The initiative assisted in building team spirit.
We also revitalised our employee publication to focus on
shared experiences and a more inclusive approach.

Chairperson’s
statement

The online ‘Connect to Inspire’ performance management
tool is now embedded with the focus on inspiring delivery
rather than managing productivity. Employees own and
drive their growth through purposeful performance
discussions with their line managers.

About
this report

An example is the primary services contract with Imperial
Managed Solutions Namibia (Proprietary) Limited where
we encourage subcontracting to small local transport
companies. 83% of all primary transport loads had
previously disadvantaged owners this year.

Our
profile

Our 2021 employee profile (including temporary employees)

Men Women
Executive Directors
Senior management
Specialised/skilled/
senior supervisory
Skilled
Unskilled
Total permanent
Fixed terms/Temporary

Total

Men Women

Non-Namibians
Men Women

Total
Men Women

–
3
24

–
1
16

2
7
34

–
2
11

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
1
4

–
3
1

2
11
62

–
6
28

49
171
314
–
561
115
676

32
58
22
–
129
5
134

14
4
–
–
61
–
61

12
5
–
–
30
1
31

–
1
1
–
2
1
3

–
1
1
–
2
–
2

2
–
–
–
7
–
7

–
–
–
–
4
–
4

65
176
315
–
631
116
747

44
64
23
–
165
6
171

Key results:
z 96% response rate with 799 employees invited
and 765 responding (2020: 93%)
z 75% Trust Index © score (2020: 72%)
z 83% of employees say this is a great place to work
(2020: 82%)

z Line managers are better at allocating workload and
coordinating people effectively
z Management is trusting people to do a good job without
watching over their shoulders

z Create a culture of innovation where employees feel
encouraged to bring forward ideas and suggestions
and where innovative behaviours, and not necessarily
outcomes, are rewarded

Gender balance and diversity
NBL actively complies with the Employment Act. This piece
of labour legislation is brought to life during quarterly
reviews by the Affirmative Action Committee.
We are committed to increasing the diversity of our
employee demographics by supporting the Government’s
efforts to drive transformation in the workplace. To create

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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z People are treated fairly regardless of their ethnic origin

z Ensuring that the values are understandable and easily
translated into behaviours with leaders modelling
desirable behaviours

Annual financial
statements

What improved due to and despite COVID-19:

z Make the strategy more tangible and actionable for
all employees

Remuneration
report

z 84% employee engagement score (2020: 83%)

Opportunities to further shape our future focus areas:

Risk and
opportunities report

This is the fifth year that NBL participated in the Great Place
to Work® Employee Engagement Survey. The annual survey,
which was completed on 26 March 2021, measures overall
trust and engagement.

z In terms of the Culture Audit © Results, NBL scored
highest in leadership effectiveness

Governance
report

A Great Place to Work®

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Semi-skilled

Men Women

Persons with
disabilities

Managing
director’s report

Middle management

Racially
advantaged

Our context
and strategy

Racially
disadvantaged
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a gender-fair workplace, we set annual targets as part of our
three-year affirmative action plan. This addresses fair and
equitable recruitment that balances gender across the
divisions. We offer a fully paid maternity leave benefit for
employees to provide mothers with more financial security.
This assists in attracting and retaining female talent. We also
have a private on-site breastfeeding facility.

Securing a pipeline of skills

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

Scarcity of specialised skills, especially digital and technical
skills, remains a risk to NBL. We have a stable workforce,
which ensures a high return on training investment.
This year we invested N$2 342 million in employee training
with more training being moved online, while some
face-to-face interventions were unfortunately delayed. We
used communication platforms such as WhatsApp widely to
engage employees around training.
Compliance training such as forklift, health and safety
training continued as it is a legal requirement. Some
technical training such as thermographic and soft skills
training such as negotiation skills, was done virtually.
Our main focus remains on on-the-job training to transfer
internal skills and knowledge. Specialists within the
business often lack the time to offer coaching and on-thejob training. We mitigate this risk by changing job profiles
and the responsibilities of specialists, especially those
approaching retirement. These shifts alleviate operational
pressure and free up time for skills transfer.
Our production maintenance plan was affected by travel
bans as technicians from international service providers
were not able to do on-site maintenance. We therefore
focused on upskilling our local plant maintenance teams to
deal with highly specialised equipment.

Training updates for the year:
z We launched a cross-divisional safety and well-being
programme in response to COVID-19 to communicate
detail around safety measures, resources and equipment.
z Two candidates completed the Engineer in Training
programme and were appointed full time. The programme
focused on training and career growth opportunities.

z Four apprentice brewers completed the first and
second-year programme which provides them with
technical skills in brewing.
z The Job Attachment programme develops young talent
with industry experience in highly specialised technical
positions to compensate for retirement and attrition.
Five students in the vocational training sector were
employed as job attachments for the period.
z The Understudy Development programme transfers
skills from non-Namibians to Namibians in line with
Section 19(3) of the Affirmative Action (Employment)
Act, 1998 (No. 29 of 1998). During the year,
15 employees took part in the programme.
We have development plans in place for all employees
appointed through these programmes, and these are
tracked quarterly.
Despite the difficulty in sourcing experienced, specialised
local skills, non-Namibian citizens comprise only 1.38% of
NBL’s total permanent workforce (2020: 1.45%).

Social development supporting skills and
education
Our employee volunteer programmes, social investment
initiatives and brand sponsorships support decent job
creation, entrepreneurship, creativity and innovation, and
encourage the formalisation and growth of small businesses.
Our relationship with the National Institute for Special
Education stretches more than 20 years. NBL sponsored
the School for Visually Impaired, School for the Hearing
Impaired, and also the Môreson school with AquaSplash
and Fruitree every month (for each school) over the
12-month period to the value of N$55 000.
We continue our support for the Group-level Edulution
project which takes students who have fallen out of the
education stream and assists them in catching up through
extra classes using iPads and numeracy programmes in
English, to also improve literacy skills.
NBL sponsored masks and soap for 23 schools identified
by the Directorate: Education (Khomas Region) under the
Ministry of Education.

Supporting our stakeholders
Through the programmes, partnerships
and initiatives discussed under SDG 8,
we support our employees, communities,
suppliers and customers/strategic
partners. We also support Government’s
efforts to promote employment and
economic prosperity.
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CUSTOMERS/
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COMMUNITIES

EMPLOYEES
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CONSUMPTION AND PRODUCTION
PATTERNS

Measuring progress in 2021

12.2 By 2030, achieve the
sustainable management and
efficient use of natural
resources

z 75% of brands using paper labels rather
than plastic labels (2020: 47%)
z 62% of water requirements met by own
sources (2020: 32%)

Our
profile

z 16.3% year-on-year deterioration
in thermal energy efficiency
(82-MJ per hl vs 70.5 in 2020)
z 20% reduction in glue and paper
consumption through the use of two
rather than three labels
12.5 By 2030, substantially
reduce waste generation
through prevention, reduction,
recycling and reuse

Our context
and strategy

z 18% waste to landfill (2020: 14%)
z 7 668 hl beer extracted from spent yeast
(2020: 3 386 hl)
z 82.27 tons of surplus CO2 sold
(2020: 29.4 tons)
z 99.6% return ratio for returnable glass
bottles (2020: 99.7%)

PROGRAMMES, PARTNERSHIPS AND INITIATIVES
SUPPORTING OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SDG 12
Managing water use

Governance
report

Water is an essential ingredient in beverage manufacturing. Currently, NBL uses
4.7 litres of water to produce one litre of beer (4.1 litres in 2020). The increase from
2020 is predominately due to lower production volumes.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

NBL aims to be responsible and
ethical in how it uses and
recycles natural resources.

Managing
director’s report

Sustainable consumption and
production patterns are critical
to reverse environmental
degradation and promote
resource efficiency.
This includes understanding
and minimising the negative
social and environmental
impacts of products and
services within value chains.

SDG 8 targets

Chairperson’s
statement

WHY
THIS GOAL
MATTERS

About
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SDG 12: ENSURE SUSTAINABLE

Water used per hectolitre of beverage produced (hl)
Risk and
opportunities report
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Boreholes have the capacity to provide 80% of our water needs during drought
situations. NBL currently however only abstracts 45% of our current water
needs given the fact that Windhoek currently has adequate water supply. The
boreholes and treatment plant are important for the sustainable operation
of NBL during drought situations.

Annual financial
statements

We source municipal water from the City of Windhoek as well as five boreholes on
our Windhoek premise. The boreholes access a recharging aquifer that is not linked
to the Windhoek water supply system. The water from these boreholes is not
potable and has to be treated before use, which is done by way of a very modern
reverse osmosis treatment plant.

Remuneration
report

2017
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Thermal energy focus areas
We currently generate 74.6% of our thermal energy from
our biomass boiler. Thermal energy is mainly used in the
brewing process, however also for cleaning and packaging
purposes. We aim to reduce thermal energy consumption as
it directly affects our carbon footprint and the use of heavy
fuel oils or wood chips.
Initiatives to reduce thermal energy efficiency include the
following:
z Insulation of open valves and piping to reduce heat losses
z Use of heat recovery systems
z Monitoring and controlling of water losses from the system

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals

z Closing bypasses on the system network to reduce
thermal losses
z Automatic monitoring with alarms to address
operational issues quickly
z Using consumption data to optimise processes
z Reviewing consumption data to assess system performance

Reducing waste
We treat surplus yeast from brewing to recover beer that can
be reintroduced into the brewing process. In the process,
we reduce water consumption, effluent volume, organic
load in the effluent, and heat and cooling consumption.

Capturing carbon dioxide
CO2 is a byproduct of the brewing process. During yeast
fermentation, CO2 is released into the atmosphere.
We capture and reuse the CO2 in the bottling of our own
products as well as in the beer filtering process to limited

Thermal energy consumption (MJ per hl of product)

oxygen exposure. This ensures that a premium liquid of
highest quality is delivered to our customers.
NBL aims to be fully self-sustainable in its CO2 consumption
needs. We have significantly reduced our consumption over
the years through daily recording, observation and corrective
actions. We have been selling CO2 to third parties in
Namibia as an additional income stream for more than 15
years, and sold our first load to South Africa in May 2021.

Cleaning and recycling initiatives
NBL is well known for environmental and conservation efforts,
as well as clean-up campaigns. We have been involved in a
range of campaigns, including Project Shine, the Green
Directory, Fish River Canyon and Ondangwa clean-up
campaigns, as well as the Dare to Care disaster fund. This year,
NBL sponsored food, First Aid kits and drinks worth N$16 776
towards the Fish River Canyon clean-up campaign.
NBL, through the O&L Group, is a founding member of the
Recycle Namibia Forum and NBL actively supports
recycling efforts. Our most significant annual capital
investment is in returnable glass bottles, which reduce the
impact of packaging waste on the environment and offers
cost-effective packaging. 63% (2020: 48%) of production
is packaged in returnable containers.
During 2021, NBL achieved a return ratio of 99.6%
(2020: 99.7%) through an extensive collection network
that helps reduce waste. This includes an agreement with
AB InBev Namibia to exchange returnable bottles weekly.
We have recycling initiatives that separate general waste
from bottles and cans at secondary depots – this waste is
then collected by Rent-a-Drum every week.

Thermal energy sources (%)
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Supporting our stakeholders
Through the programmes,
partnerships and initiatives
discussed under SDG 12,
we support all our
stakeholders as they equally
rely on natural resources
and therefore benefit from
our efforts to preserve
them.
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CHARITABLE GIVING
AND SUPPORT

Our
profile

As part of our centenary celebrations, we launched a N$1 million ‘giving back’ campaign this year. The campaign called on
NBL employees to nominate community upliftment projects and goodwill organisations in need. The employees who
nominated the organisations that were selected were invited to personally hand over the donation.

Chairperson’s
statement

W

e continue giving back to local communities as an expression of gratitude for their continued
support over the years. This is not directly related to our SDG contributions, but helps to
support the work done by charitable organisations throughout Namibia.

Support initiatives included the following:

Organisation

How NBL helped

KAVANGO EAST
REGION

Mpotuli Kindergarten

We provided building supplies to complete a fence around the school
property for the children’s safety. Groceries, toiletries and sanitiser were
donated.

KAVANGO WEST
REGION

Sirkka Nangura
Academy &
Consultancy

We made classrooms a safe and fun place for children to learn,
providing educational toys, chalkboards, stationery, classroom tables,
chairs and building supplies as requested. In addition, groceries were
provided to support their soup kitchen.

Managing
director’s report

ZAMBEZI REGION

Mainstream
Foundation

To assist and support their feeding programme and rehabilitation centre,
we provided educational toys, stationery, classroom desks and chairs,
groceries, kitchen items, blankets and toiletries.

OMAHEKE
REGION

Ozohambo
Kindergarten, part of
the Palms for Life Fund

The fund is expanding support for early childhood development focused
on San communities. Groceries were identified as the main necessity due
to other donors withdrawing under difficult economic circumstances.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

KUNENE REGION

Otjikojo Primary
School

The school requested building supplies to erect a fence around their
property to ensure the safety of the children.

KARAS REGION

Ausenkehr child care
centre

They pride themselves in providing a safe and loving home environment
to children in need of temporary care, where there is no discrimination
and prejudice based on culture, gender, background and religion. They
requested a prepaid meter line and groceries.

ERONGO REGION

Ruach Elohim
Foundation

Ruach Elohim Foundation focuses on awareness of baby dumping, as
well as the care of unwanted, abandoned, abused and neglected babies.
Vouchers were donated to relieve the pressures of daily costs such as
groceries, diapers, wet wipes, formula, clothing, etc.

ERONGO REGION

Mondesa School and
community foundation

We donated grocery vouchers to sustain a community soup kitchen,
thereby helping to improve the living standards of children from different
disadvantaged backgrounds.

ERONGO REGION

Hands of Hope
Namibia

One of the Hands of Hope’s objectives is to fight hunger and
malnutrition with food packs for families with no access to food, and
also to provide support through food or materials for soup kitchens. We
donated vouchers for this purpose.

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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Region

Organisation

How NBL helped

KHOMAS REGION

The Block Movement
and The Kitchen of
Good Hope

The project consists of a chain of social kitchens that serves a daily
decent hot meal to children and elderly people at risk of severe hunger
in unprivileged areas. The vouchers we provided assisted with the
purchasing of ingredients.

KHOMAS REGION

Axis – Feeding the
Hungry

We made a monetary donation to this food programme.

KHOMAS REGION

Side by Side Early
Intervention Centre

The centre is for children with a disability and their families based in
Goreangab in the Township of Windhoek. A donation was made to
facilitate the construction of wheelchair accessibility to the facility as this
is currently a big challenge for children, parents and social workers.

KHOMAS REGION

Fire victims

Two nine-person tents were donated to victims of the fire in Okahandja’s
informal settlement.

OSHANA REGION

Dr Frans Aupa
Indongo special care
organisation

The organisation provides housing for children abandoned due to
disabilities. Vouchers were used to buy groceries for meals and stationery
for schooling.

OHANGWENA
REGION

Ongalangobe Village

This community project established a clinic and used the nomination to
procure two 10 000-l water tanks for the clinic with the necessary fittings
and fixtures to ensure sufficient water.

HARDAP REGION

Hendrik Witbooi
Programme

We provided funds for renovations to a donated building that provides
children with a safe space to learn and to keep them off the streets.

OSHIKOTO
REGION

Hope Children Centre

The centre provides a stable home environment for destitute children.
They also act as a temporary shelter for children in need of care and
provide quality accommodation in a small, family-sized unit, that does not
label the child as being institutionalised. Funds were used to build a roof
and apply additional safety features to the facility. The remainder of the
donation was in the form of vouchers that were used to buy groceries.

OTJOZONDJUPA
REGION

The marginalised
communities of
Okahandja

Groceries were procured to assist 150 households with food parcels as
existing assistance could not fully meet the growing needs of all groups.

OMUSATI
REGION

Niilo Taapopi
Secondary School

The school has 1 035 learners of which about 200 do not have adequate
school chairs and desks. The donation relieved this burden for the
children and school.

We extended our support to the Namibia Drought Relief initiative in the past months by offering transportation services to
help deliver fodder to farmers across the country who have been severely impacted by the drought.
NBL also came to the rescue of the Twaloloka community in Walvis Bay when raging shack fires destroyed numerous homes
in the cold winter by donating 450 tents.
We continued our support for the Cancer Association of Namibia, with the further renovation of the Children’s Paediatric
Oncology Ward as an addition to the annual support to treatment and prevention of cancer. We donated N$75 000 in
addition to our annual contribution of N$140 000 towards the ward at the Windhoek Central Hospital to ensure children
with cancer have a warm, safe and supportive medical environment.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

59

About
this report

Chairperson’s
statement

Managing
director’s report

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Governance
report

Risk and
opportunities report

Remuneration
report

Annual financial
statements

Notice of annual
general meeting

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Our context
and strategy

“We appreciate the confidence and
trust and support of all our valued
stakeholders.”
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GOVERNANCE REPORT
OUR COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors is committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance best practices and strives
to implement the best processes and principles of good
corporate governance, a role that they view as fundamental
to ensuring ethical and effective leadership.

Governance Report

The Board’s commitment to best practices drives NBL to
constantly improve the way NBL is managed and ensure
that good governance is embedded in the Company.
NBL ascribes to the tenets of the corporate governance
imperatives required to ensure the cohesive functioning across
all spheres as set out in the Corporate Governance Code for
Namibia (NamCode), Namibia Stock Exchange Listings
Requirements, the provisions of the Companies Act 2004 and
its Regulations, the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, regulatory and supervisory prescripts, and
applicable corporate governance principles, codes and best
practices to achieve its outcomes of maintaining an ethical
culture, ensuring business performance, effective controls, and
legitimacy, thereby creating an environment where ethical and
effective leadership complements each other.

NBL’s culture, purpose and values further embeds its
commitment to corporate governance by encouraging a
culture of openness, ownership, accountability, and
integrity. We believe these practices enable effective risk
management and overall good corporate governance
practices throughout our business operations and will
continue to do so in the coming years.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors
includes inter alia steering the organisation, providing
leadership based on an ethical foundation, ensuring
accountability, approving policy and planning and strategic
guidance to safeguard stakeholder value creation within a
framework of prudent and effective controls. This makes it
possible to assess and manage risk to ensure long-term
sustainable development and growth.
The Board comprises highly skilled professionals with many
years of industry specific knowledge and experience to
discharge its governance role and responsibilities
objectively and effectively.

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES AND MANDATES
The Board has further implemented appropriate governance structures to navigate and manage the complex operating environment,
risks, and strategic objectives of NBL. The Board is therefore supported by four Board committees, which are constituted and
structured according to the needs of NBL and to assist the Board to fulfil its fiduciary and oversight duties effectively.

Board of Namibia Breweries Limited

Board committees
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Academia: CA(Nam), Postgraduate BAcc (University of
Stellenbosch), BAcc (University of Stellenbosch)

Appointment: 1 July 2019

Experience: Waldemar has been Finance Director at NBL since
July 2019. He joined the O&L Group in 2007 as Finance Manager
at Windhoek Schlachterei. He subsequently held several diverse
positions in the Group, including Strategic Planning and Decision
Support Manager at NBL, and most recently Finance Director at
Pick n Pay Namibia. There he was responsible for the overall
leadership of the finance, IT, and procurement departments.

Experience: Marco has been with the O&L Group since 2000.
In 2002, he was appointed as General Manager of the O&L Group’s
Property Division until the joint venture with Broll Property Group
South Africa in 2003. He served in various roles at Broll Namibia
between 2003 and 2005 until taking over the Managing Director
role in 2005, serving in that capacity until 30 June 2019. He played
an integral role in developing Broll Namibia to be the largest
commercial property services provider in Namibia. He is a
Trustee of the O&L Pension Fund.

Appointment: 1 July 2019

External Directorships and Interest
No external involvement
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External Directorships and Interest
Director of various companies within the Ohlthaver & List Group.
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Academia: Studied towards his BCompt (UNISA), Senior
Management Development Programme (University of Stellenbosch),
GAP International Leadership Certificate (Breakthrough Intensive),
Breakthrough Management Skills (BMS) Leadership Training

Remuneration
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Waldemar von Lieres (42)
Finance Director

Risk and
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Marco Wenk (45)
Managing Director
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Sven Thieme (53)
Chairperson of the Board
Academia: CA (Nam)
Appointment: 14 March 2002
Experience: Sven is the Executive Chairperson of the O&L Group.
He joined O&L in 1998 after working for four years as a chartered
accountant in Luxembourg. He was also the architect of several
joint ventures entered into by O&L, including the deal between
Heineken SA, Diageo and Namibia Breweries.
External Directorships and Interest

z Member of the High-Level Panel of the President of the
z

Republic of Namibia
Chairperson of the Windhoek Country Club and Casino

z

Director of the Namibia Chamber of Commerce and

Industry.

Governance Report

Hans-Bruno Gerdes (69)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Academia: ACIS, BProc (University of Cape Town)
Appointment: 28 July 2000
Experience: Hans-Bruno previously served as Managing Director at
Engling, Stritter & Partners. He is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He practices as a commercial/corporate
attorney, and is actively involved in the organised legal profession.
He is also the chairperson of the Legal Practitioners Fidelity Fund
and Honorary Consul for the Kingdom of Belgium in Namibia.
External Directorships and Interest
Hans-Bruno is a director of the Namibia Stock Exchange and holds
various other directorships and serves on various governance
committees in the Insurance, Tourism, Telecommunication, and
Investment sectors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Academia: LLB, LLM, Postgraduate Diploma in International and
European Law, Certified Financial Planner, Certified Pilates Instructor.

Chairperson’s
statement

Afra Ripurua Schimming-Chase (48)
Independent Non-executive
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Appointment: 2 December 2020

Managing
director’s report

Vetumbuavi Junius Mungunda (48)
Independent Non-executive
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Investment Committee
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External Directorships and Interest
z Chase & Associates CC
z Benchmark Retirement Fund
z Old Mutual Namib Retirement Annuity Fund
z Wordpress (Pty) Ltd
z Namibia Print Property Investments (Pty) Ltd

Our
profile

Experience: Afra is the consultant and owner of Chase & Associates CC,
Financial Planning & Coaching Practice. She is a partner and certified
facilitator in the Franklin Covey suite of products as well as a customer
service expert, seasoned public speaker, and dynamic facilitator.

Academia: CA (Nam) (SA), BCom, HDipAcc (Rhodes University),
Advanced Management Programme – AMP (Harvard University)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Appointment: 2 December 2020
Experience: Vetumbuavi was the Chief Executive Officer of
Standard Bank Namibia until April 2021. Prior to joining Standard
Bank, he worked for Deloitte for 18 years, where he was admitted
as partner in 2001 and appointed as managing partner of Deloitte
Namibia in 2007. He was later appointed as regional managing
partner for Deloitte Southern Corridor (Malawi, Botswana,
Namibia, Zambia, and Zimbabwe) in 2012, a position held before
he joined Standard Bank Namibia.

Governance
report

External Directorships and Interest
z Ombu Capital (Pty) Ltd
z Schoemans Investments (Pty) Ltd
z Old Mutual Holdings Namibia Ltd
z Oryx Properties Ltd
z Namibia Investment Promotion and Development Board
z Namibia Chamber of Commerce and Industry

Appointment: 3 June 2004
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External Directorships and Interest
z Trustee: Goreangab Trust
z Lloyd’s representative Namibia
z First National Bank of Namibia Limited
z Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading Corporation Limited

Annual financial
statements

Experience: Peter joined the O&L Group in October 2003 as Chief
Executive Officer where he was responsible for formulating and
executing strategy. Prior to joining O&L he held the position of
partner in charge of Deloitte Namibia.

Remuneration
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Academia: CA(Nam)
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Peter Grüttemeyer (68)
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Investment Committee
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Günther Hanke (65)
Alternate Director to Sven Thieme
Academia: CFA (SA), BCom (Accounting), Senior Management
Programme Certificate
Appointment: 1 October 2015
Experience: Günther joined the O&L Group in March 2004 as
Group Financial Director responsible for formulating and
executing strategy as part of the executive team. He has held
various senior executive positions over the past 26 years.

Governance Report

External Directorships and Interest
Chairperson and Director of various Operating Companies within
the Ohlthaver & List Group.

Laura McLeod-Katjirua (62)
Independent Non-executive
Academia: GradDip DVST and Management, NDip
(Basic Education)
Appointment: 2 April 2012
Experience: Governor McLeod-Katjirua has a long history of
serving the people of Namibia. She has been active in the
promotion of gender equality and education in Namibia. She is
currently the appointed Governor of Khomas Region, where she
continues to support various initiatives that support the
development and well-being of Namibians.
External Directorships and Interest
z Regional Governor: Khomas Region
z Member of the National Heritage Council of Namibia

Roland Pirmez (61)
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Academia: BEng (Agriculture), Master’s degree (Brewing)
(Université Catholique de Louvain)
Appointment: 8 September 2015
Experience: Roland was appointed President of Heineken Africa,
Middle East, and Eastern Europe in 2015. From 2013 until 2015,
he was President of Asia Pacific Brewery Company Limited (APB)
and CEO of APB. Roland joined Heineken in 1995. From 1995 to
1998, he was Managing Director of Heineken Angola. In 1998, he
was appointed General Manager of Thai APB, Thailand and in
2002, became CEO of Heineken in Russia.
External Directorships and Interest
Roland holds various other directorships and serves on various
governance committees in the Beverages sector.
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Academia: Master’s degree (Business Economics)
(University of Groningen)
Appointment: 1 July 2017
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Experience: Steven was appointed Finance Director
of Heineken Africa, Middle East, and Eastern Europe
in 2017. From 2014 to 2017, he was Finance
Director of Heineken Spain. Steven joined Heineken
in 1990 as Marketing Controller of Heineken
Netherlands. In 2001, he was appointed as Finance
Director of Heineken Ireland. From 2005 to 2010,
Steven worked at Heineken CEE, Austria as Head of
Region Control and Business Development Director.

Chairperson’s
statement

Steven Siemer (55)
Member of the Investment Committee

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report

Pascal Sabrié (60)
Alternate Director to Roland Pirmez
Academia: MBA (Neoma Business Scholl Rouen, France)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Appointment: 3 March 2020
Experience: Pascal has been appointed the Managing Director for
Heineken Africa and Middle East Region in February 2020. Prior to
this, he held the Heineken France Managing Director position
(2011 to 2020), Western Europe Marketing and Commercial
Director (2010 to 2011) (Marketing and Sales), Vice-president
Heineken France (2006 to 2010), Managing Director Brasserie
Fischer (1999 to 2006) and Marketing Director Heineken France
(1993 to 1999).

Governance
report

External Directorships and Interest
No external involvement

Appointment: Appointed to the NBL Board as Managing Director
on 2 April 2012 and became a Non-executive Director with his
resignation and subsequent appointment as Chief Executive Officer
of the O&L Group on 1 July 2019.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

External Directorships and Interest
Chairperson and Director of various Operating Companies within
the Ohlthaver & List Group.

Annual financial
statements

Experience: Hendrik was the former Managing Director of Namibia
Breweries Limited and Hangana Seafood (Proprietary) Limited. He
played an integral role in successfully placing Hangana Seafood on
the road of sustained profitability and has over 19 years’
experience in the food and beverage industry.

Remuneration
report

Academia: BSc in Operations Management, Postgraduate degree in
Association in Management and Management Senior Management
Diploma

Risk and
opportunities report

Hendrik van der Westhuizen (48)
Chairperson of the Investment Committee
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SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

Governance Report

While retaining overall accountability, the Board has delegated its authority to the Managing Director responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Company. The Managing Director is supported in his role by the Senior Leadership Team, as
depicted below, who is tasked with implementing the Company’s strategies and objectives.

Marco Wenk
Managing Director

Anton Goosen
Global Sales Manager

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Waldemar von Lieres
Finance Director

Abrie du Plooy
Supply Manager
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Our
profile

Our context
and strategy

Managing
director’s report

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Christin Obst
Strategic Sourcing Manager
René Duffy
Global Marketing Manager

Governance
report

Risk and
opportunities report

Remuneration
report

Annual financial
statements

Timothy Izaks
Human Capital Manager

Notice of annual
general meeting
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BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors meets at least once every quarter or at such shorter intervals as it may deem necessary. The Board
meets to monitor the performance of the Group and other stakeholders. It addresses a range of key issues and ensures that
discussion on items of policy, strategy and performance is critical, informed, and constructive.
The table below sets out the attendance by the Directors at Board meetings:
Board

Governance Report

Meeting dates

9 September
2020

2 December
2020

1 March
2021

9 June
2021

Total
Meeting
Attendance

H-B Gerdes

P

P

P

P

4/4

P Grüttemeyer

P

P

P

P

4/4

L McLeod-Katjirua

P

P

P

A

3/4

R Pirmez

P

P

P

P

4/4

S Siemer

P

P

P

P

4/4

S Thieme

P

P

P

P

4/4

H van der Westhuizen

A

A

P

P

2/4

W von Lieres

P

P

P

P

4/4

M Wenk

P

P

P

P

4/4

AR Schimming-Chase

–

–

P

A

1/2

VJ Mungunda

–

–

P

P

2/2

P = Present
A = Apologies
– = Not a Board member

Vetumbuavi Junius Mungunda and Afra Ripurua Schimming-Chase were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors
effective 2 December 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairperson: H-B Gerdes Members: P Grüttemeyer I M Hoedemaker# I VJ Mungunda
# = Committee member, but not a Board member.

Function
The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the Audit Committee. The nature of the delegation is set forth in
Members: P Grüttemeyer I VJ Mungunda I M Hoedemaker#
the Audit Committee Terms of Reference and the deliberations of the Committee do not reduce the individual and
collective responsibilities of Board members regarding their fiduciary duties and responsibilities.
The role of the Committee is to provide independent oversight of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial,
operating, compliance and risk management controls. In addition, the Committee assesses the independence and
effectiveness of the internal and external auditors. This assists the Board in monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
Annual Financial Statements and related external reports. The Committee has the necessary financial literacy, skill,
and experience to perform its role and functions effectively.
The table below sets out the attendance by the members of the Audit Committee:
Audit Committee
Meeting dates

20 August
2020

5 November
2020

17 February
2021

Total Meeting
Attendance

H-B Gerdes

P

P

P

3/3

P Grüttemeyer

P

P

P

3/3

M Hoedemaker#

P

P

P

3/3

VJ Mungunda

–

-

P

1/1

P = Present
A = Apologies
– = Not a member
NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Chairperson: R Pirmez

About
this report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Members: P Grüttemeyer I AR Schimming-Chase I B Mukuahima#

# = Committee member, but not a Board member

Function
Chairperson’s
statement

z The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the Remuneration Committee. The nature of the delegation is set
forth in the Committee’s Terms of Reference, this include having an independent role, to oversee the remuneration
process, review key human resources practices, policies, and strategies to ensure the Company remunerates fairly and
responsibly and oversee the appointment of Directors.
The table below sets out the attendance by the Directors at Board meetings:

Our
profile

Remuneration Committee
Meeting dates

2 September
2020

1 March
2021

Total Meeting
Attendance

P

P

2/2

P

P

2/2

AR Schimming-Chase

–

P

1/1

B Mukuahima

P

P

2/2

Our context
and strategy

R Pirmez
P Grüttemeyer

P = Present
A = Apologies
Managing
director’s report

– = Not a Board member

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Members: P
 Grüttemeyer I VJ Mungunda
AR Schimming-Chase I S Siemer

Function
The purpose of the Committee is to set the direction on the investment criteria for any new investments and approve
any investment objectives and guidelines.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Chairperson: H van der Westhuizen

Governance
report

The table below sets out the attendance by the members:
Investment Committee

P

P

6/6

P

P

6/6

P

P

P

6/6

P

P

P

3/3

P

P

P

3/3

1 October
2020

H van der Westhuizen

P

P

P

P

P Grüttemeyer

P

P

P

P

S Siemer

P

P

P

AR Schimming-Chase

–

–

–

VJ Mungunda

–

–

–

Meeting dates

25 January 12 February
2021
2021

P = Present

Remuneration
report

Total
Meeting
Attendance

6 August
2021

Risk and
opportunities report

6 May
2021

8 July
2020

A = Apologies
– = Not a Board member
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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RISK COMMITTEE (MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE)
Chairperson: M Wenk

Members: NBL Senior Leadership Team
O&L Group Enterprise Risk Manager I O&L Head Group Risk

Function
The Management Risk Committee has an independent and advisory role with accountability to the Audit
Committee. The committee’s purpose is to assist the Board of Directors to fulfil its responsibilities relating to risk
governance, the assessment and review of credit, market, fiduciary, liquidity, reputational, operational, fraud,
strategic, technology, data security and business continuity risks and monitoring the overall risk profile.
The table below sets out the attendance by the members:
Risk Committee
Meeting dates

11 August
2020

21 October
2020

8 February
2021

Total Meeting
Attendance

M Wenk

P

P

P

3/3

W von Lieres

P

P

P

3/3

P = Present
A = Apologies

Governance Report

– = Not a member

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) STEERING COMMITTEE
(MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE)
Chairperson: W von Lieres

Members: O&L Centre Manager Information Systems I O&L Centre Manager
Group Information Technology I NBL Manager Digital Marketing I
NBL Manager Industrial Control Systems I NBL Business Analyst I
NBL Manager Compliance I NBL Sales Operations Manager I
NBL Technical Procurement Lead

Function
The NBL Information Technology Steering Committee is established to set the overall direction and strategy for NBL’s
Information Technology (IT) and Operational Technology (OT) environments. The committee is tasked with ensuring
that the investments into technology are made in an objective and transparent manner in support of the strategic
business objectives.
The table below sets out the attendance by the member:
Information Technology (IT) Steering Committee
Meeting dates
W von Lieres
P = Present
A = Apologies
– = Not a member

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

8 July
2020

28 October
2020

1 February
2021

Total Meeting
Attendance

P

P

P

3/3
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During the reporting year, the following internal audits were
performed:

Ohlthaver & List Centre (Pty) Limited (O&L Centre) serves
as Company Secretary for NBL. O&L Centre is a subsidiary
of Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading Corporation
Limited (OLFITRA) and provides secretarial services to the
companies in the group. The secretariat function is qualified
and experienced to provide the Board of Directors with the
required support regarding their duties, responsibilities, and
powers to ensure compliance with corporate governance
best practices.

z Procure to Pay

The Risk and Compliance department is responsible for
ensuring that corrective actions are taken and
recommendations implemented.
EY also performs internal follow-up audits and reports
independently to the Audit Committee and then to the Senior
Leadership Team on the findings and recommendations it
identifies. The internal and external auditors have unlimited
access to the Audit Committee chairperson.
There is a strong drive within NBL to uphold the highest
technical and operational standards. Fire and safety policies
and procedures are regularly reviewed and tested so that
they remain compliant. Each manager within their function
is evaluated constantly on the health and safety ratings
achieved during these audits. By strictly following this
programme, NBL has managed to improve its health and
safety standards for employees, contractors, suppliers and
other service providers to NBL.
Since 2015, insurance audits have been conducted by
Group Risk using the Marsh methodology to better quantify
and manage risk. The main plant is audited on an annual
basis, while depots are audited on a rotational basis. Audits
scheduled for the year were postponed until the next
financial year due to the pandemic and travel restrictions.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION,
ETHICS AND TIP-OFFS ANONYMOUS
HOTLINE

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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Remuneration
report

NBL’s Board recognises the importance of communicating
the Company’s activities to all stakeholders in a balanced
and comprehensive manner. Each key stakeholder
group has a business owner – the individual in NBL
primarily accountable for managing the relationship
and regularly engaging with the stakeholder or
stakeholder group concerned.

Risk and
opportunities report

Any deficiencies are recorded, monitored regularly and
reported to the Senior Leadership Team. This has proven to
be a successful approach to critically evaluating and
improving internal control policies and procedures. The
internal audit function was outsourced to the auditing firm
EY. The internal audit programme is founded on a three-year
risk-based approach. The internal audit plan is approved by
the Audit Committee and regularly reviewed by the Risk
and Compliance department.

All findings and recommendations are recorded on an audit
tracker and closely monitored by the Senior Leadership Team.

Governance
report

NBL tests compliance with internal control procedures and
policies by doing continuous management and internal
financial control reviews, and also relies on external parties
providing internal audits. Experienced and qualified
employees are appointed as control champions throughout
the business functions to review and evaluate financial and
technical controls.

z Quality Control Process Review

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

NBL’s internal controls are designed and operated to assist
in identifying, evaluating and managing NBL’s risks and
strategic opportunities, as well as its business environment.
Internal control systems provide the Senior Leadership Team
and the Board with reasonable assurance as to the integrity
and reliability of the financial statements.

z Payroll Management

Managing
director’s report

INTERNAL CONTROLS

z Hire to termination & Leave

Our context
and strategy

The NBL Board believes that further enhancements on
existing best recommended practice will be made over
time, in line with its objective to continuously improve
corporate governance.

z Fixed Asset Accounting

Our
profile

NBL has to comply with applicable Namibian legislation
and the NSX Listing Requirements. The NSX requires NBL
to comply with the NamCode, which is based on the
principles and recommendations of South Africa’s 2009
King Report on Corporate Governance (King III) as well
as Namibian legislation.

z Treasury and Revenue

Chairperson’s
statement

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

About
this report

COMPANY SECRETARIAT
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Shareholder communications take the form of analyst
presentations when NBL announces its interim and final
financial results. The Company publishes and reports on
details of its performance (including its interim and final
financial results) in two local daily newspapers. Other
Company notices and publications are published on the
website, where the most recent financial and historical
information is available, including integrated annual reports.
The Audit Committee is responsible for embedding a culture
of high ethical standards. The committee periodically
reviews the Company’s Code of Ethics and programme to
monitor compliance. Employees have several ways to raise

their concerns and make recommendations or obtain
feedback from the Senior Leadership Team. One such
avenue is the workplace forum within the different
functions, which is held weekly or fortnightly. At these
forums, employees can discuss their concerns. If an
employee is not comfortable with airing their views at these
forums, they can contact the Tip-offs Anonymous hotline.
The hotline is administrated by an independent service
provider, Deloitte & Touche.
NBL invites all shareholders to attend its AGM and also
facilitates participation by encouraging shareholders unable
to attend to submit proxy forms.

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS FOR 30 JUNE 2021
Shareholding analysis

2021

2020

Number of shares in issue

206 529 000

206 529 000

7 777 377

1 775 311

231 140 170

80 674 052

Market price (cents per share)

3 121

3 499

Closing price (cents per share)

3 121

3 499

3.5%

3.0%

Bid price (cents per share)

3 110

3 500

Earnings yield (HEPS)

5.71%

3.6%

17.5

27.9

Number of shares traded

Governance Report

Value of shares traded (N$)

Dividend yield*

Price: earnings ratio (HEPS)
* Excludes special dividends.

Public and non-public shareholding
Public
Non-public

Total

Distribution of shareholders per category

Number of
shareholders

Percentage
of total
shareholders

Number of Percentage of
shares in
issued share
issue
capital

1 442

99.93

83 908 702

40.63

1

0.07

122 620 298

59.37

1 443

100

206 529 000

100

Number of
shareholders

Percentage
of total
shareholders

Number of Percentage of
shares in
issued share
issue
capital

33

2.29

125 192 749

60.62

106

7.35

72 838 367

35.27

1 274

88.28

5 164 493

2.50

30

2.08

3 333 391

1.61

Number of
shareholders

Percentage
of total
shareholders

1 – 1 000

901

62.44

412 907

0.20

1 001 – 50 000

461

31.94

2 937 360

1.42

50 001 – 100 000

19

1.32

1 295 366

0.63

100 001 – 10 000 000

60

4.16

49 308 276

23.87

2

0.14

152 575 091

73.88

1 443

100

206 529 000

100

Corporate bodies
Nominees companies
Private individuals
Trusts

Shareholder spread by beneficial owner

10 000 000 and above

Total

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Number of Percentage of
shares in
issued share
issue
capital
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RISK AND
OPPORTUNITY REPORT

z Risk governance: strategic decision-making and risk
oversight, led by the Board

z Risk ownership: identifying, measuring, monitoring,
and reporting on specific risks, led by the business
units and risk functions

Remuneration
report

The O&L Group policies are adopted by NBL and
implementation oversight is provided by the NBL Board
and relevant risk structures.

Risk and
opportunities report

z Risk infrastructure and management: designing,
implementing, and maintaining an effective risk
management programme, led by executive management

Governance
report

In the past year, this need for agility and business enablement
led us to redefine the conventional understanding of risk
management. We define the purpose of risk management
as “the creation and protection of value”, aligned to our
Group purpose of Creating a Future, Enhancing Life.
Through this alignment, we embrace a purposeful culture
that fosters creativity and innovation. This culture is

The risk oversight role of the various committees is
supported by:

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The global pandemic reinforced the importance of effective
risk management practices that reflect an uncertain and
changing universe of risk. We have to be able to navigate
increased risk exposures in a drive to ultimately protect
stakeholder value. Now more than ever, the importance
of organisational resilience, agility and adaptability has
been highlighted to ensure future business sustainability.

Even though NBL views risk management as the
responsibility of each individual, the backbone and ultimate
accountability of risk governance lies with the Board.
The NBL Board has delegated their oversight role to the
Audit Committee and Management Risk Committee.
Together they take full responsibility of and support the
Board in their risk oversight role.

Managing
director’s report

OUR AGILE RISK APPROACH

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our context
and strategy

NBL is an alcoholic beverage producer that predominantly
competes in southern Africa against global beer
brands. Due to our leadership position in Namibia, our
opportunities for growth are mainly focused on maintaining
and growing market share in Namibia, product innovation
and growing our volumes beyond our borders. These
opportunities require that we effectively mitigate people
skills, supply chain, brewing, packaging and route-tomarket risks. Our main dependencies constitute potential
future risk, such as water supply in an arid environment,
as well as increasing regulation to limit the social impact
resulting from the harmful use of alcohol.

embedded through our leadership dimensions of affinity,
ownership, interdependence, purpose and risk. The idea of
‘owning the whole’, where each employee understands their
role in achieving our strategic outcomes, has led to each
individual interdependently and proactively taking up their
responsibility of managing risk on a daily basis. We believe
this has enabled effective risk management and will cement
our culture around risk management in future.

Our
profile

OUR RISK PROFILE

Chairperson’s
statement

T

o create and protect value, we manage risks and explore opportunities.
This improves performance, encourages innovation and supports the
achievement of our strategic outcomes and 2025 vision metrics.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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Olfitra* Board
NBL Board

NBL
Audit
Committee

Risk and Opportunities Report

NBL Management
Risk Committee

NBL
Remuneration
Committee

NBL
Investment
Committee

Olfitra*
Audit
Committee

NBL IT Steerco

Group
Remuneration
Committee

Group
Risk
Committee

* The Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading Corporation Limited (Olfitra) Board acts as the O&L Group Board

Read more about the mandate of the Audit Committee in
the governance report from page 59.
The functions of the Management Risk Committee include:
z Setting the tone and developing a risk culture that
promotes open discussion so that people at all levels
manage risks rather than reflexively avoid or heedlessly
take them.
z Monitoring risk maturity levels in the business and
taking corrective action, where required.
z Overseeing the implementation of risk management
frameworks, policies and standards.
z Considering key reasonable possibilities (positive and
negative) and opportunities.
z Reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the risk
assessment processes and recommending
improvements, where appropriate.
z Monitoring the NBL risk profile (including
emerging risks).

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

A Group Operational risk team is responsible for ensuring
that safety, health and environment (SHE), loss prevention
and business continuity risks are managed and where
applicable mitigated accordingly. NBL has a dedicated
operational risk manager that links into the O&L Group
Operational risk team for reporting purposes.
Risk discussions form part of our day-to-day operations.
Besides continuous engagement between the O&L Group
risk department and NBL leadership teams, we have
Risk Management Committee meetings three times a year
and weekly SLT meetings, where risk management is on
the agenda and where aspects around risks within the
business are flagged to senior management for urgent
attention on a continuous basis.
Risks and opportunities are also discussed at the quarterly
Business Leadership Review (BLR) meetings that are
attended by O&L Group Executives (Chairperson of the
Board, CEO, CFO, COO, etc.)

75

The Risk Management Framework remains the foundation for
designing, implementing, monitoring and reviewing an
integrated risk management process. The framework aligns
with international accepted standards such as NamCode:2014,
ISO 31000:2018, ISO 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018.

We strive to achieve the following outcomes through our
process to manage risks and create opportunities:

The Risk Management Framework defines the risk structure
and risk universe to ensure the following:
z A systematic approach to risk management

z Proactive identification of risks and opportunities for
breakthrough performance within NBL

z Create safe learning spaces by ensuring that the nature
and area within which experimentation will occur, is
understood and accepted as a tolerable risk for the
business, balanced with returns traded for the risk.

z Prevention and/or minimisation of loss and damage to
company assets

RISK EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT

z Prevention and/or minimisation of accidents and
injuries of personnel

Deloitte Namibia conducted a risk management
effectiveness review of the O&L Group this year. The aim of
the review was to assist in improving the maturity of risk
management in the group in the quest to become risk
intelligent. The report highlighted the high level of maturity
of NBL’s combined assurance and integration of specialist
risks such as fraud, compliance and ethics risk.

z Risk is governed in a way which supports the setting and
achieving of strategic outcomes

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

z Leverage the best available information through
engagement, the power of technology and agile
practices.

Managing
director’s report

z Prevention and/or minimisation of environmental
damage

Our context
and strategy

z Promotion of employee awareness and their individual
responsibilities in terms of risk

z Enable a fast-learning environment that minimises
current risks and potential future risks by ensuring that
the points of validation and uncertainty are clearly
mapped and linked to feedback mechanisms.

Our
profile

z Risk entrenchment within all operational and strategic
activities

z Influence the strategy by identifying risks earlier,
especially during the planning stages of projects. If key
risks are identified earlier and at the right level, it becomes
easier to manage them at project delivery stages.

Chairperson’s
statement

RISK MANAGEMENT OUTCOMES

About
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OUR RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
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Risk and Opportunities Report

KEY STRATEGIC RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR 2021
Risk and opportunity elements

How we respond

Who takes
responsibility

The equity investment and supply
agreement with Heineken SA
impact significantly on NBL’s
profitability in terms of share of
EBIT, share of interest and tax, and
royalties received.

We ensure regular engagement between NBL, O&L
Group and Heineken SA on strategy and operational
opportunities. A supply agreement with variation
conditions is in place and adhered to.

Marco Wenk
Managing Director

To ensure future volume growth
for the business, we are looking at
expansion opportunities through
distribution partnerships in both
the Namibian and export markets.
At the same time we continue
innovating through new-to-world
products and optimising our
portfolio.

By unlocking new growth opportunities, we can ensure
optimal capacity utilisation. We are reviewing our export
strategy, focusing on South Africa and export markets.
In export markets, we are appointing and supporting
new distributors. We are optimising and balancing our
portfolio of export brands in a consumer-centric way,
based on market insights and experiences that will
differentiate our brands from competitors.

To effectively implement our
strategy, we need a breakthrough
culture where NBL people are
inspired and enabled to be the
best version of themselves.

We are driving an impactful employee engagement
culture through motivating communication and initiatives
that ensure organisational alignment. We measure
our progress through the Great Place to Work® and
Organisational Alignment Diagnostic® surveys.

Read more in the Managing Director’s report from page 34.
Anton Goosen
Global Sales
Manager
Rene Duffy
Global Marketing
Manager

Read more in the section on our purpose-led strategy for
the future from page 29.
Timothy Izaks
Human Capital
Manager

We have an all-encompassing health and wellness
approach that focuses on productivity, goal setting,
and health management to influence behaviour change
and achieve measurable outcomes. We focus on
strategic leadership, talent management, learning and
development, and rewards that are fair, transparent and
sustainable. These initiatives further support the creation
of a talent pool with a succession pipeline.
Read more in the Managing Director’s report from
page 34.
While technology brings significant
efficiencies and opportunities, it
brings the risk of cybercrime that
can result in financial losses due
to phishing, ransomware, data
loss, and the cost impact from the
recovery of data.

We conduct annual cyber risk assessments to identify
exposure within the IT environment. These assessments
consist of IT controls audits and internal and external
vulnerability tests. We also focus on continuous
employee awareness and education on cybercrime,
and assess user awareness status through simulations.
General IT security are continuously updated. When we
evaluate the current state of information security, any
weaknesses are immediately addressed through the
implementation of corrective actions. NBL has cyber
liability insurance cover and fully operational offsite
disaster recovery infrastructure.

Waldemar von
Lieres
Finance Director

Read more about digital transformation in the Managing
Director’s report from page 34.
By complying to laws, regulations
and standards we act as a good
corporate citizen and protect the
interests of our stakeholders.

Non-compliance can result in business disruption, fines,
penalties, loss of income and reputational damage. We
have clear roles and responsibilities around compliance,
and execute compliance requirements according to
the combined assurance model. We have identified
NBL’s legal compliance universe and report on a regular
basis to the Risk Management Committee and Audit
Committee, which have oversight of compliance.
Read more in the governance report from page 59.

The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management processes.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Waldemar von
Lieres
Finance Director
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Future focus areas
Our priority for the next financial year is to roll out further
risk awareness training to further entrench a culture of
risk management.

Our
profile
Our context
and strategy

Changing consumer preferences and pricing strategies:
Pressure on consumer disposable income translates into
buying decisions that favour higher alcohol by volume
products in certain price points. We continuously explore
opportunities for new beverages through innovation in our
value chain while also remaining committed to supporting
low-and-non-alcoholic beverages within our portfolio.

Chairperson’s
statement

COVID-19 and country risk: We have to deal with the
unpredictability and high impact of COVID-19 within our
operating environment as well as potential regulations and
restrictions on the alcohol industry. Economic pressures are
evident and the potential impact of same is continuously
reviewed – this includes levels of unemployment, crime
and liquidity concerns. We remain committed to supporting
local suppliers while supporting their overall development.
Engagement with Government on ways to spur economic
recovery are ongoing.

Climate change impacts are likely to increase rainfall
during cycles, but with a downward trend in dry seasons:
As one of Windhoek’s major water users, NBL has mitigated
this risk through on-site boreholes that tap into non-potable
water, which in turn is put through NBL’s state of the art
water treatment plant that converts same to brewing quality
water used in the brewing process. The borehole water
resource is a sustainable resource which can mitigate up to
80% of NBL’s production water needs during drought
conditions.

About
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Emerging risks and opportunities
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REMUNERATION
REPORT
N

Remuneration Report

BL’s remuneration approach aims to support the implementation of and
delivery on the Group’s strategy and goals by enabling it to attract, acquire,
retain and appropriately reward employees.
NBL, as part of the O&L Group, has a Remuneration Policy
(the Policy) that applies to its executives. The Policy is
reviewed periodically to take account of changing
circumstances in the market, the industry and the economy.

z The design of executive incentives, including the Board
criteria on which performance-related elements are
based with regard to the trading period, if applicable

The committee considered and decided against
implementing a long-term incentive scheme as the current
Short-term Incentive Scheme is effective. This scheme is
based on financial performance and is linked to NBL’s
long-term targets.

The committee has to ensure a formal, transparent and
objective method to support recommendations to
shareholders regarding remuneration packages for
Directors, including pension benefits. It also has to ensure
that the fees paid to Non-executive Directors are a fair
reflection of their contribution to the Company. This
requires the committee to advise on and monitor a suitable
performance-related formula, including the Board criteria
on which performance- related elements are based. The
committee separates the review and recommendation of
Non-executive Directors’ fees from the review and
recommendation of executive remuneration, each with its
own motivation and basis for the recommendation.

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES AND
GOVERNANCE
The main principles of the Policy for executives are to:
z Provide total remuneration, which is competitive in
structure and quantum with the practices of comparator
companies in the SADC region
z Achieve clear alignment between total remuneration on
the one hand, and delivered business and personal
performance on the other

z Senior employee recruitment, retention and termination

Directors’ emoluments
The Directors’ emoluments are available on page 178.

z Link variable elements of remuneration to challenging
performance criteria that support the Company’s best
interests

Remuneration components

z Provide an appropriate balance of fixed and variable
remuneration
z Provide internal equity among executives and facilitate
the movement of executives within the O&L Group

The fixed element of remuneration is referred to as base
salary. Its purpose is to provide a competitive level of
remuneration for each grade of manager, according to the
Paterson grading system.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is mandated
to oversee all matters pertaining to remuneration and report
back to the Board with findings and recommendations. Its
responsibilities include monitoring the Policy, including:

The base salary is set to be competitive at the median level,
with reference to market practice in companies that are
comparable in terms of size, market sector, business
complexity and international scope.

z Parameters used in determining senior leadership
remuneration scales

Base salaries are reviewed annually and adjusted as
necessary at the beginning of the financial year, considering
external market trends and business and personal
performance.

z Executive remuneration, including remuneration
packages for senior management
z The structure of the remuneration of Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors, the Chairperson
and, where applicable, Board committee members
NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Benefits

Short-term Incentive Scheme

Our
profile

Executive Directors and the rest of the Senior Leadership
Team participate in the annual Short- term Incentive
Scheme. The scheme is a cash bonus plan designed to
support the Policy by:

Chairperson’s
statement

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the
performance of Executive Directors and the Senior
Leadership Team every year.

About
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Benefits provide security for employees and their families
and include membership of a retirement fund and a
medical aid scheme to which contributions are made. The
retirement fund is a defined contribution fund. Other
benefits include a Company car, housing, cellphone and
Company products, as appropriate.

Executive Directors and members of the Senior Leadership
Team may earn a bonus of up to 41.67% of their total
annual package. The Senior Leadership Team’s functional
targets are based on the Company’s overall performance.

Our context
and strategy

z Motivating participants to focus on financial year
performance goals that contribute to sustainable
shareholder value
z Providing significant bonus differentials based on
performance against predetermined Company financial
targets, as well as strategic and divisional or personal
performance objectives
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Notes

30 June 2021
N$’000

30 June 2020
N$’000

2 648 576

2 645 832
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GROUP VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

WEALTH CREATED
Salaries, wages and other employment costs

21

Paid to suppliers for materials and services

(397 817)

(346 383)

(1 137 974)

(1 393 219)

1 112 785

906 230

25 581

17 592

1 138 366

923 822

21

397 817

346 383

Dividends to shareholders

19

225 116

462 728

Finance costs on borrowings

23

46 854

50 545

158 634

87 804

168 795

169 698

152 254

(198 934)

Income from investments
TOTAL WEALTH CREATED

Chairperson’s
statement

Net revenue

Our
profile

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION
Salaries, wages and other employment costs
Providers of capital
Our context
and strategy

Central and local governments
Reinvested in Group to maintain and develop operations
21

Retained earnings
Deferred taxation
TOTAL WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

25

(11 104)

5 598
923 822

349 414

281 714

48 403

64 669

397 817

346 383

155 842

84 953

2 792

2 851

158 634

87 804

Customs and excise duties including import surcharges

762 849

910 536

Value added tax claimed

(30 543)

(33 461)

55 824

69 277

7 069

9 521

795 199

955 873

796

827

NOTES TO THE VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
1. Salaries, wages and other employment costs
Salaries, wages, overtime payments, commissions,
bonuses and allowances
Total contributions to medical aid and pension fund

Governance
report

2. Central and local governments
Normal corporate taxation
Rates and taxes paid on properties

local governments

Notice of annual
general meeting
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Number of employees

Remuneration
report

Withholding taxes

Risk and
opportunities report

3. Additional amounts collected on behalf of central and

PAYE deducted from remuneration paid

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

1 138 366

Managing
director’s report

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
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GROUP SALIENT FEATURES
30 June 2021
N$’000

30 June 2020
N$’000

%
Change

2 648 576

2 645 832

0.1

373 159

261 327

42.8

Earnings per ordinary share (cents)

180.7

126.5

42.8

Headline earnings per ordinary share (cents)

178.2

125.6

41.9

56.0

53.0

5.7

–

53.0

924.2

850.2

8.7

20.4

14.1

44.4

Net revenue
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Interim dividend declared per ordinary share (cents)
Final dividend declared per ordinary share (cents)

Annual financial statements

Net asset value per ordinary share (cents)

Return on ordinary shareholders’ funds (%)
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(100.0)
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N$’000

12 Months
30 June 2019

12 Months
30 June 2018

12 Months
30 June 2017

1 024
(548)
1 755 419

1 024
(103)
1 954 353

1 024
(97)
1 622 001

1 024
160
1 405 101

Ordinary shareholders’ equity
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings (non-current)
Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

1 908 763

1 755 895

1 955 274

1 622 928

1 406 285

489 920
200 686
558 027
3 157 396

501 608
211 375
439 007
2 907 885

183 508
206 865
759 872
3 105 519

285 480
217 158
585 613
2 711 179

384 379
217 011
487 498
2 495 173

2 648 576
(2 035 950)
612 626
(46 854)
25 581

2 645 832
(2 192 589)
453 243
(50 545)
17 592

3 097 583
(2 445 672)
651 911
(42 455)
26 607

2 687 174
(2 074 089)
613 085
(43 325)
32 623

2 708 978
(2 097 965)
611 013
(50 923)
18 304

(73 456)

(76 703)

450 542

(33 441)

(155 717)

517 897
(144 738)

343 587
(82 260)

1 086 605
(155 486)

568 942
(171 256)

422 677
(104 249)

373 159

261 327

931 119

397 686

318 428

907 917
(224 388)
(138 152)

528 925
(461 477)
(41 743)

691 008
(598 274)
(172 198)

709 589
(181 745)
(170 026)

695 841
(169 354)
(128 762)

(3 656)

(1 374)

(1 579)

(728)

(935)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net revenue
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Equity (loss)/profit
from associate
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS
Cash generated by operations
Dividends paid
Taxation paid
Employer benefit payments on
post-employment benefit plans

24 331

(81 043)

357 090

396 790

(98 267)

(143 257)

(94 505)

(127 840)

(142 842)

(89 411)

173 886

(55 859)

(158 029)

(99 602)

54 960

(231 407)

354 802

71 221

154 346
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Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

541 721

Annual financial
statements

Net cash flow from
operating activities
Net cash flow applied to
investing activities
Net cash flow from
financing activities

Remuneration
report

1 024
66
1 907 673

Risk and
opportunities report

Issued capital
Non-distributable reserves
Retained income

Governance
report

988 241
438 265
41 888
10 005
1 016 774
2 495 173

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

1 018 719
404 824
37 544
–
1 250 092
2 711 179

Managing
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995 967
855 366
33 051
–
1 221 135
3 105 519

Our context
and strategy

985 323
778 663
61 167
–
1 082 732
2 907 885

Our
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937 280
710 160
82 387
3 846
1 423 723
3 157 396

Chairperson’s
statement

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in associate
Other non-current assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Current assets

12 Months
12 Months
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF RESULTS
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SUMMARY OF STATISTICS
12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months
30 June
30 June
30 June
30 June
30 June
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
ORDINARY SHARE PERFORMANCE

Annual financial statements

Weighted average number of shares in
issue (000s)
Earnings per ordinary share (cents)
Headline earnings per ordinary share (cents)
Dividends paid per ordinary share (cents)
Special dividend paid per ordinary share (cents)
Dividend cover (times)
Net asset value per ordinary share (cents)

206 529
180.7
178.2
109.0
–
1.7
924.2

206 529
126.5
125.6
103.0
121.0
0.6
850.2

206 529
450.8
450.7
96.0
193.7
1.6
946.7

206 529
192.6
194.6
88.0
–
2.2
785.8

206 529
154.2
229.6
82.0
–
1.9
680.9

PROFITABILITY AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
Operating margin (%)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on ordinary shareholders’ funds (%)

23.1
27.9
20.4

17.1
21.5
14.1

21.0
32.0
52.0

22.8
29.7
26.3

22.6
32.1
23.9

LIQUIDITY AND LEVERAGE
Total liabilities to total shareholders’ funds (%)
Financial gearing ratio (%)
Interest cover (times)
Current ratio (times)

55.3
32.4
13.6
2.6

54.8
36.8
9.3
2.5

49.5
20.4
16.0
1.6

55.1
24.4
14.9
2.1

63.5
35.0
12.4
2.1

DEFINITIONS
Dividend cover
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by dividends paid in the year.
Net asset value per share
Ordinary shareholders’ equity divided by the total number of ordinary shares in issue.
Operating margin
Operating profit expressed as a percentage of net revenue.
Total assets
Property, plant and equipment, current and non-current assets.
Return on total assets
Operating profit plus finance income expressed as a percentage of average total assets (excluding investment in associate).
Return on ordinary shareholders’ funds
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders expressed as a percentage of average ordinary shareholders’ equity.
Total liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings, other current and non-current liabilities. Deferred taxation and income taxation is
excluded.
Financial gearing ratio (%)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings expressed as a percentage of ordinary shareholders’ equity.
Interest cover
Operating profit plus finance income divided by finance costs.
Current ratio
Current assets divided by current liabilities.
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Number of
shareholders

%

Number of
shares

%

1 – 1 000

901

62.44

412 907

0.20

1 001 – 50 000
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ORDINARY SHARE OWNERSHIP

HOLDINGS
31.94

2 937 360

1.42

19

1.32

1 295 366

0.63

100 001 – 10 000 000

60

4.16

49 308 276

23.87

2

0.14

152 575 091

73.88

1 443

100

206 529 000

100

10 000 000 and above

Total

Our
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CATEGORY
Corporate bodies
Nominees companies
Trusts

33

2.29

125 192 749

60.62

106

7.35

72 838 367

35.27

1 274

88.28

5 164 493

2.50

3 333 391

1.61

206 529 000

100.00

at 30 June
2021
%

at 30 June
2020
%

59.37

59.37

0.13

0.12

40.50

40.54

100.0

100.0

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD
The spread of shares held by non-public and public shareholders was as follows:

Non-public shareholders
– Holding company
– Directors and their associates
Public shareholders

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

2.08
100.00

Managing
director’s report

30
1 443

Our context
and strategy

Private individuals

Chairperson’s
statement

461

50 001 – 100 000
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BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDING OF 5% OR MORE
59.37

Government Institutions Pension Fund

14.50

Risk and
opportunities report

NBL Investment Holdings Ltd (including the effective shareholding of
Mr S Thieme of 20.09%)

Remuneration
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Annual financial
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Accounting policies
NBL’s accounting policies comply with International Financial Reporting Standards and are consistent with those of the
previous reporting year.
Revenue
Consolidated net revenue increased by 0.1% from N$2 646 million to N$2 649 million for the year ended 30 June 2021.
The flat revenue figure for 2021 is primarily due to the continued Covid-19 related trade restrictions experienced throughout
the 2021 financial year.
Operating profit
The Group’s operating profit for the year ended 30 June 2021 showed an increase of 35.2% over the previous reporting
period. This translates into an operating profit margin of 23.1% compared with 17.1% reported for the previous financial
year.
Taxation
The taxation charge for the year ended 30 June 2021 was N$145 million, while the previous reporting period reflected a
much lower taxation charge of N$82 million, because of the impacts of Covid-19 on the Group’s profitability. This increase
is a result of better profitability for 2021 with the absence of alcohol bans in Namibia.

Annual financial statements

The accumulated tax losses of the Group’s wholly owned South African and Botswana subsidiaries have not been recognised
as a deferred tax asset, due to uncertainty regarding future taxable income.
Profit after tax and earnings per share
Profit attributable to shareholders increased with 42.8% from N$261 million in the previous financial year to N$373 million
in the current year, resulting in the earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2021 increasing to 180.7 cents (2020:
126.5 cents).
These increases are attributable to a more normalised trading environment in Namibia for 2021, compared to 2020, where
alcohol bans severely affected bottom line profitability. NBL’s investment in Heineken SA continued to be under pressure, as
the alcohol market in South Africa remained under severe pressure owing to lockdown restrictions and alcohol bans.
Financial position
The debt to equity ratio increased to 55.3%, compared to 54.8% of the previous year.
Namibian market
The Namibian market continues to remain a significant contributor to total revenues and earnings, with Windhoek Draught
and Tafel Larger spear-heading the overall beer growth. The Group maintained its strong market position despite a strained
local economy and declining consumer spend.
South Africa
Heineken South Africa continued to face challenges in 2021, with various bans on alcohol sales being experienced
throughout the year. As a result, equity accounted losses decreased by only 4.23% compared to the prior year.
Exports (excluding South Africa)
Total volumes sold to export markets decreased by 16.0% from the previous period. A significant contributing factor to this
decline, is the transition to a new distributor in Zambia, which remains one of NBL’s largest export markets.
Cash flows
Net cash flow from operating activities increased from an inflow of N$24 million in the previous financial year to an inflow
N$542 million in 2021. This increase in cash flow was most significantly attributable to better operating and trading
conditions under less stringent Covid-19 regulations.
Net cash outflow from investing activities decreased from N$143 million in the previous year to N$98 million in the 2021
financial year.
Net cash flow from financing activities decreased from an N$173 million inflow in the previous financial year to a net
outflow of N$89 million in the current year. The decrease was mainly due the restructuring of NBL’s loan facilities. (See
Annexure A to this Integrated Annual Report).
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Approval of consolidated and separate financial statements
The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and Company, as indicated above, were approved by the
Board of Directors on 10 November 2021 and signed on their behalf by:

Managing
director’s report

The external auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated and separate annual financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act. Their unmodified
report is available from page 88.

Our context
and strategy

After due assessment of the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Directors believe there is no
reason for the business not to continue as a going concern in the financial year ahead.

Our
profile

The Directors’ responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. The Directors’ responsibility also includes maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system
of risk management.

Chairperson’s
statement

Directors’ responsibility statement
The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, comprising the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the
consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated and separate
statement of changes in equity, and consolidated and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the
notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes,
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, and the requirements of the Namibian Companies Act,
as set out in pages 92 to 178.
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APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

S Thieme				Marco Wenk
Chairman			Managing Director

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

88
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Namibia Breweries Limited
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Namibia Breweries Limited (“Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) set out on pages 92 to 178, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2021 and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows
for the year then ended and the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and the Directors’ report.

Annual financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
and separate financial position of the Company and Group as at 30 June 2021 and their consolidated and separate financial
performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter for the Group and Company
Valuation of the investment in associate and recognition of the deferred tax asset by the associate on
unused accumulated tax losses
The valuation of the investment in Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited (herein referred to as “Heineken SA” or
the “associate”) of N$ 710 million (2020: N$ 779 million)
has been noted as a key audit matter due to the significant
Director judgement required in determining:
z the recoverability of the investment as a whole; and
z the recognition of the deferred tax asset in Heineken SA
on the unused accumulated tax losses incurred in
Heineken SA from previous years.
As at 30 June 2021, Heineken SA recognised a deferred
tax asset of N$ 1.366 billion. In the current year, the
Directors, after considering the current and forecast
profitability of Heineken SA, including the effect of Covid19,
deemed the investment in associate to be recoverable and
considered the recognition of the deferred tax asset still
to be appropriate.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

A full scope audit of the financial information of Heineken
SA for the twelve months ended 30 June 2021 was performed
and included the following audit procedures to test the
equity accounted losses from ongoing operations of
Heineken SA, recalculate the deferred tax asset recorded
by Heineken SA and assessed the recoverability of the
investment in associate and the deferred tax asset raised
by the associate as at 30 June 2021.
Our response to the key audit matter included the following
audit procedures:
1. Deferred Tax Asset;
z In connection with the recognition for the deferred tax
asset, we assessed whether the Directors’ judgement
and treatment were in accordance with the requirements
of IAS 12: Income tax.
z We evaluated the forecast profitability by performing
retrospective reviews of the budget versus actual profit
to assess the reliability of the budgeting process. We
evaluated the growth rates on the forecast against the
actual results, forecast inflation, and industry trends
and assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions
used by Heineken SA.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Key audit matter for the Group and Company (continued)

The Directors have concluded that, the full investment
of N$710 million is recoverable.

2. Valuation of the investment in Heineken SA

Our
profile

The investment in associate has been disclosed in note 8
of these consolidated and separate financial statements
and the recoverability of the investment in associate is
discussed in note 2(d).

We consider the Directors’ judgements to be reasonable
in determining the treatment of the deferred tax asset. The
consolidated and separate financial statements incorporate
appropriate disclosures relating to the valuation of the
investment is associate.

Chairperson’s
statement

Valuation of the investment in associate and recognition of the deferred tax asset by the associate on
unused accumulated tax losses (continued)

z We tested the design and implementation of key controls
over the review of the valuation of the investment in
associate and the review of the management accounts
of the associate.

results and anticipated growth rates used to determine the
recoverability of the investment as a whole in accordance
with the requirements of IAS 36: Impairment of assets.

income of associate to the opening value of the

Risk and
opportunities report

We consider the Directors’ judgements to be reasonable in
determining the value of the investment and their conclusion
reached that the investment in associate is not impaired. The
consolidated and separate financial statements incorporate
appropriate disclosures relating to the valuation of the
investment in associate.

Governance
report

investment for compliance with the requirements
of equity accounting in terms of IAS 28: Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

z We recomputed the value of the investment at year end
by adjusting the profit and loss and other comprehensive

Managing
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z We evaluated the forecast profitability by performing
retrospective reviews of the budget versus actual profit
to assess the reliability of the budgeting process. We
evaluated the growth rates on the forecast against the
actual results, forecast inflation, and industry trends
and assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions
used by Heineken SA.

Our context
and strategy

z We assessed the judgements made by the Directors
such as the cash flow forecast against the achieved
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the DLG Awards, About this Report,
Chairperson’s Statement, Our Profile, Our Context and Strategy, Managing Director’s Report, Contributing to the Sustainable
Development Goals, Governance Report, Risk and Opportunity Report, Group Value – Added Statement, Group Salient
Features, Five – Year Summary of Results, Summary of Statistics, Ordinary Share Ownership, Financial Review, Approval of
Financial Statements, Notice of Annual General Meeting, Proxy Form, Glossary and Directorate and Administration which
we obtained prior to the date of this report. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial
statements, the report of the Directors and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and
separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Annual financial statements

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia and
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
z Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
z Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the
Company’s internal control.
z Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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z Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Chairperson’s
statement

z Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and/or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

z Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Deloitte & Touche

Governance
report

Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
ICAN practice number: 9407

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Managing
director’s report

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Our context
and strategy

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Per RH Mc Donald
Partner

Partners: R H Mc Donald (Managing Partner), H de Bruin, J Cronjé, A Akayombokwa, J Nghikevali

Risk and
opportunities report

PO Box 47 Windhoek, Namibia
14 November 2021

Directors: G Brand, M Harrison
Remuneration
report

Associate of Deloitte Africa, a Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Founded in 1920, NBL is principally engaged in the brewing and distribution of beer and is also active in the manufacturing
of soft drinks.
Accounting policies
NBL’s accounting policies comply with International Financial Reporting Standards and are consistent with those of the
previous financial year.
Financial results
The Group’s operating profit for the year ended 30 June 2021 increased by 35.2% compared to the previous financial year
(2020: decrease of 30.5%). This translates into an operating margin of 23.1% (2020: 17.1%).
Dividends paid
Details of the ordinary dividends declared, paid and payable in respect of the 2020/21 financial year are reflected in note 19
and note 27 to the financial statements.
Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure for the reporting year amounted to N$137.7 million (2020: N$164.8 million).
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Issued capital
Full details of the authorised and issued capital of the Company as at 30 June 2021 are set out in note 14 to the annual
financial statements. The 92 471 000 unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution
of members passed at the last annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual general meeting.
Directorate and secretary
The names of the Directors as well as the name and address of the Company’s Secretary appear on the inside back cover
herein.
Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Annexure C of this report.
Holding company
The Company’s holding company is Namibia Breweries Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, of which the
shareholding is held by Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading Corporation Limited and Heineken International BV
(“Heineken”). The Company’s ultimate holding entity is Sven Thieme Holdings (Proprietary) Limited.
Events subsequent to reporting date
On 13 August 2021, the Group received confirmation that its insurers approved a claim that was submitted by NBL during
the year. The claim submitted was to compensate the Group for losses incurred as a result of business interruption under the
Covid-19 lockdown restrictions imposed on the Group during March 2020 to May 2020. As a result, the Group recognised
income amounting to N$42 608 695, as the event constitutes an adjusting event under IAS 10.
Subsequent to year end, Heineken N.V. made an offer to acquire NBL’s 25% shareholding in Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited (“the Potential HSA Transaction”). Discussions are still ongoing and several aspects still need to be
considered. An independent committee was appointed to assist in the assessment of the offer received.
Civil unrest occurred in South Africa’s KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng provinces from 9 to 17 July 2021, which resulted
in the destruction and looting of property and businesses. The effects of the looting on the Company and the Group
is confined to the Investment in Associate, but was not adjusted for in these annual financial statements as it is
deemed a non-adjusting event.
The Directors are not aware of any other significant events subsequent to the reporting date.
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COMPANY

GROUP
as at
30 June
2021
N$’000

13

3 846

–

3 157 396

2 907 885

1 024
–
1 754 019
1 755 043

14
34

1 024
66
1 907 673
1 908 763

1 024
(548)
1 755 419
1 755 895

501 608

15

489 920

501 608

21 208
190 184
713 000

16
17

21 972
178 714
690 606

21 208
190 167
712 983

145 088
286 992
–
–
6 333
438 413

15
18
12
28
19

128 847
404 959
3 465
13 695
7 061
558 027

145 088
287 586
–
–
6 333
439 007

2 906 456

3 157 396

2 907 885

3 161 621 Total assets

1 024
–
1 911 246
1 912 270

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Ordinary shareholders’ equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and
489 920 borrowings
Post-employment medical aid and
21 972 severance pay benefit plan
178 731 Deferred taxation
690 623

128 847
405 660
3 465
13 695
7 061
558 728

Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Income tax payable
Dividends payable*

3 161 621 Total equity and liabilities
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* Dividends payable have been reclassified from trade payables in 2021.
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3 846 Non-current assets held for sale
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345 684
475 837
4 321
247 557
9 333
1 082 732

Risk and
opportunities report

313 110
508 068
326
602 219
–
1 423 723

Governance
report

9
10
28
11
12

313 110
511 950
–
602 137
–
1 427 197

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Current tax receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments

345 684
479 319
3 996
242 626
9 333
1 080 958
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985 323
28 863
32 304
–
778 663
1 825 153

Our context
and strategy

937 280
51 587
30 800
–
710 160
1 729 827
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4
5
6
7
8

936 735
51 587
30 800
1 296
710 160
1 730 578

2 906 456

as at
30 June
2020
N$’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associate

950 148
28 863
32 304
35 520
778 663
1 825 498

–

Notes

as at
30 June
2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

as at
30 June
2020
N$’000
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
COMPANY
for the
year ended
30 June
2020
N$’000

for the
year ended
30 June
2021
N$’000

Notes

3 392 476
(746 644)

3 406 110 Revenue
(757 534) Excise tax expense

2 645 832
(2 190 464)

2 648 576 Net revenue
(2 030 958) Operating expenses

455 368
(50 545)
16 818
(76 703)
344 938
(82 260)

Annual financial statements

GROUP

262 678

3 920
(1 255)
–
2 665

617 618
(46 854)
25 562
(73 456)

522 870 Profit before income tax
(144 738) Income tax expense

Other comprehensive income/
(loss):
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of net defined
(1 091) benefit liabilities
Income tax relating to items that
(1 577) will not be reclassified
Share of comprehensive income
6 879 of equity accounted investments
4 211
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation
– reserve (“FCTR”)

265 343

3 392 476
(746 644)

20
21

2 648 576
(2 035 950)

2 645 832
(2 192 589)

22
23
24
8

612 626
(46 854)
25 581
(73 456)

453 243
(50 545)
17 592
(76 703)

25

517 897
(144 738)

343 587
(82 260)

373 159

261 327

33

(1 091)

3 920

33

(1 577)

(1 255)

33

6 879
4 211

2 665

33

Other comprehensive income for
4 211 the year net of taxation
Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to equity
382 343 holders of the parent
Basic earnings per ordinary
share (cents)*

*	There is no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share.
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for the
year ended
30 June
2020
N$’000

3 406 110
(757 534)

Profit for the year attributable to
378 132 owners of the parent

–

2 665

Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Equity loss from associate

for the
year ended
30 June
2021
N$’000

26.1

614

(445)

4 825

2 220

377 984

263 547

180.7

126.5

95

Notes

Share
capital
N$’000

Nondistributable
reserves
N$’000
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Total
N$’000

1 954 155

1 955 076

261 327

261 327

2 665

2 220

GROUP
Balance at 1 July 2019

1 024

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

–

–

33

–

(445)

–

(445)

27

–
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Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to equity holders of
the parent
Dividends to equity holders

(103)

–

263 992

263 547

(462 728)

(462 728)

1 024

(548)

1 755 419

1 755 895

Balance at 1 July 2020

1 024

(548)

1 755 419

1 755 895

Profit for the year
33

Dividends to equity holders

27

373 159

373 159

–

614

4 211

4 825

–

614

377 370

377 984

–

–

(225 116)

(225 116)

66

14

34

1 907 673

1 908 763

1 024

–

1 951 404

1 952 428

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

–

–

262 678

262 678

–

–

2 665

2 665

–

–

265 343

265 343

COMPANY
Balance at 1 July 2019

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to equity holders of
the parent
Dividends to equity holders

27

–

1 024

–

1 754 019

(462 728)

1 755 043

(462 728)

Balance at 1 July 2020

1 754 019

1 755 043

–

378 132

378 132

Other comprehensive income
for the year

–

–

4 211

4 211

–

–

382 343

382 343

–

–

(225 116)

(225 116)

1 024

–

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to equity holders of
the parent
Dividends to equity holders
Balance at 30 June 2021

27

1 911 246

1 912 270
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1 024

Profit for the year
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–

Balance at 30 June 2020
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1 024

Note(s)
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development goals

Balance at 30 June 2021

–
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Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to equity holders of
the parent

–
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Balance at 30 June 2020

Other comprehensive income
for the year
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Retained
earnings
N$’000
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
COMPANY
for the
year ended
30 June
2020
N$’000
23 679
3 541 671
(3 013 398)
528 273
(461 477)
(41 743)
(515)
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(859)

GROUP

for the
year ended
30 June
2021
N$’000
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated by operations
Dividends paid
Income tax paid
Employer benefit payments on post(759) employment medical aid benefit plans
Employer benefit payments on
(2 897) severance benefits

543 040
3 373 479
(2 464 244)
909 235
(224 388)
(138 151)

(142 660)
16 818
(100)
1 371

(94 118)
25 562
–
4 175

(164 387)
(435)

(129 979)
(7 713)

3 970

13 693

103

144

173 717
(50 545)
242 331
–
(18 069)

Notes

28.1
19
28.2

24 331
3 544 649
(3 015 724)
528 925
(461 477)
(41 743)

16.2

(759)

(515)

16.3

(2 897)

(859)

(98 267)
25 581
–
–

(143 257)
17 592
(100)
–

(129 978)
(7 713)

(164 387)
(435)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
(89 411) ACTIVITIES
(44 185) Finance costs
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans
– and borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing loans
(25 000) and borrowings
(20 226) Repayment of lease liabilities

187 890

242 626

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
602 137 END OF THE YEAR

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

for the
year ended
30 June
2020
N$’000

541 721
3 373 880
(2 465 963)
907 917
(224 388)
(138 152)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Finance income
Loan written off
Proceeds from loans to subsidiaries
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of intangible
assets

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
359 511 cash equivalents
– Effect of translation of foreign entities
Cash and cash equivalents at
242 626 beginning of the year

54 736
–

for the
year ended
30 June
2021
N$’000

13 699

3 970

144

103

(89 411)
(44 185)
–

11

173 886
(50 545)
242 500

(25 000)
(20 226)

–
(18 069)

354 043
619

54 960
(6)

247 557

192 603

602 219

247 557
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2021
REPORTING ENTITY
Namibia Breweries Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Namibia. The consolidated and separate
financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates (together referred to as the “Group” and individually as
“Group entities”).

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on the going concern and historical cost basis,
modified for the fair value treatment of financial instruments.
(c)

Our context
and strategy

(b) Basis of measurement

Our
profile

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC)
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the requirements of the Namibian Companies Act. The
financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 November 2021. The accounting policies
below apply to both consolidated and separate financial statements.

Chairperson’s
statement

1.

Functional and presentation currency

(d) Use of significant estimates and judgements

Remuneration
report

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised
tax losses are disclosed in notes 17 and 25 and management’s judgement with regard to the recoverability of
deferred tax asset in its Associate in note 8.

Risk and
opportunities report

Deferred tax assets

Governance
report

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. In particular, information
about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included below:

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Managing
director’s report

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Namibia Dollar (N$), which is the
Company’s and Group’s functional and presentation currency. All information presented in N$ has been
rounded to the nearest thousand.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

98
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
The Group and Company depreciates and amortises items of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
down to residual value over the useful life of the assets. Management makes and applies assumptions about the
expected useful life and residual value of these assets in determining the annual depreciation charge. Further
details are given in the accounting policy note on depreciation. In particular management have assumed a
depreciation rate of 20% (2020: 20%) on returnable containers, this being management’s best estimate of
breakage rate and useful life. The majority of returnable containers are with customers and the estimate of cost
along with the corresponding returnable deposit liability is based on management’s judgement. Judgements also
include those as contained in the Company and Group returnable container model, with an aim to quantify the
amount of returnable containers in possession of the customers, including return rates and rates for standard
losses during production and transport. These judgements represent management’s best estimate based on the
information and trends observed over extended periods and any change to these assumptions could have a
significant impact on both the asset and corresponding liability.

Annual financial statements

Recoverability of Investment in Associate
The Company’s investment in the associate is carried at cost less impairment. The Directors have evaluated the
value of the investment and have considered this to at least approximate the Company’s investment less equity
accounted losses at year end. Changes in the assumptions impacting expected future cash generation could
affect the recoverability of the valuation of the investment in the associate. See note 8 for further details on
these assumptions.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated and
separate financial statements.
(a)

Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities over whose financial and operating policies the Group has the power to
exercise control, so as to obtain benefits from their activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account. The annual financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies. Investment in subsidiaries are shown at cost in the
Company’s financial statements.

(ii)

Associates
The Group’s interest in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the interest in an associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post
acquisition changes in the Group’s net share of the Associate’s assets. The statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of the operations of the associate. Profits and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate.

(iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-Group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-Group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains from
transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(b) Business combinations
Business combinations are recognised and measured in terms of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Business
combinations under common control are recorded at the net book value of the assets or liabilities acquired.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
(c)

Foreign currency

Chairperson’s
statement

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the
transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
The results and position of consolidated entities that have a functional currency that differs from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

z All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of other comprehensive income.
On disposal of the consolidated entity, the accumulated exchange differences in other comprehensive income
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(i)

Recognition and measurement

(ii)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of material and direct labour and other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. When parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in profit or loss.

Managing
director’s report

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Our context
and strategy

z Income statement items are translated at the average rate for the period (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

Our
profile

z Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

Subsequent costs

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each of
the items of property, plant and equipment. The average depreciation rates for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Returnable containers

2%

2%

4%

4%

4 – 20%

4 – 20%

20%

20%

10 – 33%

10 – 33%

20%

20%

Notice of annual
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Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

2020

Remuneration
report

Freehold buildings

2021

Risk and
opportunities report

(iii) Depreciation

Governance
report

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised when it is
probable that future economic benefits from the use of the asset will be increased and its cost can be
reliably measured. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end. Land is not depreciated. The carrying values are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised. Depreciation is not provided on assets
during the time of construction.
(e)

Intangible assets

Annual financial statements

(i)

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, and expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised
in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and
processes, is capitalised if the product or process is technically feasible, costs can be reliably measured,
future economic benefits are feasible and the Group or Company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(ii)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets acquired by the Group or Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent development expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefit embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other subsequent
expenditure is expensed as incurred.
(iv) Amortisation
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually and are not amortised. If the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss will be recognised. Amortisation and
impairment charges on intangible assets are charged to profit or loss. If an intangible asset with an
indefinite life has changed to a finite life the change is made on a prospective basis. The average
amortisation rates for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Automation processes
Externally purchased software licences
Trademarks
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2020

20%

20%

33.3%

33.3%

0 – 20%

0 – 20%
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Leases
Leases where Group is lessee

Our
profile

At the start date of the lease, the Group and Company recognise a right of use (ROU) assets and interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities presented under interest-bearing borrowings on the statement of financial
position. The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group
and Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Chairperson’s
statement

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

The Group and Company apply the following practical expedients for the recognition of leases:

z The low value lease exemption, meaning that leased assets with an individual value of N$50 000 or less if
bought new, are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis.

z Periods covered by an unilateral option to extend the lease if the Group and Company are reasonably certain
to make use of that option; and
z Periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group and Company are reasonably certain not to
make use of that option.

z Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics; and
z Include non-lease components in the lease liability for equipment leases.

(g) Inventories

Raw materials, merchandise and consumable stores:
z Purchase cost on the weighted average basis.

Remuneration
report

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
and is determined as follows:

Risk and
opportunities report

Operating leases are those leases which do not fall within the scope of the above definition. Payments made
under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis.

Governance
report

The Group and Company apply the following practical expedients for the recognition of leases:

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The lease term is determined as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with:

Managing
director’s report

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid during the lease term,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR’). Lease liabilities are subsequently increased by the
interest cost on the lease liabilities and decreased by lease payments made. The lease liabilities will be remeasured when there is a change in the amount to be paid (e.g. due to indexation) or when there is a change in
the assessment of the lease terms.

Our context
and strategy

z The short-term lease exemption, meaning that leases with a duration of less than a year are expensed in the
income statement on a straight-line basis.

Finished goods and work in progress:

Notice of annual
general meeting
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z Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Obsolete, redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified on
a regular basis and are written down to their estimated net realisable values. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(h)

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as
well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for trade receivables and contract
assets. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based
management recommendations, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

Annual financial statements

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.
In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:
z an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;
z significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its
amortised cost;
z existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
z an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
z significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
z an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

103
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

Chairperson’s
statement

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

About
this report

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. the financial instrument has a low risk of default;
3. adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Our
profile

2. the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

Our context
and strategy

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

Managing
director’s report

Definition of default
z when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes observable data about the following events:

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Notice of annual
general meeting
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(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

Remuneration
report

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

Risk and
opportunities report

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Governance
report

z information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

Annual financial statements

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in
the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.
(ii)

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s and the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
An impairment is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairments are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been recognised.
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Financial instruments
(i)

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(iii) Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 – 60 day terms, are subsequent to initial recognition,
recognised at amortised cost.
(v)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

(iv) Trade and other receivables

Managing
director’s report

Included in this category are the loans to Group companies. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is computed as the amount
initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognised amount and the maturity
amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Our context
and strategy

Included in this category are derivative financial instruments. Financial assets or liabilities classified as at
fair value through profit or loss, are subsequent to initial recognition, measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Our
profile

(ii)

Chairperson’s
statement

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
interest-bearing borrowings, trade and other payables. Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit and loss, any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as
described below. Accounting for finance income and costs is discussed in note 2(l) and 2(m) respectively.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that
the Company and Group commits to purchase the asset.

Cash and cash equivalents
Governance
report

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
held on call with banks, net of bank overdrafts, all of which are available for use by the Company and
Group unless otherwise stated.
(vi) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Financial assets – A financial asset is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired. Financial liabilities – A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Non-interest bearing financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost.
(j)

Provisions

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

Provisions include a post-employment medical aid benefit for specified retired employees and the severance pay
provision. Provisions are recognised when the Company or Group has a present legal or constructive obligation,

Annual financial
statements

(viii) Non-interest-bearing financial liabilities

Remuneration
report

(vii) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Risk and
opportunities report

Included in this category are long and medium-term financing and short-term borrowings. Non-derivative
financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Interest-bearing
bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance
charges are accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.
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as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. A provision for restructuring is recognised when the
Company and Group have approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either
commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.
(k)

Revenue
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:
z Sale of beer, non-alcoholic beverages and by products;
z Royalty income on the Group’s brands produced and sold in other countries; and
z Rental income.

Annual financial statements

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer and excludes indirect taxes and discounts. Revenue is recognised when control of a product is
transferred to a customer.
Revenue recognised is based on the price specified in the contract, net of discounts and sales taxes and gross of
excise duties. Excise taxes are effectively a production tax as excise becomes payable when goods are produced
and are not based on the sales value. Excise tax is borne by the Group and Company and therefore shown as
an expense.
(i)

Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognised when the control of the goods have passed to the buyer. For sales transactions, the
control passes to the buyer on delivery of the products (at a point in time).

(ii)

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(iii) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement, at a point in time.
(l)

Finance income
Finance income comprises interest income on funds, loans to associates and Group companies. Interest income
is recognised in the year as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

(m) Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.
(n)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Current tax comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable
income for the year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and
any adjustment of tax payable for previous years. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
z The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
z Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
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(o)

Chairperson’s
statement

z Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

About
this report
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Value added tax
z Where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

Our context
and strategy

z Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included. The net amount of
value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Our
profile

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except:

(p) Earnings per share

(q) Employee benefits
(i)

Short term benefits

(ii)

Governance
report

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders
the related service, on an undiscounted basis. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
if the Company or Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Headline earnings per share is calculated in terms of the requirements set out in Circular 1/2021 issued
by SAICA. Headline earnings is defined as profit for the year after taxation and non-controlling interest,
excluding income or losses derived from the sale of capital assets.

Managing
director’s report

The calculation of earnings per share and headline earnings is based on earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders. Account is taken of the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for the period during
which they have participated in the income of the Group. The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Earnings is defined as the profit for the year after taxation and non-controlling interest.

Retirement benefits

(iii) Post-employment medical benefits

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

The entitlement to the benefits is usually based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age
and completing a minimum service period.

Annual financial
statements

Actuarial gains or losses, which can arise from differences between expected and actual outcomes, or
changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The past
service cost is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or changes to
the pension plan, past service cost is immediately recognised as an expense.

Remuneration
report

The Group and Company provides for post-employment health care benefits to qualifying employees and
retired personnel by subsidising a portion of their medical aid contributions. This scheme operates as a
defined benefit plan and the cost of providing benefits under the plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method.

Risk and
opportunities report

The policy of the Group and Company is to provide retirement benefits for its employees. The contribution
paid by the Group and Company to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss when they are due. The Ohlthaver & List Retirement Fund, which is a
defined contribution fund, covers all the Company’s employees and is governed by the Pension Funds Act.
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(iv) Severance benefit obligation
In accordance with the Namibia Labour Act, 2007 (No. 11 of 2007), severance benefits are payable to an
employee, if the employee is dismissed, dies while employed or resigns/retires on reaching the age of 65
years. The obligation for severance benefits to current employees is actuarially determined in respect of all
Group employees and is provided for in full. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit- credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting
period. Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and service costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they occur.
(r)

Operating segment

Annual financial statements

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses. An operating segment is also a component of the Group whose operating results
are reviewed regularly by the entity’s Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. In
accordance with IFRS 8 – Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information
were identified on the basis of the internal reports used by management to allocate resources to the segments
and assess their performance. The Executive Directors (Managing Director and Finance Director) are the Group’s
‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ within the meaning of IFRS 8.
The operating segments have been identified and classified in a manner that reflects the nature of the products
offered by the Group.
Operating segments whose total revenue, absolute profit or loss for the period or total assets are 10% or more of
total Group revenue, profit or loss or total assets, are reported separately.
The measure of profit or loss used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker is EBIT (Earnings Before Interest and
Taxes), which includes revenue and expenses directly relating to a business segment but excludes net finance
charges and taxation, which cannot be allocated to any specific segment.
(s)

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
z In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
z In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
z Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at measurement date
z Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
z Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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New and revised standards
(i)

Adoption of new and revised standards

Effective dates

IFRS 3 Business Combinations:
Definition of Business

22 October 2018

Effective for business
combinations for which
the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after
1 January 2020 and to asset
acquisitions that occur on
or after the beginning of
that period.

September 2019

Applicable to annual
reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

September 2019

Applicable to annual
reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

October 2018

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

October 2018

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Amendments regarding prereplacement issues in the context of the
IBOR reform
Amendments regarding prereplacement issues in the context of the
IBOR reform
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Annual financial
statements

Amendments regarding the definition
of material

Remuneration
report

Amendments regarding the definition
of material

Risk and
opportunities report

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Governance
report

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Managing
director’s report

The amendments clarify that to be
considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs and narrow the
definitions of a business and of outputs
by focusing on goods and services
provided to customers and by removing
the reference to an ability to reduce
costs and add guidance and illustrative
examples to help entities assess
whether a substantive process has been
acquired and remove the assessment
of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs; and add an optional
concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business.

Our context
and strategy

Date issued

Our
profile

New International Financial
Reporting Standards

Chairperson’s
statement

The following new Standards and Interpretations that were applicable were adopted during the year:

Notice of annual
general meeting
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New International Financial
Reporting Standards

Date issued

Effective dates

IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

19 November 2013

Applies when IFRS 9
is applied*

Annual financial statements

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Hedge
Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
IFRS 7 and IAS 39) issued, permitting an
entity to elect to continue to apply the
hedge accounting requirements in IAS
39 for a fair value hedge of the interest
rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio
of financial assets or financial liabilities
when IFRS 9 is applied, and to extend
the fair value option to certain contracts
that meet the ‘own use’ scope exception
The adoption of these new and revised standards does not have a material effect on the Company
or Group.
(ii)

Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were
in issue but not yet effective:
New/Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards

Date issued

Effective dates

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting
Standards

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

The amendment permits a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of
IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported
by its parent, based on the parent’s date
of transition to IFRSs.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations:
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The changes in Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (Amendments to
IFRS 3): update IFRS 3 so that it refers to
the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead
of the 1989 Framework; add to IFRS 3 a
requirement that, for transactions and
other events within the scope of IAS 37
or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual
Framework) to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and
add to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.
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Date issued

Effective dates

IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IAS 39 and
IFRS 16: Disclosures Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform Phase 2

4 November 2020

01 January 2021

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report
Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
Governance
report

Amendments to IFRS 9: Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018 – 2020 cycle

Our
profile

The amendments enable entities to
reflect the effects of transitioning
from benchmark interest rates, such
as interbank offer rates (IBORs) to
alternative benchmark interest rates
without giving rise to accounting impacts
that would not provide useful information
to users of financial statements. The
amendments affect many entities and
in particular those with financial assets,
financial liabilities or lease liabilities that
are subject to interest rate benchmark
reform and those that apply the hedge
accounting requirements in IFRS 9 or
IAS 39 to hedging relationships that are
affected by the reform. The amendments
apply to all entities and are not optional.
The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1,
2021 with early application permitted. The
amendments are applied retrospectively
and include reinstatement of hedge
relationships that were discontinued solely
due to changes directly required
by the reform.

Chairperson’s
statement

New/Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards

About
this report
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Risk and
opportunities report

The amendment clarifies which fees an
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per
cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9
in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability. An entity includes only
fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity
or the lender on the other’s behalf

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
New/Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards

Date issued

Effective dates

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-Current

15 July 2020

01 January 2023

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

They clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current should
be based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period and align
the wording in all affected paragraphs to
refer to the “right” to defer settlement
by at least twelve months and make
explicit that only rights in place “at the
end of the reporting period” should
affect the classification of a liability and
clarify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability and make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty
of cash, equity instruments, other assets
or services.
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16) amends the
standard to prohibit deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, in profit
or loss.
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets: Onerous
Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract
The changes in Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to
IAS 37) specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(an example would be the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract)
NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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Date issued

Effective dates

IAS 41 Agriculture: Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018 – 2020

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

14 May 2020

01 January 2022

May 2020

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021

18 May 2017

Applicable to annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2021

Our context
and strategy

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018 – 2020

Our
profile

The amendment removes the requirement
in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities
to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.
This will ensure consistency with the
requirements in IFRS 13.

Managing
director’s report

The amendment clarifies which fees an
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per
cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9
in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability. An entity includes only
fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity
or the lender on the other’s behalf.
Amendment to provide lessees with an
exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Risk and
opportunities report

The directors and management are assessing the impact of adopting these standards, but do not currently
expect the adoption of any of these standards to have a significant impact on these financial statements.

Governance
report

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be
measured at a current fulfilment value and
provides a more uniform measurement
and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements
are designed to achieve the goal of a
consistent, principle-based accounting for
insurance contracts.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

IFRS 16 Leases

Chairperson’s
statement

New/Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

4.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

273 663

272 025

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At cost

237 802

273 662

Freehold land and buildings

6 892

3 395

1 238 732

1 270 656

80 762

76 772

Vehicles
Furniture and equipment

94 971

86 759

453 649

345 985

37 242

20 708

2 150 050

2 077 937

Leasehold land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Returnable containers
Assets under construction

5 554

9 051

1 272 297

1 240 405

76 773

80 763

87 020

95 458

345 985

453 649

20 707

37 262

2 081 999

2 188 613

46 629

42 620

2 835

6 118

Annual financial statements

Accumulated depreciation
42 619

46 629

3 960

676

715 883

781 608

782 839

716 818

53 746

56 033

Vehicles

56 033

53 746

70 720

66 346

Furniture and equipment

66 473

71 014

Freehold land and buildings
Leasehold land and buildings
Plant and machinery

312 974

189 910

1 199 902

1 141 202

195 183

227 033

2 932

2 719

522 849

489 048

27 016

20 739

Vehicles

24 251

20 413

Furniture and equipment

140 675

156 075

37 242

20 708

950 148

936 735

Returnable containers

189 910

312 974

1 144 719

1 203 290

227 034

229 405

2 719

2 933

489 458

523 587

20 740

27 017

20 547

24 444

156 075

140 675

20 707

37 262

937 280

985 323

Carrying value
Freehold land and buildings
Leasehold land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Returnable containers
Assets under construction

Refer to Annexure B for details
regarding the movement in property,
plant and equipment for the year.
Leased assets
Leasehold property below does not
fall under IFRS 16 and is included in
property, plant and equipment.

* Various reallocations were made to 2020 figures, both between categories and between Cost and Accumulated Depreciation. The reallocations did not result
in a change in the net carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and are not deemed material.
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
Property
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Carrying value

3 395
(676)
2 719

5 554
(2 835)
2 719

9 051
(6 118)
2 933

27 128
11 000
33 234
71 362

34 751
11 000
19 862
65 613

11 920
1 933
5 922
19 775

17 042
1 533
18 175
36 750

15 208
9 067
27 312
51 587

17 709
9 467
1 687
28 863

Our context
and strategy

Land and buildings
The Group’s land and buildings are not
encumbered. Details of the Group’s
land and buildings are maintained for
inspection at the registered office of
the Company.

17 042
1 533
18 175
36 750

11 920
1 933
5 922
19 775

15 208
9 067
27 312
51 587

Carrying value
Automation processes
Trademarks
Software licences

Risk and
opportunities report

17 709
9 467
1 687
28 863

Accumulated amortisation
Automation processes
Trademarks
Software licences

Governance
report

27 128
11 000
33 234
71 362

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

34 751
11 000
19 862
65 613

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
At cost
Automation processes
Trademarks
Software licences

Managing
director’s report

Refer to note 15 in respect of secured
leased assets and moveable assets.
5.

Our
profile

6 892
(3 960)
2 932

2020
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Remuneration
report

Refer to Annexure B for details
regarding the movement in intangible
assets for the year.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
6.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

64 121

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
At cost

64 121

65 559

Leased motor vehicles

65 559

Leased properties

10 365

9 863

75 924

73 984

36 419

36 770

8 705

4 910

45 124

41 680

29 140

27 351

1 660

4 953

30 800

32 304

9 863

10 365

73 984

75 924

36 770

36 419

4 910

8 705

41 680

45 124

Accumulated amortisation
Leased motor vehicles
Leased properties

Annual financial statements

Carrying value
27 351

29 140

4 953

1 660

32 304

30 800

Leased motor vehicles
Leased properties

Refer to Annexure B for details
regarding the movement in
right-of-use assets for the year.
The corresponding lease liability
information is disclosed in note 15 and
Annexure A.
7.
35 520

1 296

(1 212)

(1 104)

1 006

4 368

35 314

4 560

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
(ANNEXURE C)
Shares at cost
Loans from subsidiaries (note 29.1)
Loans to subsidiaries (note 29.1)

3 264

Current

35 520

1 296

Non-current

35 314

4 560

Net investment in subsidiaries

(206)

The loans are interest free and have
no fixed repayment terms.
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
8.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

1 361 129

1 361 129

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Reconciliation of net assets to equity
accounted investment in associates

1 361 129

1 361 129
(724 594)

73 625

73 625

778 663

710 160

Cumulative losses
Loan provided to associate
Carrying value

(724 594)

(656 091)

73 625

73 625

710 160

778 663

778 663

855 366

Our
profile

(656 091)

Cost of 25% shareholding in associate

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Carrying value of investment
778 663

–

4 953

Opening balance
Share of other comprehensive income
net of taxation

4 953

–

(73 456)

Share of loss from associate

(73 456)

(76 703)

778 663

710 160

Carrying amount of the investment

710 160

778 663

Disclosed as
–
710 160

778 663

710 160

Current
Non-current

–

–

710 160

778 663

710 160

778 663

(73 456)

(76 703)

Equity loss from associate
(76 703)
–

4 953

Equity accounted loss (ongoing
operations)
Share of other comprehensive income

(68 503)

4 953
(68 503)

–
(76 703)

Risk and
opportunities report

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited is registered
and operates primarily in South
Africa. The nature of the business is
manufacturing and distribution of
beer. NBL has a 25% share in Heineken
South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited.

Governance
report

(76 703)

(73 456)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

–
778 663

Managing
director’s report

(76 703)

Our context
and strategy

855 366

Remuneration
report

The closing balance of the
investment includes a capital loan
of N$73.6 million owed by Heineken
South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited.
The loan to the associate is unsecured
and bears interest at South African
Prime rate (2020: South African
Prime rate). The loan is repayable in
September 2022. Trade receivables
from the associate are disclosed in
note 10.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

8.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

2 736 400

2 884 272

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)
Equity loss from associate
(continued)
The Directors of Heineken South
Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited
assessed that the Heineken South
Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited
deferred tax asset of N$1.3 billion,
relating to accumulated assessed tax
losses, is recoverable in the current
year despite the challenging trading
conditions experienced over the last
18 months.

Annual financial statements

The associate management’s
projections support the assumption
that it is probable that the results
of future operations will generate
sufficient taxable income to utilise
these deferred tax assets. The
judgement is performed annually and
is based on budgets and business
plans for the coming years. The key
drivers of the projections are revenue
and volume growth.
The Directors of the Group agreed
with this assessment.
The summarised financial information
of the associate at 30 June and for the
years then ended is as follows:
Summarised statement of financial
position
2 884 272

2 736 400

Current assets
Non-current assets

7 736 306

7 633 700

10 620 578

10 370 100

5 105 479

5 197 621

2 812 182

2 790 921

7 917 661

7 988 542

2 702 916

2 381 558

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

7 633 700

7 736 306

10 370 100

10 620 578

Current liabilities

5 197 621

5 105 479

Non-current liabilities

2 790 921

2 812 182

7 988 542

7 917 661

2 381 558

2 702 916

Total net assets
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
8.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

7 779 188

8 272 324

(8 163 799)

(8 732 586)

(384 611)

(460 262)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Summarised statement of profit or
loss
(8 732 586)

(8 163 799)

(460 262)

(384 611)

153 454

43 531

(306 808)

(341 080)

–

19 812
(321 268)

(76 703)

(73 456)
4 953

–

(68 503)

91 311

98 126

8 273

7 759

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit
Loss from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss

43 531
(341 080)
19 812

153 454
(306 808)
–

(321 268)

(306 808)

Equity accounted loss from associate

(73 456)

(76 703)

Equity accounted OCI from associate

4 953

Royalties received from associate
Know-how fees received from
associate

–

(68 503)

(76 703)

98 126

91 311

7 759

8 273

Governance
report

The summarised information
presented above reflects the financial
statements of the associates after
adjusting for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and
Company and the associate.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

(76 703)

Other income and expenses

Managing
director’s report

(306 808)

Revenue

Our context
and strategy

7 779 188

Our
profile

8 272 324

Risk and
opportunities report

In terms of overall volume sales,
Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited is one of the
group’s largest customers. Sales to
and purchases from Heineken South
Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited are
made at cost, plus an agreed upon
margin as stated in the contractual
agreement between the two entities.
The agreement also stipulates a
minimum volume figure, which the
associate commits to buy from NBL
over a twelve month period.

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
8.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)
In addition to sales made to the
associate, the Group earns royalty
income and know-how fees based on
the sale of NBL brands by Heineken
South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited
to third party customers. The royalties
and know-how fees are based on a
contractually agreed upon percentage
of the net sales value derived from the
third party sales.

Annual financial statements

As a result of the impact of Covid-19
on the alcohol industry, the associate
was not able to order the full annual
contracted volumes resulting in a
shortfall. The shortfall was captured
in a Variation Agreement which made
provision for half of the shortfall to
be paid to NBL in cash while the
remaining half would be deferred and
added to the production volumes
in the next twelve months. The
agreement also makes provision for
dealing with similar shortfalls in future.
The cash settlement amounted to
N$15.9 million in 2021.
Payment terms for balances receivable
and payable are in conjunction with
normal credit terms
Associates with different reporting
dates
The reporting date of Heineken South
Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited is
31 December. The reporting date is
different from the Group because the
associate is controlled by Heineken
International N.V., which has a
31 December reporting date.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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N$’000
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
9.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

INVENTORIES

54 161

Raw materials

54 161

87 661

27 001

Work in progress

27 001

21 405

120 655

116 819

Finished products

116 819

120 655

128 798

111 035

Consumable stores

111 035

128 798

14 982

10 457

10 457

14 982

373 501

319 473

319 473

373 501

345 684

(6 363)

Provision for obsolete inventory

313 110

(6 363)
313 110

(27 817)
345 684

Our context
and strategy

(27 817)

Merchandise

Our
profile

87 661
21 405

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Reconciliation of provision for
obsolete stock:
(27 817)
42 678

(38 517)

(21 224)

(27 817)

(6 363)

Opening balance for the year
Impairments on inventory
Provision raised on obsolete stock

(27 817)

(8 469)

42 678

19 169

(21 224)

(38 517)

(6 363)

(27 817)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Inventory is encumbered for mediumterm interest-bearing borrowings as
disclosed in note 15.

Managing
director’s report

(8 469)
19 169

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

10.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

152 846

188 686

27 201

3 889

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Annual financial statements

Financial instruments at amortised
cost:
188 959

152 846

Trade receivables

3 294

27 201

Accrued income

192 253

180 047

Total trade receivables subject to
expected credit losses

180 047

192 575

(11 029)

(14 519)

Allowance for credit losses

(14 519)

(11 029)

43 190

86 084

Receivables from associate (note 29)

86 084

43 190

12 225

12 114

Receivables from Group companies
(note 29.1)

7 746

7 856

1 389

1 242

Receivables from other related parties
(note 29.2)

1 242

1 389

18 963

18 525

18 525

18 963

6 569

–

–

6 569

1 090

70 492

70 492

1 110

264 650

353 985

349 617

260 623

1 596

12 992

Refundable deposits
Restricted cash balances
Other receivables
Total financial instruments at
amortised cost
Non-financial instruments:

12 992

1 596

201 677

156 369

Value added taxation

156 855

202 222

214 669

157 965

Total non-financial instruments

158 451

215 214

479 319

511 950

Total trade and other receivables

508 068

475 837

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
10.

2020
N$’000

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Our
profile

Trade and other receivables were
pledged as security for the loans with
FirstRand Bank Limited as disclosed
in Annexure A and note 15. All rights
were ceded to the lender.

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Trade receivables are generally on
30 – 60 day terms.
Our context
and strategy

The average collection period on sales
of goods of the Company and Group
is 27 days (2020: 31 days).

Managing
director’s report
Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Included in other receivables is an
amount of N$43 million related to
a successful business interruption
claim from the Group’s insurers and
N$16 million settlement related to
a Variation Agreement negotiated
with Heineken South African (RF)
Proprietary Limited for volumes not
purchased from the Group.

Governance
report

The Value Added Tax receivable is
shown net of a N$13.3 million provision
raised against the outstanding
balance. The provision was raised for
possible losses related to ageing VAT
claims receivable from SARS.

Risk and
opportunities report

The carrying amount of trade and
other receivables approximate their
fair value.

Remuneration
report

Restricted cash held in a trust fund
of N$6.6 million was refunded to the
Group in 2021.

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
10.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Exposure to credit risk
Trade receivables inherently expose the Group to credit risk, being the risk that the Group will incur financial loss if
customers fail to make payments as they fall due.
The allowance for credit losses increased significantly due to the current Covid-19 pandemic and expected decline in
the ability of customers to settle their debt.

Annual financial statements

The Group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments. The provision for credit losses is therefore based on past due status without disaggregating into further risk
profiles. The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:
2021
Estimated
gross
carrying
amount at
default
N$’000

2021
Loss
allowance
(Lifetime
expected
credit loss)
N$’000

2020
Estimated
gross
carrying
amount at
default
N$’000

2020
Loss
allowance
(Lifetime
expected
credit loss)
N$’000

111 643

(149)

116 398

(138)

31 – 60 days past due: 0.2%

23 274

(36)

133

(9)

61 – 90 days past due: 0.3%

13 587

(31)

2 202

(7)

45

GROUP
Expected credit loss rate:
Not past due: 0.1%

91 – 120 days past due: 0.4%
120+ days past due: 0.5%

1 443

22 594

(90)

30 100

(14 348)

51 248

(10 785)

180 047

(14 519)

192 575

(11 029)

COMPANY
Expected credit loss rate:
111 643

(149)

116 150

(138)

31 – 60 days past due: 0.2%

23 274

(36)

133

(9)

61 – 90 days past due: 0.3%

13 587

(31)

2 202

(7)

Not past due: 0.1%

91 – 120 days past due: 0.4%
120+ days past due: 0.5%

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

1 443

45

22 594

(90)

30 100

(14 348)

51 174

(10 785)

180 047

(14 519)

192 253

(11 029)
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
10.

73 833
168 793

66 555
535 582

242 626

602 137

Analysed as follows:
Individually impaired trade receivables
Collectively impaired trade receivables

11.

(14 019)
(500)
(14 519)

(10 529)
(500)
(11 029)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank
Funds on call
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

66 569
535 650

78 662
168 895

602 219

247 557

Managing
director’s report

(14 019)
(500)
(14 519)

(6 228)
(7 883)
3 016
66
(11 029)

Our context
and strategy

(10 529)
(500)
(11 029)

(11 029)
(8 753)
5 263
–
(14 519)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the allowance for
expected credit losses:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision raised
Utilised
IFRS 9 provision raised
Balance at the end of the year

(11 029)
(8 753)
5 263
–
(14 519)

2020
N$’000

Our
profile

(6 228)
(7 883)
3 016
66
(11 029)

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The carrying amount of these assets
approximate their fair value.
Facilities
Various facilities have been provided
by First National Bank of Namibia
Limited. The list of facilities are set out
below:

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report

–O
 verdraft facility of N$100 000 000
(unutilised);
– Business credit card facility of
N$300 000;
– Fleet cards facility of N$3 000 000;
– Guarantees of N$6 000 000;
–W
 esbank rental facility of N$700 000;
– Short-term pre-settlement facility on
derivatives of N$10 000 000;
– Pre-settlement facility on fuel
hedges of N$5 000 000; and
– Pre-settlement facility on interest
rates of N$21 000 000.

Remuneration
report

The above facilities are unsecured.
Annual financial
statements

Cash and cash equivalents are
pledged as security for the medium
term loans with FirstRand Bank
Limited as disclosed in Annexure A
and note 15. All rights were ceded
to the lender.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

Refer to note 31 for details of currency
risk management for cash and cash
equivalents.
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
12.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

–

9 333

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
Hedging derivatives

9 333

Forward foreign exchange contract
asset

–

–

(3 465)

9 333

(3 465)

Forward foreign exchange contract
liability

(3 465)

–

(3 465)

9 333

Annual financial statements

Refer to note 32.2 for details on
outstanding forward exchange
contracts at year end.
Derivative financial instruments
are classified as current assets or
liabilities, as the Forward Exchange
Contracts are expected to expire
within 12 months after year end.
13.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE
The major classes of assets and
liabilities comprising the asset
classified as held for sale were as
follows:
Net assets of disposal group:
Non-current assets held for sale

–

3 846

Property, plant and equipment
The non-current assets held for sale
comprises land, previously classified
as property, plant and equipment.
Details of the property are:
• Erf Nr 3976 and Erf Nr 3977, situated
in the Municipality of Swakopmund,
Registration Division “G”, measuring
3558 and 3 789 square metres,
respectively
The Group has actively marketed the
property as “for sale” and expects the
sale of the property to be concluded
in the next 12 months.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

3 846

–
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
14.

1 024

1 024

460 000
29 920
489 920

480 000
21 608
501 608

120 000
8 847
128 847

125 000
20 088
145 088

SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary – Authorised
299 000 000 shares of no par value
(2020: 299 000 000)
Ordinary – Issued
206 529 000 fully paid up shares of
no par value (2020: 206 529 000)

1 024

2020
N$’000

Our
profile

1 024

2021
N$’000

Our context
and strategy

92 471 000 unissued ordinary shares
are under the control of the Directors
in terms of a resolution of members
passed at the last Annual General
Meeting. This authority remains in
force until the next Annual General
Meeting.

Managing
director’s report
Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share on
meetings of the Company.
15.

Governance
report

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND
BORROWINGS
Annexure A provides information
about the contractual terms of the
Company and Group’s interest-bearing
loans and borrowings, including finance
lease liabilities. For more information
about the exposure to interest rate risk,
see Annexure A.

125 000
20 088
145 088

120 000
8 847
128 847

605 000
41 696

580 000
38 767

Total medium-term loans
Finance lease liabilities

580 000
38 767

605 000
41 696

646 696

618 767

Total interest-bearing borrowings

618 767

646 696

Current liabilities
Medium-term loan (Annexure A)
Finance lease liabilities (Annexure A)

Notice of annual
general meeting

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Annual financial
statements

460 000
29 920
489 920

Remuneration
report

480 000
21 608
501 608

Risk and
opportunities report

Non-current liabilities
Medium-term loan (Annexure A)
Finance lease liabilities (Annexure A)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
15.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

10 853
14 756
25 609

17 586
24 289
41 875

6 137

6 466

522

559

794
(759)
6 694

(373)
(515)
6 137

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The undrawn facilities at 30 June 2021
were N$450 million (2020:
N$570 million).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
INFORMATION
16.1 Retirement fund
The total value of contributions to
the Ohlthaver & List Retirement Fund
during the period amounted to:

Annual financial statements

16.

17 586
24 289
41 875

10 853
14 756
25 609

Members' contributions
Employer's contributions

This is a defined contribution plan
and is regulated by the Pension Fund
Act of Namibia. The fund is valued
at intervals of not more than three
years. The fund was valued by an
independent consulting actuary,
Strategic Actuarial Partners
Namibia (Proprietary) Limited, at
31 January 2020 and its assets
were found to exceed its actuarially
calculated liabilities. The next
statutory actuarial valuation is due to
be performed on 31 January 2023.

6 466

6 137

559

522

(373)
(515)
6 137

794
(759)
6 694

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

16.2 Post-employment medical aid
benefit plan
Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest cost – charged to profit
and loss
Actuarial gain – charged to other
comprehensive income
Benefits paid
Balance at the end of the year
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
16.

2020
N$’000

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

16.2 Post-employment medical aid
benefit plan (continued)
Our
profile

The Ohlthaver & List Group provides
for post-employment medical aid
benefits in respect of a closed group
of specified retired employees.
The present value of the provision at
30 June 2021 was N$6.7 million
(2020: N$6.1 million).

Our context
and strategy

Valuation method and assumptions

Managing
director’s report

The actuarial valuation method used
to value the liabilities is the projected
unit credit method prescribed by IAS
19 Employee Benefits. Future benefits
valued are projected using specific
actuarial assumptions and the liability
for in-service members is accrued
over the expected working lifetime.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
Governance
report

The post-retirement medical aid
costs were valued by an independent
consulting actuary, Strategic Actuarial
Partners Namibia (Proprietary)
Limited on 30 June 2021. The
principal actuarial assumptions used
in determining post-employment
medical aid benefit obligations for
the Group’s plan are as follows:
9.40%

Discount rate

9.40%

9.10%

7.20%

Health care cost inflation

7.20%

5.60%

19

18

18

19

Employees

Risk and
opportunities report

9.10%
5.60%

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
16.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

15 071

17 084
1 716

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

16.2 Post-employment medical aid
benefit plan (continued)
Sensitivity analysis of health care
cost inflation:
A one percentage point decrease or
increase in the rate of health care cost
inflation will have the following effect:
The accrued liability as at 30 June 2021
will decrease by N$0.401 million (2020:
N$0.348 million) or increase by
N$0.454 million (2020: N$0.391 million)
respectively; and

Annual financial statements

The current service cost and interest
cost will decrease by N$0.024 million
(2020: N$0.028 million) or
increase by N$0.022 million
(2020: N$0.032 million) respectively.
16.3 Severance benefit
In accordance with section 35(1) of the
Namibia Labour Act, 2007, severance
benefits are payable to an employee,
if the employee is unfairly dismissed,
dies while employed or resigns/retires
on reaching the age of 65 years.
The statutory termination benefits
provided are classified as defined
benefits and are determined based
on one week’s salary/wages for each
completed year of service.
17 084

15 071

1 716

1 003

Current service costs

1 003

677

1 804

Interest cost

1 804

(3 547)
(859)
15 071

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

297

Balance at the beginning of the year

Actuarial gain

297

(2 897)

Benefits paid

(2 897)

15 278

Balance at the end of the year

15 278

677
(3 547)
(859)
15 071
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
16.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

11.30%

12.00%

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

16.3 Severance benefit (continued)
Valuation method and assumptions
Our
profile

The actuarial valuation method used
to value the liabilities is the projected
unit credit method prescribed by
IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Future
benefits valued are projected using
specific actuarial assumptions and
the liability for in-service members is
accrued over the expected working
lifetime.

Our context
and strategy

11.30%

Discount rate

6.80%

6.60%

Inflation rate

6.60%

6.80%

6.80%

6.60%

Salary increase rate

6.60%

6.80%

21 972

21 208

Governance
report

Sensitivity analysis of inflation:
A one percentage point decrease or
increase in the inflation rate will have
the following effect:

Risk and
opportunities report

The accrued liability as at
30 June 2021 will decrease by
N$1.508 million (2020: N$1.370 million)
or increase by N$1.761 million
(2020: N$1.595 million) respectively.
21 972

Total post-employment provisions

Remuneration
report

21 208

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

12.00%

Managing
director’s report

The post-retirement medical aid
costs were valued by an independent
consulting actuary, Strategic Actuarial
Partners Namibia (Proprietary) Limited
on 30 June 2021. The principal actuarial
assumptions used in determining
severance pay obligations for the
Group is as follows:

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

17.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

190 167

183 315

DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation liability

183 332

190 184

Balance at beginning of the year

3 384

Accelerated depreciation for tax
purposes

(16 342)

13 635

–
(120)

42

(7 995)

–

(2 659)

3 270

18 476

(20 634)

Debtors allowances
Consumables
Customer deposits
Other provisions

3 384
13 635

(16 342)
–

42

(120)

–

(7 995)

3 270
(20 634)

(2 659)
18 476

448

Other leases

448

(15)

170

Prepayments

170

(15)

(506)

105

Retirement and severance pay benefit
obligations

105

(506)

(590)

(289)

(289)

(590)

8 582

Annual financial statements

Accrued income

Intangible asset

8 582

6 766

(11 235)

Unrealised foreign exchange losses

(11 235)

6 766

5 597

(11 104)

Movement during the year

(11 104)

5 597

1 255

(349)

(349)

1 255

190 184

Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year

178 731

178 714

190 167

217 311

213 927

13 635

–

Analysis of deferred taxation liability:
213 927

217 311

–

13 635

(120)

(78)

(20 601)

(17 331)

(1 763)

(22 397)

(3 005)

(2 557)
435

265
(6 787)

(7 031)

1 363

1 074
(4 330)

6 905
190 184

Accelerated depreciation for tax
purposes
Accrued income

(78)

(120)

Customer deposits

(17 331)

(20 601)

Other provisions

(22 414)

(1 780)

(2 557)

(3 005)

Debtors allowances

Other leases
Prepayments
Retirement benefit obligations
Intangible asset
Unrealised foreign exchange losses

178 731

265
(6 787)

1 074

1 363

(4 330)
178 714

Unutilised tax losses not recognised
as deferred tax assets as a result
of uncertainty with regard to the
recoverability thereof amount to
N$68.9 million (2020: N$68.9 million)
in Group companies. These losses can
be carried forward indefinitely.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

435
(7 031)

6 905
190 167
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
18.

2020
N$’000

125 076

59 993

12 369

16 657

1 660

1 512

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Financial instruments at amortised
cost

59 829

125 396

17 869

13 473

Trade and other payables
Payables to Group companies
(note 29.1)
Payables to other related parties
(note 29.2)

67 287

65 289

Other accrued expenses

65 965

67 933

47 440

31 490

Deposits received

31 538

48 276

23 306

31 003

Other payables

31 003

23 466

217 243

268 311

267 610

217 837

61 831

59 287

Excise duties

59 287

61 831

Total financial instruments at
amortised cost

63 903

Accrued bonus

63 903

–

13 858

Accrued leave pay

13 858

7 918

–

301

301

–

69 749

137 349

Total non-financial instruments

137 349

69 749

286 992

405 660

Total trade and other payables

404 959

287 586

Value added taxation

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

–
7 918

Managing
director’s report

1 660

Our context
and strategy

1 512

Our
profile

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

134
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000
18.

2020
N$’000

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)
Trade and other payables comprise
amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The
directors consider the carrying
amount of trade and other payables
approximates their fair value.

Annual financial statements

Trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally settled on
30 – 60 day terms.
Accruals relate to leave, medical,
bonus, electricity and management
fee accruals, among others.
In 2021, dividends payable of
N$6.333 million, previously classified
as trade and other payables, were
reclassified to note 19, Dividends
Payable in line with IAS 1.
For terms and conditions of balances
owing to related parties, refer to
note 29.
19.
(5 082)

(6 333)

(462 728)

(225 116)
7 061

6 333
(461 477)

(224 388)

DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
Balance payable at the beginning of
the year
Dividends declared on ordinary shares
Balance payable at the end of the year
Dividends paid
Dividends payable represents
dividends declared, but not paid at
year end.
Dividends payable had previously
been included in trade payables,
but were reclassified to dividends
payable in the 2021 Annual Financial
Statements

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

(6 333)

(5 082)

(225 116)

(462 728)

7 061
(224 388)

6 333
(461 477)

135
About
this report
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

3 397 080

3 408 322

20.
(757 534)

(107 979)

(111 534)

103 375

109 322

2 645 832

2 648 576

2020
N$’000

3 408 322

3 397 080

REVENUE
Sale of goods
Excise

(757 534)

(746 644)

Discounts allowed

(111 534)

(107 979)

109 322

103 375

2 648 576

2 645 832

3 408 322

3 397 080

Royalties and know-how fees
Total net revenue from contracts
with customers

Our context
and strategy

As per the nature of the Group’s
operations, the timing of all revenue
recognition takes place at a point
in time.

Managing
director’s report

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers
The Group and Company
disaggregates revenue from
customers as follows:

3 408 322

Sale of goods

(757 534)

Excise

(757 534)

(746 644)

(111 534)

Discounts allowed

(111 534)

(107 979)

103 375

109 322

109 322

103 375

2 645 832

2 648 576

2 648 576

2 645 832

Royalties and know-how fees
Total net revenue from contracts
with customers

Risk and
opportunities report

Net revenue arising from sales to
countries outside Namibia are detailed
in note 36.

Governance
report

(746 644)
(107 979)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

At a point in time
3 397 080

Our
profile

(746 644)

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

21.
975 409
346 383

761 063
397 817

479 484
161 903
57 967

482 727
184 138
36 786

169 318
2 190 464

168 427
2 030 958

Annual financial statements

22.

15

–

(5 224)

(1 974)

–

36 800

(3 465)

9 333

–
2 303
25

1 839
1 941
18

144 416
19 298
4 520

143 459
18 801
6 686
(520)
10 157
58 240
1 594

1 084
7 173
61 097
2 774
–

25 600

2 677
3 129

2 677
3 129

19 348

(21 454)

4 801
(1 371)

3 490
(4 175)

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs by nature
Raw material and consumables
Employment costs
Administration and marketing
expenses
Railage and transport
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairments

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

761 063
397 817

975 409
346 383

487 351
184 138
36 786

481 230
161 903
57 966

168 795
2 035 950

169 698
2 192 589

15

–

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is stated after taking
account of:
Income
Rent received
Net profit on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Realised profit on foreign exchange
transactions
Unrealised gains on foreign exchange
contracts
Expenses
Audit fees
– for statutory audit 2020
– for statutory audit 2021
– for other services
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Impairment losses including
impairment reversals
Directors’ emoluments (Annexure D)
Management and shared services fees
Royalties
Realised loss on foreign exchange
transactions
Operating lease payments
– land and buildings
– motor vehicles
Movement in the provision for
impairment of inventories
Movement in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of loans to subsidiaries

(5 189)
–

(1 974)
36 800

(3 465)

9 333

1 839
1 941
115

–
2 302
263

143 828
18 801
6 686

144 796
19 298
4 520

(520)
10 157
58 240
1 594

1
7
61
2

084
173
097
774

25 600

–

2 677
3 129

2 677
3 129

(21 454)
3 490
–

19 348
4 801
–
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY

GROUP

40 007

36 821

8 210

7 707

2 275

2 324

53

2

50 545

46 854

23.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

36 821

40 007

Lease liabilities

7 707

8 210

Post-employment benefits

2 324

2 275

2

53

46 854

50 545

20 939

10 619

4 443

6 370

199

603

25 581

17 592

FINANCE COSTS
Interest-bearing loans

Other interest
Total finance costs
24.

FINANCE INCOME

20 920

6 370

4 443
199

16 818

25 562

Loan provided to associate
Group companies and other related
parties
Total interest income
25.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(79 735)

(133 365)

(2 525)

(11 373)

(82 260)

(144 738)

Namibian taxation
South African taxation
Total income tax expense

(133 365)

(79 735)
(2 525)
(82 260)

(144 469)

(74 862)

Comprising
Normal taxation
(74 862)

(144 469)

– current period: Namibian

–

– prior period: Namibian

–

725

8 292

–

– prior period: South African

–

8 292

Withholding tax
(10 817)

(11 373)

– current period: South African

(11 373)

(10 817)

Deferred taxation
(5 598)

(144 738)

– current period: Namibian
Income tax expense

11 104
(144 738)

(5 598)
(82 260)

Remuneration
report

(82 260)

11 104

Risk and
opportunities report

725

Governance
report

(11 373)
(144 738)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The major components of income
tax expense for the years ended
30 June 2021 and 2020 are:

Managing
director’s report

603

Bank and funds on call

Our context
and strategy

Interest income earned on:
9 845

Our
profile

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
25.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
No provision for normal taxation has
been made for certain subsidiaries
which have estimated tax losses of
N$68.9 million (2020: N$68.9 million).
No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for these calculated tax
losses as it is uncertain that future
taxable profits will be available against
which the associated unused tax losses
can be utilised.

–

Estimated tax losses available for setoff against future taxable income

68 857

68 857

–

–

Less: Applied to offset any deferred
taxation liability or to create deferred
tax asset

–

–

–

–

Available to reduce future taxable
income

68 857

68 857

%

%

%

%

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

(4.7)

(7.5)

Annual financial statements

–

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Namibian normal tax rate
(Reduction)/increase in rate
of taxation
(7.4)

(4.7)

1.5

0.8

– manufacturing allowances
–d
 isallowable expenditure

(6.6)

(4.8)

–e
 ffect of rate differential between
tax jurisdictions

7.1

4.6

– equity accounted losses/(profits)

0.8

1.5

(4.8)

(6.6)

4.5

7.1

–

– adjustments relating to prior periods

–

–

– unrecognised tax losses

0.3

0.1

23.9

27.9

Effective rate of taxation

28.1

23.9

(2.7)

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

–

(2.7)
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
26.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

206 529

206 529

BASIC AND HEADLINE EARNINGS
PER ORDINARY SHARE

Our
profile

Basic earnings per share amounts are
calculated by dividing profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

–

–

206 529

206 529

Shares issued at beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year to
ordinary shareholders

–

206 529

206 529

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders

373 159

261 327

Net (gain)/loss on the sale of property,
plant and equipment

(5 189)

(1 974)

261 327

206 529

206 529

180.7

126.5

Headline earnings

367 970

259 353

Weighted average number of shares
in issue (000s)

206 529

206 529

178.2

125.6

Basic earnings per ordinary
share (cents)
There is no difference between basic
and diluted earnings per share
26.2 Headline earnings per ordinary
share (cents)

Headline earnings per ordinary
share (cents)

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

There is no difference between
headline earnings per share and
diluted headline earnings per share

Annual financial
statements

373 159

Weighted number of shares in
issue (000s)

Remuneration
report

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders

26.1 Basic earnings per ordinary
share (cents)

Risk and
opportunities report

259 353

Governance
report

367 970

Headline earnings

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

–

Weighted average number of shares

Managing
director’s report

206 529

Our context
and strategy

Calculation of weighted average
number of shares for basic earnings per
share and dilutive earnings per share:
206 529

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP
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COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

27.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

115 656

–

–

109 460

109 460

–

DIVIDENDS PROPOSED
In respect of the 2021 financial year

–

115 656

– interim (56 cents per share, paid
14 May 2021)
In respect of the 2020 financial year

109 460

–

–

109 460

– interim (53 cents per share, paid
8 May 2020)
– fi
 nal (53 cents per share, paid
13 November 2020)

Annual financial statements

In respect of the 2019 financial year
–

– interim (50 cents per share, paid
17 May 2019)

–

–

103 265

–

– fi
 nal (50 cents per share, paid
8 November 2019)

–

103 265

250 003

–

– s pecial (N$250 000 000 in total,
paid 8 November 2019)

–

250 003

462 728

225 116

225 116

462 728

50.0

53.0

53.0

50.0

121.1

–

Special dividend (cents)

–

121.1

53.0

56.0

Interim dividend (cents)

224.1

109.0

–

Dividends declared to ordinary
shareholders
Dividend paid per ordinary share
Final dividend (cents)

56.0

53.0

109.0

224.1

–

109 460

Proposed dividend

109 460

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

–

On 29 September 2021, the Board
of Directors elected not declare a final
dividend (2 September 2020:
53 cents).
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000

517 897

343 587

143 828
18 801
6 686

144 796
19 298
4 520

772 659

(110 118)
(20 595)
144 394
(233 916)
528 273

136 576
54 028
(36 121)
118 669
909 235

(9 068)

12 798

5 294

2 565

(2 342)

(155 842)
–
13 695
(138 151)

12 798

(9 068)

2 565

5 294

764

(2 342)

(21 454)

19 348

3 490
73 456
–
–
–
(25 581)
46 854
(2 669)

4 801
76 703
–
100
(445)
(17 592)
50 545
–

Operating profit before working
capital changes

772 246

637 571

Working capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated by operations

135 671
54 028
(35 721)
117 364
907 917

28.2 Income tax paid
Balance receivable at beginning
of the year
Balance payable at beginning
of the year
Current tax charge
Balance receivable at end of the year
Balance payable at end of the year
Income tax paid during the year

4 321

(155 842)
(326)
13 695
(138 152)

(108
(20
147
(235
528

646)
595)
372
423)
925

55 820
(16 580)
(76 662)
–
(4 321)
(41 743)

Notice of annual
general meeting
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(16 579)
(76 662)
(3 996)
–
(41 743)

3 996

(1 974)

Remuneration
report

55 494

764

(5 189)

Risk and
opportunities report

638 390

(5 224)

Governance
report

3 490
73 456
(4 175)
–
–
(25 562)
46 854
(2 669)

(1 974)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

4 801
76 703
(1 371)
100
–
(16 818)
50 545
–

143 459
18 801
6 686

Managing
director’s report

(21 454)

144 416
19 298
4 520

Our context
and strategy

19 348

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Unrealised (gains)/losses on foreign
exchange contract
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit
assets and liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provision
for medical aid and severance pay
Increase/(decrease) in provision
for obsolete stock
Increase/(decrease) in provision
for doubtful debts
Equity (profit)/loss from associate
Impairment on subsidiary loans
Other impairments
FCTR movement
Finance income
Finance costs
Non-cash finance costs

Our
profile

2020
N$’000

28.

344 938

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS
28.1 Cash generated by operations
522 870
Profit before income tax

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP
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COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
29.

RELATED PARTIES
The immediate holding company of
Namibia Breweries Limited is NBL
Investment Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited of which the shareholding is held
by Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading
Corporation Limited and Heineken
International N.V. The Company’s
ultimate holding Company is Sven
Thieme Holdings (Proprietary) Limited.

Annual financial statements

Namibia Breweries Limited forms part of
the Ohlthaver & List Group of companies
and thus all companies in the Ohlthaver
& List Group of companies are related
parties of Namibia Breweries Limited
and its subsidiaries.
Heineken South Africa (RF) Proprietary
Limited is a related party as the Company
holds 25% of its issued shares. Heineken
South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited
does not form part of the Ohlthaver &
List Group of Companies and has been
disclosed as a related party in note 29.2.
During the year the Company and
the Group, in the ordinary course of
business, entered into various sales,
purchases and loan transactions with
Group companies and its holding
company.
Key management personnel are the
directors of the Company.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

2020
N$’000
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000

5 200

5 100

6

–

403
7 856

353
7 746

4 369
4 369

4 368
4 368

12 225

12 114

49
139
3 395
2 859

52
355
3 088
2 437

251

2

309

–

402

135

8
7 785

–
6 102

–

6

353
7 746

403
7 856

–
–

–
–

7 746

7 856

–

304

33

69

52
355
3 088
2 437

49
139
3 395
2 859

2

251

–

309

135

402

–
6 102

8
7 785

Notice of annual
general meeting
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33

5 200

Remuneration
report

69

5 100

Risk and
opportunities report

–

Revenue
Sales of goods
Group companies
Broll & List Property Management
(Namibia) (Proprietary) Limited
Chobe Water Villas (Proprietary)
Limited
Hangana Seafood (Proprietary)
Limited
Hartlief Corporation Limited
Namibia Dairies (Proprietary) Limited
O&L Leisure (Proprietary) Limited
Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary)
Limited
Organic Energy Solutions
(Proprietary) Limited
W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a Model Pick 'n Pay
Weatherman & Co Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited
Total revenue from Group companies

17
20
231
–
1 961
16

Governance
report

304

Subsidiaries
Flycatcher (Proprietary) Limited

9
60
500
2
1 698
–

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

9
60
500
2
1 698
–

2

Managing
director’s report

17
20
231
–
1 961
16

24

Our context
and strategy

24

2020
N$’000

Our
profile

2

29. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
29.1 Group companies
Trade and other receivables
Group companies
Chobe Water Villas (Proprietary)
Limited
Hangana Seafood (Proprietary)
Limited
Hartlief Corporation Limited
Namibia Dairies (Proprietary) Limited
O&L Center (Proprietary) Limited
O&L Leisure (Proprietary) Limited
O&L SA Proprietary Limited
Organic Energy Solutions
(Proprietary) Limited
W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a Model Pick n Pay
W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a O&L Properties Division

2021
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP
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COMPANY

Annual financial statements

2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000

590
9
–
18

488
25
43
42

14 048

9 328

953

1 366

1

61

1 038

1 016

16 657

12 369

29. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
29.1 Group companies (continued)
Trade payables
Group companies
ICT Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
Namibia Dairies (Proprietary) Limited
O&L Leisure (Proprietary) Limited
O&L South Africa Proprietary Limited
Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary)
Limited
Organic Energy Solutions
(Proprietary) Limited
W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a Model Pick n Pay
Weathermen & Co Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

488
25
43
42

590
9
–
18

9 328

14 048

1 366

953

61

1

1 016

1 038

12 369

16 657

Subsidiaries
Northgate Properties
(Proprietary) Limited

1 212

1 104

–

–

1 212

1 104

–

–

17 869

13 473

12 369

16 657

105

152

5 272

6 251

Purchases from during the year
Group companies
152

105

6 251

5 272

Hartlief Corporation Limited
ICT Holdings (Proprietary) Limited

92

186

Kraatz Marine (Proprietary) Limited

186

92

59

168

Namibia Dairies (Proprietary) Limited

168

59

1 311

184

O&L Leisure (Proprietary) Limited

184

1 311

8 983

13 194

Organic Energy Solutions
(Proprietary) Limited

764

2 574

W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a Model Pick n Pay

15 303

6 364

Weatherman & Co Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited

32 915

28 047

13 194

8 983

2 574

764

6 364

15 303

28 047

32 915

–

205

Rent paid
Group companies
205

–

Wernhil Park (Proprietary) Limited

3 345

2 973

W.U.M. Properties (Proprietary)
Limited t/a O&L Property Division

3 550

2 973

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

2 973

3 345

2 973

3 550
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

29. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
29.1 Group companies (continued)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Interest received
Group companies
ICT Holdings (Proprietary) Limited

53

49

537

98

Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary)
Limited

98

537

17

48

Weatherman & Co Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited

48

17

603

199

199

603

2

–

52 941

56 191

52 941

56 191

1 228

–

39

48

86 084

43 190

1 203

1 341

87 326

44 579

73 625

73 625

Interest paid

Our context
and strategy

53

Our
profile

49

Group companies
2

Weatherman & Co Advertising
(Proprietary) Limited
Management and shared service
fees paid

56 191

52 941

56 191

52 941

Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary)
Limited

Consulting fees paid
–

1 228

HB Gerdes

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Group companies

Managing
director’s report

–

Governance
report

Directors’ fees
For directors fees refer to Annexure D.

Trade and other receivables
48

39

43 190

86 084
1 203

44 579

87 326

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited
Heineken South Africa Exports
Company Proprietary Limited

73 625

73 625

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

Notice of annual
general meeting
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Investment in associate – Loan
receivable

Remuneration
report

1 341

Dimension Data (Proprietary) Limited

Risk and
opportunities report

29.2 Other related parties
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COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

29.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

29.2 Other related parties (continued)
Trade payables
1 947

1 460

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

1 460

1 947

1 512

1 660

Dimension Data (Proprietary) Limited

1 660

1 512

3 459

3 120

3 120

3 459

5 299

4 906

3 437

3 791

98 126

91 311

101 563

95 102

7 759

8 273

Management fees paid
5 299

4 906

Heineken International N.V.

Annual financial statements

Royalties received
3 791

3 437

91 311

98 126

95 102

101 563

Heineken South Africa Exports
Company Proprietary Limited
Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

Know-how fees received
7 759

8 273

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited
Sale of goods

282

Dimension Data (Proprietary) Limited

282

250

–

135

Heineken South Africa Export
Company Proprietary Limited

135

–

936 002

625 758

625 758

936 002

936 252

626 175

626 175

936 252

4 443

6 370

–

1

1 594

2 774

250

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited
Interest received

6 370

4 443

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited
Interest paid

1

–

Dimension Data (Proprietary) Limited
Royalties paid

2 774

1 594

Heineken International B.V.
Purchases made during the year

24 974

39 193

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited*

39 193

24 974

12 261

12 130

Dimension Data (Proprietary) Limited

12 130

12 261

37 235

51 323

51 323

37 235

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000
29.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

1 014

1 449

15 969

–

2 896

–

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

29.2 Other related parties (continued)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Legal fees
1 449

1 014

Engling, Stritter & Partners

Our
profile

Sundry income
–

15 969

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

–

2 896

Heineken South Africa (RF)
Proprietary Limited

Our context
and strategy

Sundry expenses

Subsidiaries
Managing
director’s report

Details of the subsidiaries are
disclosed in Annexure C.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Retirement benefit information and
post-employment medical aid
benefit plan
Details of the above are disclosed in
note 16.
Terms and conditions of transactions
with related parties

Governance
report

Terms and conditions with related
parties are at those set out below,
with the exception of Heineken South
Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited, which
has contractually agreed upon terms
as disclosed in note 8.

Risk and
opportunities report

Sales to and purchases from related
parties are made at those terms
negotiated between the parties.
Receivable balances at year end are
unsecured, on 30 – 90 day terms,
interest free and settlement occurs
in cash. Payable balances are to be
settled in cash on 30 – 60 day terms.

Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements

For the year ended 30 June 2020,
the Company reversed an impaired
amount of N$1.4 million with respect
to a loan advanced to a subsidiary.
Also refer to Annexure C.

Notice of annual
general meeting

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

148
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000
29.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

%

%

0.13

0.12

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

29.2 Other related parties (continued)
Directors’ interest
At the financial year end the directors
were directly and indirectly interested
in the Company’s issued shares as
follows:
%

%
Ordinary shares

0.12

0.13

Directly

Annual financial statements

Changes in directly held shares relates
to the appointment of Vetumbuavi
Junius Mungunda as non-executive
director, who held shares in NBL prior
to his appointment.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
COMPANY
2021
N$’000
30.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

18 067

26 710

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Authorised
26 710

18 067
164 679
182 746

Not contracted for

164 679

137 969

182 746

164 679

6 000

6 000

Our context
and strategy

These capital commitments are for
the expansion, replacement and
improvement of property plant and
equipment.

6 000

Guarantees and suretyship

Managing
director’s report

This proposed capital expenditure
is to be financed by own funds, and
are expected to be settled within the
following year.
6 000

Our
profile

137 969
164 679

Contracted for

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

The suretyships are issued by First
Rand Bank Limited in favour of the
Namibian Ministry of Finance.

Governance
report
Risk and
opportunities report
Remuneration
report
Annual financial
statements
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COMPANY
2020
N$’000

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
30.

2020
N$’000

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Barley project

Annual financial statements

In 2015 the Company concluded a
tripartite agreement with the Ministry
of Agriculture, Water and Forestry,
as well as the Agricultural Business
Development Agency (AgriBusDev).
The barley project started with
370 hectares under irrigation,
predominantly in the Kavango region.
NBL has committed to buy all the
barley harvested, with a 10-year target
of planting and cultivating 12 000
hectares.

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Categorisation of financial assets
Group – 2021
N$’000

FVTPL – Amortised
Notes Mandatory
cost

Total

Fair
value

8

–

73 625

73 625

73 625

Trade and other receivables

10

–

349 617

349 617

349 617

Cash and cash equivalents

11

–

602 219

602 219

602 219

–

1 025 461

1 025 461

1 025 461

FVTPL –
Mandatory

Amortised
cost

Total

Fair
value

Loan to associate

Group – 2020
N$’000
Loan to associate

Notes
8

–

73 625

73 625

73 625

Trade and other receivables

10

–

260 623

260 623

260 623

Cash and cash equivalents

11

–

247 557

247 557

247 557

Derivatives

12

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

9 333

–

9 333

9 333

9 333

581 805

591 138

591 138
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31.

Fair
value
73 625
353 985
602 137
1 029 747

Amortised
cost
73 625
264 650
242 626
–
580 901

Total
73 625
264 650
242 626
9 333
590 234

Fair
value
73 625
264 650
242 626
9 333
590 234

FVTPL – Amortised
Leases Mandatory
cost
–
–
267 610
–
3 465
–
38 767
–
580 000
38 767
3 465
847 610

Total
267 610
3 465
618 767
889 842

Fair
value
267 610
3 465
618 767
889 842

Amortised
cost
217 837
605 000
822 837

Total
217 837
646 696
864 533

Fair
value
217 837
646 696
864 533

FVTPL – Amortised
Leases Mandatory
cost
–
–
268 310
–
3 465
–
38 767
–
580 000
38 767
3 465
848 311

Total
268 310
3 465
618 767
890 543

Fair
value
268 310
3 465
618 767
890 543

Total
217 243
646 696
863 939

Fair
value
217 243
646 696
863 939

Our
profile

Total
73 625
353 985
602 137
1 029 747

Chairperson’s
statement

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Categorisation of financial assets (continued)
Company – 2021
FVTPL – Amortised
N$’000
Notes Mandatory
cost
Loan to associate
8
–
73 625
Trade and other receivables
10
–
353 985
Cash and cash equivalents
11
–
602 137
– 1 029 747
Company – 2020
Notes
8
10
11
12

FVTPL –
Mandatory
–
–
–
9 333
9 333

Notes
18
12
15

Group – 2020
Notes
18
15

Leases
–
41 696
41 696

FVTPL –
Mandatory
–
–
–

Notes
10
12
15

Company – 2020
Notes
10
15

Leases
–
41 696
41 696

FVTPL –
Mandatory
–
–
–

Amortised
cost
217 243
605 000
822 243
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N$’000
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
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N$’000
Trade and other payables
Derivatives
Interest-bearing borrowings

Risk and
opportunities report

Company – 2021
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N$’000
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

N$’000
Trade and other payables
Derivatives
Interest-bearing borrowings
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Categorisation of financial liabilities
Group – 2021

Our context
and strategy

N$’000
Loan to associate
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivatives
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans, loans to and from holding
company and Group companies, leases and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions such as forward exchange contracts. The reason for this is to manage
the currency risk from the Group’s operations. As a matter of principle, the Group does not enter into derivative
contracts for speculative purposes.
The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts represents the estimated amounts that the Company would
receive, should the contracts be terminated at the reporting date, thereby taking into account the unrealised gains
or losses.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

Annual financial statements

31.1 Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from purchases of raw materials and sales of
the Group’s products in a currency other than the Group’s functional currency.
The Group appropriately hedges foreign purchases in order to manage its foreign currency exposure. The Group does
not apply hedge accounting. Forward exchange contracts are entered into in order to manage the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on foreign transactions. Refer to note 32.2 for unutilised forward
exchange contracts and uncovered foreign trade receivables and payables at year end.
31.2 Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows and places funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating borrowings and placings within market expectations.
Refer to Annexure A and note 32.3 for further detail on interest rates.
31.3 Credit risk
Financial assets which potentially subject the Group to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash, funds
on call and trade receivables. The Group’s cash equivalents and funds on call are placed with high credit quality
financial institutions. Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost. The Group’s single largest customer
during the year was Heineken South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited. The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk or significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments. In respect of possible default by a counterparty, the Group holds collateral as
security in the amount of N$ Nil (2019: Nil). Refer to the accounting policies for a more detailed description of the
credit risk.
Management monitors adherence to payment terms by the associate, on a monthly basis. Financial performance and
projected cash flows of the associate are monitored on a monthly basis to ensure recoverability of all amounts.
The granting of credit is made on application and is approved by management. At year end the Company did not
consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk or significant exposure to any individual customer or
counter party which has not been adequately provided for.
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000
31.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

602 219

247 557

73 625

73 625

349 617

260 623

1 025 461

581 805

%

%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

31.3 Credit risk (continued)

602 137

73 625

73 625

264 650

353 985

580 901

1 029 747

Cash and cash equivalents
Loan to associate
Trade and other receivables

%
Trading industry

62.10

62.20

Namibia

62.20

62.10

14.90

22.70

South Africa

22.70

14.90

23.00

15.10

Other export markets

100.00

100.00

23.00
100.00

N$’000

N$’000

1 431 572

1 316 921

Governance
report

15.10
100.00

31.4 Liquidity risk

Risk and
opportunities report

The Group and Company manages
liquidity risk by monitoring forecast
cash flows and ensuring that adequate
unutilised borrowing facilities are
maintained. Refer to Annexure A and
note 15.

1 316 282

1 434 203

(647 908)

(618 767)

668 374

815 436

75% of shareholder’s equity
Less total interest-bearing borrowings
Unutilised borrowing capacity

(618 767)

(646 696)

812 805

670 225

Notice of annual
general meeting
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N$’000

Remuneration
report

Borrowing capacity is determined by
the directors of the Company. The
Directors consider a ratio of not higher
than 75% of shareholders’ equity as
conservative.
N$’000

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

%

Managing
director’s report

Major concentrations of credit risk
that arise from the Group’s receivables
in relation to the industry categories
and location of the customers by the
percentage of total receivables from
customers are:

Our context
and strategy

242 626

Our
profile

Financial assets exposed to credit
risk at year end were as follows:
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COMPANY

GROUP
2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

618 767
(602 219)
16 548

646 696
(247 557)
399 139

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
31.5 Capital risk management
The Company and Group manage
their capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company’s and Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged
from the prior year.

Annual financial statements

The capital structure of the Company
and Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in
note 15, cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent, comprising issued
capital reserves and retained earnings.
Gearing ratio
The Company’s and Group’s Risk
Management Committee reviews the
capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. Consistent with others in the
industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated and
separate statement of financial position
plus net debt.

647 908
(242 626)
405 282

618 767
(602 137)
16 630

1 755 043

1 912 270

23%

1%

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

The gearing ratio at year end was as
follows:
Debt (i)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity (ii)
Net debt to equity ratio
(i)	Debt is defined as long- and shortterm interest-bearing borrowings.
(ii)	Equity includes all capital and
reserves of the Company.

1 908 763

1 755 895

1%

23%
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000
32.

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

–

9 333

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.1 Fair values

Our
profile

The fair value of all financial
instruments are substantially identical
to the carrying amounts reflected in
the balance sheet.

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

Fair value hierarchy
Our context
and strategy

The table below analyses assets and
liabilities carried at fair value. The
different levels are defined as follows:

Managing
director’s report

Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
measurement date.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted
prices included in level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
Level 2
Assets

9 333

–

–

(3 465)

9 333

(3 465)

Forward foreign exchange asset
Forward foreign exchange liability

(3 465)

–

(3 465)

9 333

Governance
report

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Risk and
opportunities report

Transfers of assets and liabilities
within levels of fair value hierarchy

Remuneration
report

There are no transfers between level 1
and level 2 for the year ended
30 June 2021 and for the year ended
30 June 2020.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
32.2 Hedging activities and foreign currency risk
Forward exchange contracts are entered into with banks but are not designated as hedges for specific purchases. If
contract rates are more favourable than the spot rate, on the date of payment of foreign creditors, they will be used.
The maturity date represents the date when the contract must be exercised if it is not exercised before this date. The
following table summarises by major currency the unutilised forward exchange contracts and amounts to be paid/
received in foreign currency, for the Group and Company:
MATURITY
DATE
Group and Company

FOREIGN
AMOUNT

AVERAGE
RATE

NAMIBIA DOLLAR
AMOUNT

2021
’000

2020
’000

2021

2020

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

Forward exchange
contracts:

Annual financial statements

Bought:
Euro

1 – 12 months

2 125

4 936

18.29

17.72

38 866

87 447

USD

1 – 12 months

4 095

3 005

15.39

17.63

63 022

52 989

Foreign trade
receivables:
1 879

2 736

14.31

17.27

26 889

47 251

Euro

88

10

17.04

19.42

1 506

194

Pound Sterling

14

–

19.82

21.28

275

–

Botswana Pula

–

3 074

1.30

1.45

–

4 457

28 670

51 902

6 668

–

US Dollar

Foreign trade
payables:
US Dollar

466

–

14.31

17.27

Euro

–

117

17.04

19.42

–

2 272

Botswana Pula

–

235

1.30

1.45

–

341

6 668

2 613

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is primarily exposed to the currency of the European Central Bank (Euro) and secondly to currency of the
United States of America (US Dollar).
The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Namibia Dollar (N$)
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel an represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates.
Below, a positive number indicates an increase in profit, a negative number indicates a decrease in profit based on the
Namibia Dollar strengthening 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the Namibia Dollar against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity.
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COMPANY
2021
N$’000

2021
N$’000
32.

2020
N$’000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Chairperson’s
statement

2020
N$’000

GROUP

32.2 Hedging activities and foreign
currency risk (continued)
Effect on profit before taxation
151
28

–

2 022
2 201

412

151

(208)

28

Pound Sterling
US Dollar

–

2 022

4 725

2 201

4 929

32.3 Maturity profile

Less than
1 year
N$’000

2–5
years
N$’000

4.25%

602 219

–

SA Prime

73 625

–

More
than
5 years
N$’000

Less:
Finance
charges
N$’000

Total
N$’000

–

–

602 219

–

–

73 625

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to associates

0.00%

–

–

–

349 617

–

–

–

1 025 461

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

–

508 842

–

(48 842)

460 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

–

38 251

–

(8 331)

29 920

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

149 135

–

–

(29 135)

120 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

12 349

–

–

(3 502)

8 847

3 465

–

–

Governance
report

349 617
1 025 461

Trade and other receivables

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

2021 – Group

Effective
interest
rate

Managing
director’s report

The following tables detail the Group and Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which the
Group and Company can be required/anticipate to incur and outflow/inflow. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Our context
and strategy

4 725
4 929

–

Botswana Pula
Euro

Our
profile

–

412
(208)

Financial liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Risk and
opportunities report

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

0.00%

267 610

–

–

432 559

547 093

–

–
–
(89 810)

3 465
267 610
889 842
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
32.3 Maturity profile (continued)

2020 – Group

Effective Less than
interest
1 year
rate
N$’000

2–5
years
N$’000

More
than
5 years
N$’000

Less:
Finance
charges
N$’000

Total
N$’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

7.35%

247 557

–

–

–

247 557

Derivative financial
instruments

0.00%

9 333

–

–

–

9 333

Loans to associates

SA Prime

73 625

–

–

–

73 625

0.00%

260 623

–

–

–

260 623

591 138

–

–

–

591 138

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

–

533 663

–

(53 663)

480 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

–

27 156

–

(5 548)

21 608

138 953

–

–

(13 953)

125 000

(6 118)

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Annual financial statements

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A
Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A
Trade and other payables

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

0,00%

26 206

–

–

217 837

–

–

382 996

560 819

–

–
(79 282)

20 088
217 837
864 533
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
32.3 Maturity profile (continued)
2–5
years
N$’000

More
than
5 years
N$’000

Less:
Finance
charges
N$’000

Total
N$’000

Chairperson’s
statement

2021 – Company

Effective Less than
interest
1 year
rate
N$’000

Financial assets
4.25%

602 219

–

–

–

602 219

Trade and other receivables

0.00%

353 985

–

–

–

353 985

73 625

–

–

–

73 625

1 029 829

–

–

–

1 029 829

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

–

508 842

–

(48 842)

460 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

–

38 251

–

(8 331)

29 920

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

149 135

–

–

(29 135)

120 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

12 349

–

–

(3 502)

8 847

Loans to associates

SA Prime

Our
profile

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Our context
and strategy

Non-current liabilities

Managing
director’s report

Current liabilities

0.00%

3 465

–

–

–

3 465

Trade and other payables

0.00%

268 311

–

–

–

268 311

433 260

547 093

–

(89 810)

890 543

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

Derivative financial
instruments
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
32.3 Maturity profile (continued)

2020 – Company

Effective Less than
interest
1 year
rate
N$’000

2–5
years
N$’000

More
than
5 years
N$’000

Less:
Finance
charges
N$’000

Total
N$’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

4.25%

247 557

–

–

–

247 557

Trade and other receivables

0.00%

264 650

–

–

–

264 650

Loans to associates

SA Prime

73 625

–

–

–

73 625

585 832

–

–

–

585 832

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

–

533 663

–

(53 663)

480 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

–

27 156

–

(5 548)

21 608

Interest-bearing borrowings –
medium-term borrowings
Annexure A

138 953

–

–

(13 953)

125 000

Interest-bearing borrowings –
finance lease liabilities
Annexure A

26 206

–

–

(6 118)

20 088

Financial liabilities

Annual financial statements

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

0.00%

217 243

–

–

382 402

560 819

–

–
(79 282)

217 243
863 939

Fair values of financial instruments are the same as the carrying amounts as detailed in note 31.
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33.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Gross

Tax

Net

N$’000

N$’000

N$’000

Group and Company 2021
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurements on net defined benefit liability/asset

16

Share of other comprehensive income of equity
accounted investments

(1 091)

349

Chairperson’s
statement

Notes

(742)

(1 926)

4 953

5 788

(1 577)

4 211

Our
profile

6 879

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange differences arising during the year

614

–

614
Our context
and strategy

Group and Company 2020
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurements on net defined benefit liability/asset

3 920

(1 254)

2 666

Exchange differences arising during the year

–

(445)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

34.

(445)

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Group and Company's foreign
subsidiaries from their functional currencies to the Group and Company's presentation currency are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Exchange
differences previously accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the foreign subsidiary.
2020
N$’000

Reconciliation of foreign currency translation reserve
Balance payable at the beginning of the year
Balance payable at the end of the year

(548)

(103)

614

(445)

66

(548)

Risk and
opportunities report

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign subsidiaries

Governance
report

2021
N$’000
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for the year ended 30 June 2021
35.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
On 13 August 2021, the Group received confirmation that its insurers approved a claim that was submitted by NBL
during the year. The claim submitted was to compensate the Group for losses incurred as a result of business
interruption under the Covid-19 lockdown restrictions imposed on the Group during March 2020 to May 2020.
As a result, the Group recognised income amounting to N$42 608 695, as the event constitutes an adjusting
event under IAS 10.
Subsequent to year end, Heineken N.V. made an offer to acquire NBL’s 25% shareholding in Heineken South Africa
(RF) Proprietary Limited (“the Potential HSA Transaction”). Discussions are still ongoing and several aspects still need
to be considered. An independent committee was appointed to assist in the assessment of the offer received.
Civil unrest occurred in South Africa’s KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng provinces from 9 to 17 July 2021, which resulted
in the destruction and looting of property and businesses. The effects of the looting on the Company and the Group is
confined to the Investment in Associate, but was not adjusted for in these annual financial statements as it is deemed
a non-adjusting event.
The Directors are not aware of any other significant events subsequent to the reporting date.

Annual financial statements

36.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information
Segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting. The Group sells various types of beverages
which are Beer, Ciders and Softs. These reflect the operating segments for the Group. Beer, which meets the
quantitative threshold of 10% of sales, EBIT and assets, is presented on a standalone basis, as a reportable segment. All
corporate assets are disclosed for the Group as a whole and not necessarily for a particular operating segment. In order
to ensure that the total of segment results and assets agree to the amounts reported for the Group in terms of IFRS, the
operations that do not qualify as separate segments are reported in the “Other” column.
BEER
2021
N$’000

OTHER
2020
N$’000

Sale of goods
3 229 250 3 260 013
Excise
(757 534) (746 644)
Discounts allowed
(111 084)
(98 343)
Royalties and know-how fees
109 288
103 149
Total net revenue
2 469 920
2 518 175
Segment operating profit/
(loss)
Share of loss of equity
accounted investments
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

571 302

466 288

TOTAL

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

179 072
–
(450)
34
178 656

137 067 3 408 322 3 397 080
–
(757 534) (746 644)
(9 636)
(111 534) (107 979)
226
109 322
103 375
127 657 2 648 576 2 645 832

41 324

(13 045)

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

612 626

453 243

(73 456)
(46 854)
25 581

(76 703)
(50 545)
17 592

517 897
(144 738)

343 587
(82 260)

373 159

261 327
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36.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
Major customers
Chairperson’s
statement

The Group’s two largest customers individually contributed to more than 10% of the Group’s total net sales
revenue amounting to N$464 268 192 and N$353 067 359 respectively.
Geographical information
Namibia is the parent company’s country of domicile. Those countries which account for more than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue are considered material and are reported separately.
SALES REVENUE

1 947 816
464 268
10 278
71 090
20 307
25 495
2 539 254

1 696
684
16
92
26
26
2 542

513
555
075
721
387
206
457

37.

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

APPROVAL OF THE SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These separate and consolidated annual financial statements set out on pages 92 to 178 were approved by the
Directors and authorised for issue on 10 November 2021.

Managing
director’s report

The basis for attributing revenue is based on actual sales. Non-current assets located in Namibia amount to
N$937.28 million and those located in all foreign countries amount to N$1 million.

Our context
and strategy

Namibia
South Africa
Botswana
Tanzania
Zambia
Rest of the world
Total net revenue (excluding royalties)

2020
N$’000

Our
profile

2021
N$’000
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 30 June 2021
38.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE GROUP (THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES)
The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on the trading conditions of the Company and Group since the
start of the first lockdown on 27 March 2020. The Company and Group had an improved trading environment in
the 2021 financial year, owing to the absence of alcohol bans in Namibia, although trade restrictions were
implemented for the majority of the year. The impact of alcohol bans was however felt in export markets, most
notably in South Africa, who experienced prolonged alcohol bans throughout the last eighteen months. Despite
the significant impact of Covid-19, the Company and Group showed resilience and improved financial
performance under challenging conditions in the 2021 year.
Going concern considerations
The going concern basis has been adopted in the preparation of the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements. As a result of cost effective sourcing, overall business cost management, flexible route-to-market and
sales initiatives, together with continuous consumer engagement, the Company and Group maintained its strong
financial position and ensured resilient and improved earnings under challenging market conditions.
With increased competition in the market, NBL, through its strong brand portfolio, is able to not only defend its
market share in all segments, but managed to grow market share during the 2021 financial year.

Annual financial statements

Liquidity considerations
Although the duration of the pandemic is still uncertain, the Company and Group have put in place the necessary
structures and processes to monitor and mitigate existing and emerging risks to the business, including liquidity risk.
Owing to the financial performance in 2021, the Company and Group improved and maintained a strong cash flow
position. The Company and Group also have sufficient committed banking facilities, ensuring that short to medium
term commitments can be met and to seize any opportunities that present itself. The Company and Group comfortably
met all financial covenants related to financing arrangements for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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ANNEXURE A
Interest-bearing borrowings
EFFECTIVE
INTEREST RATE
2020
%

Maturity
date

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

500

500

500

500

Our
profile

2021
N$’000

PREFERENCE SHARE
CAPITAL
Authorised
1 000 000 Variable rate
redeemable preference
shares of N$0.50 each
There are no preference
shares in issue.

Our context
and strategy
Managing
director’s report

JIBAR +
2.20% 31/12/2020

–

25 000

–

25 000

PRIME 1.65%

PRIME 1.65% 01/07/2020

–

100 000

–

100 000

JIBAR +
2.55%

JIBAR +
2.55% 30/06/2025

380 000

380 000

380 000

380 000

JIBAR +
2.80%

JIBAR +
2.80% 30/06/2025

200 000

100 000

200 000

100 000

Total interest-bearing
borrowing – Medium-term
loan

580 000

605 000

580 000

605 000

Current portion
Non-current portion

120 000
460 000

125 000
480 000

120 000
460 000

125 000
480 000

Governance
report

JIBAR +
2.20%

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
Risk and
opportunities report

MEDIUM-TERM LOAN
Variable rate instruments
–S
 tandard Bank Namibia
Limited repayable in
16 equal instalments of
N$12 500 000 commencing
in December 2016. This loan
is unsecured.
The loan was fully repaid in
September 2020.
– FNB Namibia – revolving
facility – no fixed
repayment terms. Secured
by a cession of trade and
other receivables and a
general notarial bond.*
– FirstRand Bank Limited –
Term A – The total facility
is N$600 million and
is reduced annually by
N$120 million. The excess
between the loan and
the facility is repayable
annually over five years.
Secured by a borrower
cession and a general
notarial bond.
– FirstRand Bank Limited –
Term B – Facility repayable
at the end of the loan term
in June 2025. Secured by
a borrower cession and a
general notarial bond.*

COMPANY
Chairperson’s
statement

2021
%

GROUP

Remuneration
report
Notice of annual
general meeting
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ANNEXURE A (CONTINUED)
Interest-bearing borrowings
EFFECTIVE
INTEREST RATE
2021
%

2020
%

9.60

10.50

GROUP
Maturity
date

COMPANY

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

9.60

36 907

36 328

36 907

36 328

10.50

1 860

5 368

1 860

5 368

38 767

41 696

38 767

41 696

8 847

20 088

8 847

20 088

29 920

21 608

29 920

21 608

Total current interestbearing borrowings

128 847

145 088

128 847

145 088

Total non-current interestbearing borrowings

489 920

501 608

489 920

501 608

Total interest-bearing
borrowings

618 767

646 696

618 767

646 696

LEASE LIABILITIES
Variable rate instruments
–V
 ehicle leases – repayable
in monthly instalments of
N$1 597 000 (2020:
N$1 539 000)

Annual financial statements

–P
 roperty leases – repayable
in monthly instalments of
N$390 000
(2020: N$478 000)
Total interest-bearing
borrowing – Medium-term
loan
Current portion
Non-current portion

Medium term borrowings
are secured by cash and
cash equivalents (note 11),
trade and other receivables
(note 10), Inventories (note 9)
and a General Notarial
Bond over moveable assets
as disclosed in note 4.
Additionally, the Group’s
insurance policy is also
ceded to the lender.
Details of the maturity
profile of the above interest
bearing loans has been
disclosed in note 32.3.
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GROUP

COMPANY

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

South African Rand

580 000

500 870

580 000

500 870

Namibia Dollar

128 554

191 615

128 554

191 615

3 670

3 579

3 670

3 579

ANALYSIS BY CURRENCY

Our
profile

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Our context
and strategy

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
balance sheet date. For variable rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

Managing
director’s report

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant:
Interest received:
Interest paid
– profit before tax for the year would increase/(decrease) by:

(11 149)

(7 055)

(11 149)

(7 055)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

– profit before tax for the year would increase/(decrease) by:

Chairperson’s
statement

2021
N$’000

Governance
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ANNEXURE B
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold
land and
buildings
N$’000

Leasehold
land and
buildings
N$’000

Plant
and
machinery
N$’000

Vehicles
N$’000

272 025

9 051

1 240 405

80 763

GROUP
2021
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at end of the year

1 787
(205)

–
(3 497)

40 638

2 684

(14 372)

(6 674)

56

–

5 626

–

273 663

5 554

1 272 297

76 773

42 620

6 118

716 818

53 746

4 214

214

72 502

8 724

(6 196)

(6 437)

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year

Annual financial statements

Depreciation charge
Accumulated depreciation on disposals

(205)

(3 497)

Foreign exchange movements

–

–

Transfers

–

–

46 629

2 835

782 839

56 033

227 034

2 719

489 458

20 740

260 971

8 989

1 202 825

126 173

10 383

–

60 944

13 211

(31 016)

(1 591)

Balance at end of the year
Carrying amount at end of the year

–
(285)

–
–

2020
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals

–

–

Transfers

671

62

7 652

–

–

–

272 025

9 051

1 240 405

80 763

38 591

5 904

674 739

74 536

4 029

214

72 221

9 459

Accumulated depreciation on disposals

–

–

(30 142)

(1 463)

Foreign exchange movements

–

–

–

Transfer to right-of-use assets

–

–

–

42 620

6 118

716 818

53 746

229 405

2 933

523 587

27 017

Transfer to right-of-use assets
Balance at end of the year

–
(57 030)

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year
Depreciation charge

Balance at end of the year
Carrying amount at end of the year
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Returnable
containers
N$’000

Assets
under
construction
N$’000

Total
N$’000

95 458

453 649

37 262

2 188 613

3 400

64 488

16 981

(12 054)

(174 103)

87 020

345 985

71 014
7 420
(11 957)

(25 687)

20 707

2 081 999

312 974

–

1 203 290

50 754

–

143 828

(174 103)

–

(202 395)

–

(4)

–

–

66 473

189 910

–

1 144 719

20 547

156 075

20 707

937 280

90 879

426 581

11 919

2 128 337

6 326

39 038

34 485

164 387

(2 504)

(11 970)

–

(47 081)

757

–

–

–

–

–

95 458

453 649

37 262

2 188 613

63 623

274 978

–

1 132 371

9 461

49 412

–

144 796

(2 064)

(11 416)

–

(45 085)

Governance
report

(9 142)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

–
285

Managing
director’s report

(4)

(33 536)

(210 905)

Our context
and strategy

1 951

129 978
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216

–
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Furniture
and
equipment
N$’000

(57 030)

–

(6)

–

–

(28 786)

71 014

312 974

–

1 203 290

24 444

140 675

37 262

985 323

Remuneration
report

–

–

Risk and
opportunities report

(6)
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ANNEXURE B (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold
land and
buildings
N$’000

Leasehold
land and
buildings
N$’000

Plant
and
Machinery
N$’000

Vehicles
N$’000

237 802

6 892

1 238 732

80 762

COMPANY
2021
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at end of the year

1 786
(205)

–
(3 497)

40 638

2 684

(14 320)

(6 674)

34 279

–

5 606

–

273 662

3 395

1 270 656

76 772

42 619

3 960

715 883

53 746

4 215

213

72 173

8 724

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year

Annual financial statements

Depreciation charge
Accumulated depreciation on disposals
Transfers

(205)

(3 497)

(6 164)

–

–

46 629

676

781 608

56 033

227 033

2 719

489 048

20 739

226 748

6 830

1 201 152

126 173

Additions

10 383

–

60 944

13 210

Disposals

–

–

(31 016)

Transfers

671

62

7 652

–

–

–

237 802

6 892

1 238 732

80 762

38 590

3 746

674 134

74 536

Balance at end of the year
Carrying amount at end of the year

(284)

(6 437)
–

2020
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year

Transfer to right-of-use assets
Balance at end of the year

(1 591)
–
(57 030)

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year
Depreciation charge

4 029

214

Accumulated depreciation on disposals

–

–

Transfers

–

–

Transfer to right-of-use assets
Balance at end of the year
Carrying amount at end of the year

71 891

9 459

(30 142)

(1 463)

–

–

–

–

–

42 619

3 960

715 883

(28 786)
53 746

195 183

2 932

522 849

27 016

On 26 June 2017, Namibia Breweries Limited (NBL) entered into a Cession Agreement with Hallie Investments 428 (Pty) Ltd,
a wholly owned subsidiary included in the Group figures of these annual financial statements, whereby all rights and
obligations associated with ownership of the property were ceded to NBL. In line with faithful representation of these annual
financial statements, NBL reclassified an amount of N$34 223 790, previously classified as an Investment in Subsidiary
(note 4) as Property Plant and Equipment (note 1). This reclassification is included as part of transfers in the Freehold land
and buildings category above.
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ANNEXURE B (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Returnable
containers
N$’000

Assets
under
construction
N$’000

Total
N$’000

94 971

453 649

37 242

2 150 050

3 401

64 488

16 982

(11 829)

(174 103)

86 759

345 985

70 720
7 379
(11 753)

(33 516)

(210 628)
8 536

20 708

2 077 937

312 974

–

1 199 902

50 755

–

143 459

(174 103)

–

(202 159)

–

–

–

1 141 202

20 413

156 075

20 708

936 735

90 392

426 581

11 899

2 089 775

6 326

39 038

34 485

164 386

(2 504)

(11 970)

–

(47 081)

757

–

–

–

–

94 971

453 649

37 242

2 150 050

63 374

274 978

–

1 129 358

9 410

49 412

–

144 415

(2 064)

(11 416)

–

(45 085)

–

Risk and
opportunities report

–

–
(57 030)
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–

(9 142)

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals
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189 910
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director’s report

–
66 346

Our context
and strategy

1 951

129 979
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–
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Furniture
and
equipment
N$’000

–

–

–

312 974

–

1 199 902

(28 786)

24 251

140 675

37 242

950 148

Remuneration
report

–
70 720
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ANNEXURE B (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets

Automation
processes
2021
N$’000

Externally
purchased
software
licences
2021
N$’000

Trademarks
2021
N$’000

Total
2021
N$’000

Balance at beginning of the year

34 751

19 862

11 000

65 613

Disposals

(7 932)

GROUP
Cost

Additions

309

(15 873)

–

(23 805)

7 404

–

7 713

–

21 841

–

21 841

27 128

33 234

11 000

71 362

Balance at beginning of the year

17 042

18 175

1 533

36 750

Disposals

(7 932)

Transfers
Balance at end of the year

Annual financial statements

Accumulated amortisation
(15 729)

–

(23 661)

2 810

3 476

400

6 686

Balance at end of the year

11 920

5 922

1 933

19 775

Carrying amount at end of the year

15 208

27 312

9 067

51 587

Balance at beginning of the year

34 751

19 862

11 000

65 613

Disposals

(7 932)

Amortisation charges

COMPANY
Cost
(15 873)

–

(23 805)

Additions

309

7 404

–

7 713

Transfers

–

21 841

–

21 841

27 128

33 234

11 000

71 362

Balance at beginning of the year

17 042

18 175

1 533

36 750

Disposals

(7 932)

Balance at end of the year
Accumulated amortisation

(15 729)

–

(23 661)

2 810

3 476

400

6 686

Balance at end of the year

11 920

5 922

1 933

19 775

Carrying amount at end of the year

15 208

27 312

9 067

51 587

Amortisation charges

Amortisation periods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If the expected useful life of the asset differs from
previous estimates, the amortisation period shall be changed accordingly. The amortisation charge is recognised in the
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives at 30 June 2021 amounted to N$9 000 000 (2020: N$9 000 000). This judgement is
based on the market and trading conditions applicable to the Group and management’s expectations and strategy for the use
of the trademarks. It is the intention of the Group to receive a benefit from them indefinitely and there is no indication that
this will not be the case.
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ANNEXURE B (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets

Trademarks
2020
N$’000

Total
2020
N$’000

34 718

19 751

11 000

65 469

(291)

–

(291)

402

–

435

–

–

–

19 862

11 000

65 613

14 154

17 131

1 133

32 418

–

(188)

–

(188)

400

4 520

1 533

36 750

17 709

1 687

9 467

28 863

34 718

19 751

11 000

65 469

(291)

–

(291)

402

–

435

–

–

–

–

34 751

19 862

11 000

65 613

14 154

17 131

1 133

32 418

–

(188)

–

Governance
report
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Contributing to the sustainable
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1 232
18 175
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2 888
17 042

–

Our context
and strategy

–
34 751
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–
33
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Automation
processes
2020
N$’000

Externally
purchased
software
licences
2020
N$’000

(188)

1 232

400

4 520

17 042

18 175

1 533

36 750

17 709

1 687

9 467

28 863

Risk and
opportunities report

2 888

Remuneration
report
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ANNEXURE B
Right-of-use assets
Motor
vehicle
leases
2021
N$’000

Property
leases
2021
N$’000

Total
2021
N$’000

64 121

9 863

73 984

GROUP
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year
Disposals

(15 563)

Additions

17 001

1 169

18 170

–

–

–

65 559

10 365

75 924

36 770

4 910

41 680

Transfers from property, plant and equipment
Balance at end of the year

(667)

(16 230)

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year
Disposals

Annual financial statements

(14 690)

(667)

(15 357)

–

–

–

Depreciation charges

14 339

4 462

18 801

Balance at end of the year

36 419

8 705

45 124

Carrying amount at end of the year

29 140

1 660

30 800

64 121

9 863

Transfers from property, plant and equipment

COMPANY
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year
Disposals

(15 563)

Additions

17 001

Transfers from property, plant and equipment
Balance at end of the year

(667)
1 169

73 984
(16 230)
18 170

–

–

–

65 559

10 365

75 924

36 770

4 910

41 680

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year
Disposals

(14 690)

(667)

(15 357)

–

–

–

Depreciation charges

14 339

4 462

18 801

Balance at end of the year

36 419

8 705

45 124

Carrying amount at end of the year

29 140

1 660

30 800

Transfers from property, plant and equipment

Average lease terms are two years on leasehold properties and five years for leasehold vehicles.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

175
About
this report

ANNEXURE B (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

Property
leases
2020
N$’000

Total
2020
N$’000

–

–

–

(7 230)

–

(7 230)
24 184

–

57 030

64 121

9 863

73 984

–

–

–
(6 404)

–

28 786

14 388

4 910

19 298

36 770

4 910

41 680

27 351

4 953

32 304

–

–

14 321

–

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

–
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(6 404)
28 786
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and strategy

9 863

57 030
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14 321

(7 230)
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Motor
vehicle
leases
2020
N$’000

–
(7 230)
24 184

57 030

–

57 030

64 121

9 863

73 984

–

–

–

–

(6 404)

–

28 786

14 388

4 910

19 298

36 770

4 910

41 680

27 351

4 953

32 304

Risk and
opportunities report
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28 786
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ANNEXURE C
Interest in subsidiaries

Subsidiary company

Country of
incorporation

Issued
capital
N$’000

BEVERAGES
Namibia Breweries South Africa Proprietary Limited*

South Africa

–

Flycatcher (Proprietary) Limited

Botswana

–

Northgate Properties (Proprietary) Limited

Namibia

–

Northgate Exports (Proprietary) Limited

Namibia

–

Hallie Investments Number Four Hundred and Twenty Eight
(Proprietary) Limited**

Namibia

–

These subsidiaries are engaged in the sale and distribution of alcoholic and
non-alcoholic beverages.

Annual financial statements

PROPERTY

Accumulated loan impairment
These subsidiaries are engaged in property holding.
*

A letter of support is in place whereby Namibia Breweries Limited agrees to provide additional financial support to Namibia Breweries South Africa
Proprietary Limited to meet its debts as and when they fall due until such time as specified in the letter.

** As disclosed in Annexure B, a Cession Agreement was entered into whereby Hallie Investments Number Four Hundred and Twenty Eight (Proprietary)
Limited ceded its property to the Company. As a result, the Investment in Subsidiary decreased by the value of the property.
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ANNEXURE C (CONTINUED)
Interest in subsidiaries

EFFECTIVE HOLDING

INTEREST OF HOLDING
COMPANY SHARES

INDEBTEDNESS

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

100

100

–

–

98 247

102 422

100

100

–

–

4 368

1 006

100

100

828

828

(1 104)

(1 212)

100

100

–

–

–

–

100

100

468

34 692

–

–

–

–

1 296

35 520

Our
profile
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2021
%

(206)
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ANNEXURE D
Directors’ emoluments
Pension/
medical
aid
N$’000

Salary
N$’000

Bonuses
N$’000

Other
benefits
N$’000

1 584

1 585

1 681

539

5 389

812

921

729

470

2 932

2 396

2 506

2 410

1 009

8 321

1 505

–

1 680

521

3 706

Total
N$’000

2021 – Executive directors
M Wenk
W von Lieres
Total emoluments
2020 – Executive directors

Annual financial statements

M Wenk
W von Lieres

1 022

–

730

450

2 202

Total emoluments

2 527

–

2 410

971

5 908

2021
N$’000

2020
N$’000

HB Gerdes

207

207

P Grüttemeyer

305

201

S Thieme

204

204

G Hanke

54

54

228

142

Non-executive directors

H van der Westhuizen

–

54

S Siemer

231

142

R Pirmez

186

164

P Sabrie

54

54

120

98

L van der Borght

L Mcleod-Katjirua
VJ Mungunda

135

–

AR Schimming-Chase

112

–

1 836

1 320

Total emoluments

Non-executive directors only received directors’ fees for the current and prior financial year.
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Incorporated in the Republic of Namibia
Registration number: 1920/0002
NSX Share code: NBS
ISIN: NA0009114944
(NBL or the Company)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

IMPORTANT DATES:
Shareholders are advised of the following dates:

2021
16 November

Last day for lodging forms of proxy

14 December

Annual General Meeting

20 December

Owing to the current COVID-19 pandemic and the Government Regulations surrounding public gatherings, the Company
will ensure that the meeting will be accessible to shareholders through electronic participation.

Integrated annual report
The integrated annual report, including the below reports, are available at https://nambrew.com/investor-hub/:
z The 2021 integrated report

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

This notice is important and requires your immediate attention. Please ensure that you review the notes and footnotes in this
notice, which contain important information regarding participation in the Annual General Meeting.

Managing
director’s report

Notice is hereby given that the 100th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of shareholders of the Company in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2021 will be held in the Company’s Auditorium, Iscor Street, Northern Industrial Area,
Windhoek, Namibia commencing from 12h00, to deal with such business as may lawfully be dealt with at the AGM.

Our context
and strategy

Date to receive notice of AGM

z 2021 Notice of AGM (this/the Notice)
Governance
report

z The complete set of Annual Financial Statements
z The governance report
z The remuneration reports
z Contribution to the Sustainable Development Goals report

Risk and
opportunities report

AGENDA
Ordinary dividend
To note that no final dividend will be declared by the Board of Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

Remuneration
report

RESOLUTIONS
Annual financial statements and reports
Re-election of Directors
To re-elect by way of separate resolutions, Steven Siemer, Laura McLeod-Katjirua and Sven Thieme who retire by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible,
makes themselves available for re-election.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notice of annual
general meeting

Brief biographies of each director are available from page 61 of the Integrated Report.

Annual financial
statements

To receive and consider and if approved adopt the Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2021,
together with the independent auditor’s report.
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Directors’ remuneration
To approve the Directors’ remuneration as reflected in the Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ended
30 June 2021 and further depicted below:
Non-executive Directors

Fees

HB Gerdes

N$207 305

P Grüttemeyer

N$304 570

S Thieme

N$204 100

G Hanke

N$53 500

HJ van der Westhuizen

N$228 210

S Siemer

N$230 720

R Pirmez

N$185 570

L McLeod-Katjirua

N$119 950
N$53 500

Notice of Annual General Meeting

P Sabrie
VJ Mungunda

N$134 588

AR Schimming-Chase

N$112 438

Reappointment of external auditors
On recommendation of the Audit Committee, to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as independent external auditors of the
Company for the ensuing financial year from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting until conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting and that the terms of engagement and fees be determined by the Directors of the Company.

Unissued share capital
To authorise the Directors of the Company, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, as amended, the Articles of
Association of the Company and the NSX Listings Requirements, to allot and issue the unissued share capital of the
Company at such prices, to such persons and on such conditions as they may deem it appropriate.
By order of the Board

Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary) Limited
Company Secretary
10 November 2021

SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY
AGM: Monday, 20 December 2021 at 12:00

Reports published

Interim financial report						
Reviewed Provisional Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

11 March 2021
30 September 2021

Dividends			Declared		Paid
Interim				

9 March 2021		

14 May 2021

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF AGM
1. This document is addressed to all shareholders and proxy holders.
2. If you are a beneficial holder of NBL securities you may attend and vote at the AGM, provided that your name is on the
Company’s register of disclosures as the holder of the beneficial interest, or you hold a proxy.
3. If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take arising from this document, please consult your broker, banker,
attorney, accountant or other appropriate professional adviser immediately.
4. An electronic copy of the location of the venue of the meeting may be obtained from NBL’s website at
www.namibiabreweries.com

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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PROXY FORM
NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED

Chairperson’s
statement

Incorporated in the Republic of Namibia
Registration number: 1920/0002
NSX Share code: NBS
ISIN: NA0009114944
(NBL or the Company)

Our
profile

The Company Secretary
Ohlthaver & List Finance and Trading Corporation Limited
PO Box 16
Windhoek
Namibia
(name in full)

of

(address)

being a shareholder of

Our context
and strategy

I/We

(number of shares) of the above-mentioned Company hereby appoint
(name); or failing him/her

(b)

(name); or failing him/her

(c)

(name).

I/we desire as follows:
For

Against

Abstain

Annual financial statements and reports

Governance
report

Resolutions

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

or failing him/her, the Chairperson of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of Namibia Breweries Limited to be held in the Company’s Auditorium, Iscor Street, Northern Industrial
Area, Windhoek, Namibia on Monday, 20 December 2021 at 12:00 and at any adjournment thereof, in particular to vote
for/against/abstain* the resolutions contained in the notice of the meeting.

Managing
director’s report

(a)

Re-election of Directors
Risk and
opportunities report

2.1 Steven Siemer
2.2 Laura McLeod-Katjirua
2.3 Sven Thieme
Directors’ remuneration

Remuneration
report

Reappointment of external auditors
Unissued share capital
Signed at

this

day of

2021.

* Please indicate by inserting an ‘X’ in the appropriate block, relating to the columns ‘for/against/abstain’. If no indication is given, the proxy may vote as they
deem fit.

Notice of annual
general meeting

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Annual financial
statements

Signature(s) of shareholder
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NOTES TO THE PROXY
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the aforementioned meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy (who need not be a
member of the Company) to attend, speak and, on a poll, to vote in his/her stead.
2. A copy of the signed proxy form must be returned by Tuesday, 14 December 2021 by 12h00 to: The Company Secretary,
Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary) Limited, Alexander Forbes House, 7th Floor, South Block, 23-33 Fidel Castro Street,
Windhoek, PO Box 16, Windhoek, Namibia, or deliver to the registered office of Namibia Breweries Limited or via
email to #Legal@ol.na

Notice of Annual General Meeting

3. In respect of shareholders that are companies, an extract of the relevant resolution of Directors must be attached to the
proxy form or handed in to the Company Secretary at the meeting.

NAMIBIA BREWERIES LIMITED
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GLOSSARY

CSI

Corporate Social Investment

DLG

Deutsche Landwirtschafts Gesellschaft

EY

Ernst & Young

HSAEC

Heineken South Africa Export Company

IT

Information and Technology

MoA

Memorandum of Association

NAFAU

Namibia Food and Allied Workers Union

NBL or the Company

Namibia Breweries Limited

NSI

Namibian Standards Institution

NSX

Namibian Stock Exchange

O&L Group or the Group

Ohlthaver & List

PPE

Personal Protective Equipment

SABS

South African Bureau of Standards

SADC

Southern African Development Community

SAIF

Self-Regulating Alcohol Industry Forum

SDGs

Sustainable Development Goals

SKUs

Stock-keeping Units

UN

United Nations

Remuneration
report

Breakthrough Management Skills

Risk and
opportunities report

BMS

Governance
report

Articles of Association

Contributing to the sustainable
development goals

AoA

Managing
director’s report

Annual General Meeting

Our context
and strategy

AGM

Our
profile

Description
Chairperson’s
statement

Abbreviations and acronyms

Annual financial
statements
Notice of annual
general meeting

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES

DIRECTORATE AND
ADMINISTRATION
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ADMINISTRATION

M Wenk
W von Lieres

Company registration number
(Incorporated in Namibia) 1920/0002
1979/001528/10 (Externally registered in South Africa)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
S Thieme
H-B Gerdes
P Grüttemeyer
L McLeod-Katjirua
R Pirmez1
SLM Siemer2
H van der Westhuizen
AR Schimming-Chase
VJ Mungunda
P Sabrie3 Alternate Director to R Pirmez.
G Hanke Alternate Director to S Thieme.
Nationalities
1

Belgian

2

Dutch

3

French

COMMITTEES
Remuneration Committee
R Pirmez (Chairperson)
P Grüttemeyer
B Mukuahima
AR Schimming-Chase

Secretaries
Ohlthaver & List Centre (Proprietary) Limited
Alexander Forbes House, 23 – 33 Fidel Castro Street
PO Box 16, Windhoek, Namibia
Auditors
Deloitte & Touche (Namibia)
PO Box 47, Windhoek, Namibia
Sponsor
PSG Wealth Management
PO Box 196, Windhoek, Namibia
Transfer secretaries
Transfer Secretaries (Proprietary) Limited
PO Box 2401, Windhoek, Namibia
Principal bankers
First National Bank of Namibia Limited
PO Box 285, Windhoek
Attorneys
Engling, Stritter & Partners
PO Box 43, Windhoek, Namibia

Audit Committee
H-B Gerdes (Chairperson)
P Grüttemeyer
M Hoedemaker
VJ Mungunda
Investment Committee
H van der Westhuizen (Chairperson)
AR Schimming-Chase
VJ Mungunda
P Grüttemeyer
S Siemer
Management Risk Committee
M Wenk (Chairperson)
W von Lieres
Senior Leadership Team
O&L Head Group Risk
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